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Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure106ItemA 9A.Controls and Procedures106ItemA 9B.Other Information106ItemA 9C.Disclosure Regarding Foreign
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Accounting Fees and Services108PART IVA ItemA 15.Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules109Item 16.Form 10-K Summary115In this report on Form 10-K, for all periods presented,
d€cewed€, a€ceusa€, a€ceourad€, the 4€cecompanya€, the &€eCompanya€, &€0eHPA€ and a€ceHP Inc.&€ refer to HP Inc. (formerly Hewlett-Packard Company) and its consolidated
subsidiaries.2Forward-Looking StatementsThis Annual Report on Form 10-K, including 4€ceBusinessa€ in Item 1 and 4€ceManagementa€™s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operationsa€ in Item 7, contains forward-looking statements based on current expectations and assumptions that involve risks and uncertainties. If the risks or uncertainties ever
materialize or the assumptions prove incorrect, they could affect the business and results of operations of HP Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries which may differ materially from those
expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements and assumptions. All statements other than statements of historical fact are statements that could be deemed forward-looking
statements, including, but not limited to projections of net revenue, margins, expenses, effective tax rates, net earnings, net earnings per share, cash flows, benefit plan funding, deferred taxes,
share repurchases, foreign currency exchange rates or other financial items; any projections of the amount, timing or impact of cost savings or restructuring and other charges, planned
structural cost reductions and productivity initiatives; any statements of the plans, strategies and objectives of management for future operations, including, but not limited to, our business
model and transformation, our sustainability goals, our go-to-market strategy, the execution of restructuring plans and any resulting cost savings (including the Fiscal 2023 Plan (as defined
herein)), net revenue or profitability improvements or other financial impacts; any statements concerning the expected development, demand, performance, market share or competitive
performance relating to products or services; any statements concerning potential supply constraints, component shortages, manufacturing disruptions or logistics challenges; any statements
regarding current or future macroeconomic trends or events and the impact of those trends and events on HP and its financial performance; any statements regarding pending investigations,
claims, disputes or other litigation matters; any statements of expectation or belief as to the timing and expected benefits of acquisitions and other business combination and investment
transactions; and any statements of assumptions underlying any of the foregoing. Forward-looking statements can also generally be identified by words such as &€cefuture,a€ a€ceanticipates,a€
ad€cebelieves,a€ a€oeestimates,a€ a€ceexpects,a€ a€wintends,a€ a€oeplans,a€ a€cepredicts,a€ a€ceprojects,a€ a€mewill,a€ 4€cewould,a€ 4€ecould,a€ d€cecan,a€ a€cemay,a€ and similar terms.
Risks, uncertainties and assumptions that could affect our business and results of operations include factors relating to:a€¢HPa€™s ability to execute on its strategic plans, including the
previously announced initiatives, business model changes and transformation;a€¢the development and transition of new products and services and the enhancement of existing products and
services to meet evolving customer needs and respond to emerging technological trends, including artificial intelligence;a€¢the use of artificial intelligence;a€¢the impact of macroeconomic
and geopolitical trends, changes and events, including the ongoing military conflicts in Ukraine and the Middle East or tensions in the Taiwan Strait and South China Sea and the regional and
global ramifications of these events; a€¢volatility in global capital markets and foreign currency, increases in benchmark interest rates, the effects of inflation and instability of financial
institutions; &€¢risks associated with HPa€™ s international operations and the effects of business disruption events, including those resulting from climate change; a€¢the need to manage (and
reliance on) third-party suppliers, including with respect to supply constraints and component shortages, and the need to manage HPa€™s global, multi-tier distribution network and potential
misuse of pricing programs by HPa€™s channel partners, adapt to new or changing marketplaces and effectively deliver HPA€™ s services;a€¢the execution and performance of contracts by HP
and its suppliers, customers, clients and partners, including logistical challenges with respect to such execution and performance; a€¢the competitive pressures faced by HPa€™s businesses;a€
¢the impact of third-party claims of IP infringement; a€¢successfully innovating, developing and executing HP&€™ s go-to-market strategy, including online, omnichannel and contractual sales,
in an evolving distribution, reseller and customer landscape; a€¢successfully competing and maintaining the value proposition of HP4€™s products, including supplies and services; a€
¢challenges to HPa€™s ability to accurately forecast inventories, demand and pricing, which may be due to HP4€™s multi-tiered channel, sales of HPa€™s products to unauthorized resellers or
unauthorized resale of HP&€™s products or our uneven sales cycle; a€¢the hiring and retention of key employees; 3&€¢the results of our restructuring plans (including the Fiscal 2023 Plan),
including estimates and assumptions related to the cost (including any possible disruption of HP4€™s business) and the anticipated benefits of our restructuring plans; a€¢the protection of
HP&€™s intellectual property assets, including intellectual property licensed from third parties; &€¢disruptions in operations from system security risks, data protection breaches, or
cyberattacks; &€¢HPa€™s ability to maintain its credit rating, satisfy its debt obligations and complete any contemplated share repurchases, other capital return programs or other strategic
transactions;a€¢changes in estimates and assumptions HP makes in connection with the preparation of its financial statements; 4€¢the impact of changes to federal, state, local and foreign laws
and regulations, including environmental regulations and tax laws; a€¢integration and other risks associated with business combination and investment transactions; a&€¢our aspirations related
to environmental, social and governance matters;a€¢potential impacts, liabilities and costs from pending or potential investigations, claims and disputes; &€¢the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting; and a€¢other risks that are described herein, including but not limited to the items discussed in 4€ceRisk Factorsa€ in Item 1A of Part I of this report and that
are otherwise described or updated from time to time in HP4€™s other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the &€ SECa€). HPa€™s Future Ready Plan includes HP's efforts
to take advantage of future growth opportunities, including but not limited to, investments to drive growth, investments in our people, improving product mix, driving structural cost savings and
other productivity measures. Structural cost savings represent gross reductions in costs driven by operational efficiency, digital transformation, and portfolio optimization. These initiatives
include but are not limited to workforce reductions, platform simplification, programs consolidation and productivity measures undertaken by HP, which HP expects to be sustainable in the
longer-term. These structural cost savings are net of any new recurring costs resulting from these initiatives and exclude one-time investments to generate such savings. HP4€™s expectations
on the longer-term sustainability of such structural cost savings are based on its current business operations and market dynamics and could be significantly impacted by various factors,
including but not limited to HP4€™ s evolving business models, future investment decisions, market environment and technology landscape.Forward-looking and other statements in this report
may also address our corporate sustainability or responsibility progress, plans, and goals (including environmental matters), and the inclusion of such statements is not an indication that these
contents are necessarily material to HP, investors or other stakeholders or required to be disclosed in HP4€™s filings, in each case, under U.S. securities or any other laws or requirements that
may be applicable to HP. In addition, historical, current, and forward-looking sustainability-related statements may be based on standards for measuring progress that are still developing,
internal controls and processes that continue to evolve, and assumptions that are subject to change in the future.The forward-looking statements in this report are made as of the date of this



filing and HP assumes no obligation and does not intend to update these forward-looking statements.4Table of ContentsPART IITEM 1. Business.OverviewHP is a global technology leader and
creator of solutions that enable people to bring their ideas to life and connect to the things that matter most. Operating in more than 170 countries, HP delivers innovative and sustainable
devices, services and subscriptions for personal computing, printing, 3D printing, hybrid work, gaming and other related technologies.We believe artificial intelligence (a€ceAla€) is playing a
critical role in the transformation of how people live and work, and customers are beginning to recognize the benefits in security, speed and cost. Our high-performing product portfolio includes
HPa€™s new line of Al PCs and workstations built with the computing power to enable local Al processing for enhanced performance and features as well as intelligent print features
incorporated into our home, office and graphics solutions.Our broad range of security capabilities are designed to protect an increasingly distributed user base through security enhanced PCs
and printers, hardware-enforced endpoint security software (for both HP and non-HP PCs), and endpoint security services. Our security solutions provide layered resiliency using enhanced
features such as containment and isolation technology as well as the use of Al deep-learning to identify and remove malware threats.We have three reportable segments: Personal Systems,
Printing and Corporate Investments.Personal SystemsPersonal Systems offers desktops, notebooks, and workstations (including HPa€™s portfolio of AI PCs and workstations), thin clients, retail
point-of-sale (€0ePOS&€) systems, displays, hybrid systems, software, solutions including endpoint security and services. Personal Systems includes support and deployment, configurations and
extended warranty services and maintains multi-operating system and multi-architecture strategies using Microsoft Windows and Google Chrome operating systems, and predominantly uses
processors from Intel, AMD, and NVIDIA. Personal Systems groups its global business capabilities into the following business units when reporting business performance:d€¢Commercial PS
consists of endpoint computing devices and hybrid systems, for use by enterprise, public sector (which includes education), and small- and medium-sized business (2€ceSMB&€) customers.
These devices include our Pro and Elite commercial PC portfolio, our Z line of workstations, thin clients, retail POS systems, and HP4€™ s Dragonfly and Chromebook PCs. HP offers a range of
secure services and solutions to commercial customers to help them manage the lifecycle of their PCs and mobility installed base.4€¢A A A A Consumer PS consists of devices, accessories and
services which are optimized for consumer usage, focusing on gaming, learning and working remotely, consuming multi-media for entertainment, managing personal life activities, sharing
information and staying connected, informed, and secure. These devices include our new Omni consumer PC portfolio, the Omen and Victus gaming lines, and HPa€™s Spectre, Envy, Pavilion
and Chromebook PCs.PrintingPrinting provides consumer and commercial printer hardware, supplies, services and solutions. Printing is also focused on Graphics and 3D Printing and
Personalization in the commercial and industrial markets. Our global business capabilities within Printing are described below:a€¢Office Printing Solutions delivers HPa€™s security enhanced
office printers, supplies, services, and solutions to SMBs, public sector and large enterprises. It also includes Original Equipment Manufacturer (4€ceOEM&€) hardware and solutions. &€¢Home
Printing Solutions delivers innovative and security enhanced printing products, supplies, services and solutions for the home, home business and micro business customers utilizing both
HP&€™s Ink and Laser technologies.a€¢Graphics Solutions delivers large-format, commercial and industrial solutions and supplies to print service providers and packaging converters through a
wide portfolio of printers and presses. &€¢3D Printing & Personalization offers a portfolio of additive manufacturing solutions and supplies to help customers succeed in their additive and digital
manufacturing journey. HP offers complete solutions in collaboration with an ecosystem of partners.Printing groups its global business capabilities into the following business units when
reporting business performance:4€¢Commercial Printing consists of office printing solutions, graphics solutions and 3D printing and personalization, excluding supplies;a€¢Consumer Printing
consists of home printing solutions, excluding supplies; and5Table of Contentsa€¢Supplies comprises a set of highly innovative consumable products, ranging from ink and laser cartridges to
media, industrial graphics supplies and 3D printing and personalization supplies, for recurring use in consumer and commercial hardware.Corporate InvestmentsCorporate Investments includes
certain business incubation and investment projects.CompetitionWe encounter strong competition in all areas of our business activity. We compete on the basis of technology, innovation,
performance, price, quality, reliability, brand, reputation, distribution, range of products and services, ease of use of our products, account relationships, customer training, service, support and
solutions including subscription-based offerings and financing, security, availability of application software, and our sustainable impact. The markets for each of our key business segments are
characterized by strong competition among major corporations with long-established positions and a large number of new and rapidly growing firms. Most product life cycles are short, and to
remain competitive we must develop new products and services, periodically enhance our existing products and services and compete effectively based on the factors listed above. In addition,
we compete with many of our current and potential partners, including OEMsA that design, manufacture and often market their products under their own brand names. Our successful
management of these competitive partner relationships will be critical to our future success. Moreover, we anticipate that we will have to continue to adjust prices on many of our products and
services to stay competitive.The competitive environment in which each key segment operates is described below:Personal Systems. The markets in which Personal Systems operates are highly
competitive and are characterized by price competition and introduction of new products and solutions. Our primary competitors are Acer Inc., Apple Inc., ASUSTeK Computer Inc., Dell Inc.,
Huawei Technologies Co., Ltd., Lenovo Group Limited, Logitech International S.A., Microsoft Corporation, Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd., and Toshiba Corporation. In certain geographies, we
also experience competition from local companies and from generically-branded or &€cewhite boxa€ manufacturers. Our competitive advantages include our broad product portfolio, our
innovation, and research and development capabilities including security features, our innovative design work, our brand and procurement leverage, our ability to cross-sell our portfolio of
offerings, our extensive service and support offerings, the accessibility of our products and the execution of our broad-based distribution strategy from retail and commercial channels to direct
sales.Printing. The markets for printer hardware and associated supplies are highly competitive. Printinga€™ s key customer segments each face competitive market pressures in pricing and the
introduction of new products. Our primary competitors include Brother Industries, Ltd., Canon Inc., Lexmark International, Inc., Pantum, Seiko Epson Corporation, The Ricoh Company Ltd., and
Xerox Corporation Ltd. In addition, independent suppliers offer non-original supplies (including imitation, refill and remanufactured alternatives), which are often available for lower prices, but
which can also offer lower print quality and reliability compared to HP original inkjet and toner supplies. These and other competing products are often sold alongside our products through
online or omnichannel resellers, retailers or distributors, or such resellers, retailers and distributors may highlight the availability of lower cost non-original supplies. Our competitive
advantages include our comprehensive high-quality solutions for the home, office and publishing environments, our innovation, and research and development capabilities including security
features, sustainability, our brand, and the accessibility of our products through a broad-based distribution strategy from retail and commercial channels to direct sales.Sales, Marketing and
DistributionWe manage our business and report our financial results based on the business segments described above. Our customers are organized by consumer and commercial groups, and
purchases of HP products, solutions and services may be fulfilled directly by HP or indirectly through a variety of partners, utilizing their own physical or internet stores or an omnichannel
combination of the two, including:a€¢retailers that sell our products to the public focusing on consumers and SMBs;a€¢resellers that sell our products and services, frequently with their own
value-added products or services, to targeted customer groups;a€¢distribution partners that supply our products and solutions to resellers and retailers in certain geographies; anda€¢system
integrators and other business intermediaries that provide various levels of services, including systems integration work and as-a-service solutions, and typically partner with us on client
solutions that require our products and services.6Table of ContentsThe mix of our business conducted by direct sales or channel sales differs by business and geographic market. We believe
that customer buying patterns and different geographic market conditions require us to tailor our sales, marketing and distribution efforts to the geographic market and sub-geographic
specificities for each of our businesses. We are focused on driving the depth and breadth of our market coverage while identifying efficiencies and productivity gains in both our direct and
indirect routes to market. Our businesses collaborate to accomplish strategic and process alignment where appropriate. For example, we typically assign an account manager to manage
relationships across our business with large enterprise customers. The account manager is supported by a team of specialists with product and services expertise and drives both direct and
indirect sales to their assigned customers. For other customers and for consumers, we typically manage both direct online sales as well as channel relationships with retailers mainly targeting
consumers and SMBs and commercial resellers mainly targeting SMBs, mid-market accounts, public sector and large enterprises.Manufacturing and MaterialsWe utilize outsourced
manufacturers (4€e0OMsa€) around the world to manufacture HP-designed products to generate cost efficiencies, reduce time to market, and maintain flexibility in our supply chain and
manufacturing processes. We also manufacture finished products from components and sub-assemblies that we acquire from a wide range of vendors.We utilize two primary methods of fulfilling
demand for products: building products to order and configuring products to order. Building products to order maximizes manufacturing and logistics efficiencies by producing high volumes of
basic product configurations. Alternatively, configuring products to order enables products to match a customera€™s hardware and software customization requirements.Like other participants
in the information technology (4€IT4€) industry, we ordinarily acquire materials and components through a combination of blanket and scheduled purchase orders to support our demand
requirements for periods averaging 90 to 120A days. We also may acquire component inventory in times of growth or in anticipation of significant price volatility or supply constraints for
certain components that are not available from multiple sources. Additionally, while most of our products have existing or readily available alternative sources of supply, some of our
components are obtained from a single source due to technology, availability, price, quality or other considerations. Research and DevelopmentInnovation across products, services, business
models and processes is a key element of our culture and success. We are focused on developing products, services and solutions that anticipate customersa€™ changing needs and desires, and
emerging technological trends, including accelerating the delivery of Al throughout our product portfolio. We continue to invest in innovation in both the areas where we believe we can make a
unique contribution and where strategic partnerships will leverage our cost structure and maximize our customersa€™ experiences.Intellectual PropertyWe seek patent protection for
inventions likely to be incorporated into our products and services or where obtaining such proprietary rights will maintain or improve our competitive position. As of October 31, 2024, our
worldwide patent portfolio included over 22,000 patents which expire at various dates, generally 20 years from their original filing dates. We believe that our patents and patent applications are
important for maintaining the competitive differentiation of our products and services, enhancing our freedom of action to sell our products and services in markets in which we choose to
participate, and maximizing our return on research and development investments. No single patent is essential to HP as a whole or to any of HP4€™s business segments.In addition to
developing our patent portfolio, we license intellectual property (4€ceIPa€) from third parties. We have also granted and continue to grant to others licenses, and other rights, under our patents
when we consider these arrangements to be in our interest. These license arrangements include a number of cross-licenses with third parties.7Table of ContentsSeasonalityWe experience some
seasonal trends in the sale of our products and services. For example, European sales are often weaker in the summer months and consumer sales are often stronger in the fourth calendar
quarter. Demand during the spring and early summer months also may be adversely impacted by market anticipation of seasonal trends. Historical seasonal patterns may be impacted by supply
constraints, shifts in customer behavior and the evolving impacts of macroeconomic challenges.Sustainability and Environmental, Social, and Governance ActivitiesAt HP, we believe how we do
things is just as important as what we do. Our Sustainable Impact goals reflect our efforts to tackle key issues in Climate, Human Rights, and Digital Equity. For more information on our
sustainability goals, programs, and performance, including our methodology for calculating progress towards our GHG and other sustainability goals, we refer you to our annual Sustainable
Impact Report, available on our website (which is not incorporated by reference herein).EnvironmentOur operations are subject to regulation under various federal, state, local and foreign laws
concerning the environment, including laws addressing the discharge of pollutants into the air and water, the management and disposal of hazardous substances and wastes, and the cleanup of
contaminated sites. We proactively evaluate and at times replace materials in our products and supply chain, taking into account, among other things, published lists of substances of concern,
new and upcoming legal requirements, customer preferences and scientific analysis that indicates a potential impact to human health or the environment. We are committed to complying with
all environmental laws applicable to our operations, products and services and to reducing our environmental impact across all aspects of our business. This commitment is reflected and
outlined in our Sustainable Impact goals, our comprehensive environmental, health and safety policy, strict environmental management of our operations and worldwide environmental
programs and services.Human CapitalHP employs approximately 58,000 employees in 59 countries. Together, they power HP innovation by applying their diverse skills and perspectives to
create transformative solutions for our partners and customers worldwide. Our aim is to attract and retain exceptional talent by providing engaging work experiences that help our employees
thrive. We promote ongoing learning and development, offer comprehensive compensation and benefits, and focus on health, safety, and well-being to set employees up to do their best work
and achieve their career aspirations. To deliver on these priorities, HP senior leaders are accountable for meeting management by objective (4€ceMBO&€) goals for employee engagement,
diversity and inclusion, and leadership development. Employee EngagementWe regularly collect feedback from employees to better understand and improve their workplace experiences and to
identify ways to strengthen our culture. In fiscal year 2024, 90% of employees participated in our annual survey, and we continued to see strong overall engagement, exceeding top quartile
benchmarks for most of the external comparisons we track. We saw similar strength in our internal inclusion index, and employees demonstrated their engagement by providing a high volume
of written comments in this yearda€™s survey. Beyond the annual survey, we regularly seek out employee feedback through a variety of pulse polls and take action to address their ideas,
suggestions, and concerns. Talent DevelopmentWe have a multi-faceted talent, learning, and skill-development strategy. First, we emphasize diversity of backgrounds, experience, and
perspectives in our senior talent pipeline, and invest in targeted approaches such as leadership assessments, external education opportunities, coaching, job rotations, and immersive,
experiential learning to ensure our executives are equipped to lead HP, both now and in the future. We also support talent through an extensive portfolio of internal and external development
programs designed to accelerate their career growth. Additionally, we prepare new people managers with development experiences designed, among other things, to build coaching skills and
champion inclusion.We are committed to the continuous growth of employees. We provide enterprise-wide skill development solutions and resources that focus on the critical skills all
employees need to perform at their best in their jobs today and in the future. In partnership with industry thought partners and internal experts, HP offers learning opportunities in key areas
such as software development, artificial intelligence, data science, product management, communications, change agility, and strategic thinking. HP prioritizes skill development experiences
that accommodate employee-specific needs and demanding schedules, with an emphasis on learning that drives immediate application and measurable behavior change. In addition to skill
development resources, HP also offers formal education assistance through our Degree Assistance Program which provides employees with the opportunity to participate in higher academic
education.8Table of ContentsHybrid Work StrategyAt HP, hybrid work balances workplace flexibility with time working together to collaborate and connect in person at our sites. Our goal is to
provide the ability to work seamlessly across a diverse ecosystem of workplaces, enabled by enhanced tools and technology designed to optimize productivity and collaboration.Diversity, Equity,
and InclusionWe strive to create an inclusive workplace where everyone can bring their unique perspectives to work and reach their full potential. This commitment is at the heart of our
innovation model, where people with diverse backgrounds, knowledge, and experiences collaborate to create breakthrough technologies and deliver valued solutions to our customers.We also
strive to ensure equal opportunities and access for all employees. We continue to work on removing barriers through external hiring and outreach and by providing internal programs and
development opportunities and training for managers on inclusive leadership.Pay EquityPeople should be paid equitably for what they do and how they do it, regardless of their gender, race, or
other protected characteristics. We benchmark and set pay ranges based on relevant market data and consider factors such as an employeea€™s role, experience, skills, and performance. We
also regularly review our compensation practices, both in terms of our overall workforce and individual employees, to make sure our pay is fair and equitable.Since 2016, we have reviewed
employeesa€™ compensation with the support of independent third-party experts to ensure consistent pay practices. In fiscal year 2024, we continued to expand our annual pay equity
assessment to include additional countries representing a majority of our global workforce. The independent analysis did not reveal any systemic issues and we addressed areas of potential
concern as part of our off-cycle compensation process. Health, Safety, and WellnessThe holistic wellbeing of our employees is vital to HPa€™s success. Our environmental, health, and safety
leadership team uses our global injury and illness reporting system to assess worldwide and regional trends as a part of quarterly reviews. We focus on reducing and effectively managing risks
at HP-owned and partner-owned manufacturing facilities, and injury rates continue to be low.We sponsor a global wellness program designed to enhance wellbeing for all HP employees.
Throughout the year, we encourage healthy behaviors across our five pillars of wellnessa€”physical, financial, emotional, life balance, and social/communitya€”through regular communications,
educational sessions, voluntary progress tracking, wellness challenges, and other incentives. In addition to our regular annual wellbeing programs, we provide specialized programs and
campaigns in line with employee needs at the time. Our campaign this year, &€meElevate Your Everyday,a€ encouraged employees to challenge themselves to embrace new experiences and



opportunities for personal development, all with the help of HP-provided mindfulness apps, targeted mental health support, individual assessments, and expanded financial wellbeing programs.
9Table of ContentsInformation about our Executive OfficersThe following are our current executive officers:Alex Cho; age 52; President, Personal SystemsMr.A Cho has served as President,
Personal Systems since June 2018. From 2014 to 2018, Mr.A Cho served as Global Head and General Manager of Commercial Personal Systems. Prior to that role, Mr. Cho served as the Vice
President and General Manager of the LaserJet Supplies team from 2010 to 2014.Julie Jacobs; age 58; Chief Legal Officer and General CounselMs. Jacobs has served as Chief Legal Officer and
General Counsel since October 2022. Previously, Ms. Jacobs served as Senior Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary of Yahoo, a leading internet, media, and
technology company, from September 2021 to October 2022. Prior to Yahoo, Ms. Jacobs served as Executive Vice President and General Counsel of Verizon Media, a global media and
technology company, from June 2017 to September 2021. Prior to Verizon Media, Ms. Jacobs spent over 16 years in various senior legal roles at AOL, a global internet, media and technology
company, including serving as AOLa€™s Executive Vice President, General Counsel, and Corporate Secretary from May 2010 to June 2017. Stephanie Liebman; age 55; Global ControllerMs.
Liebman has served as Global Controller since December 2023 and as Senior Vice President and Finance Chief Operations Officer at HP since February 2023. Prior to rejoining HP, she served
as Senior Vice President at NTT Data Services, a provider of IT and business services, from March 2019 to January 2023. Before that she spent over 21 years at HP in various roles including
Chief Audit Executive and Vice President of Enterprise Services Financial Operations. Ms. Liebman is a Certified Public Accountant.Enrique Lores; age 59; President and Chief Executive
OfficerMr.A Lores has served as President and Chief Executive Officer since November 2019. Throughout his over 30-year tenure with the company, Mr.A Lores held leadership positions across
the organization, serving as President, Printing, Solutions and Services from November 2015 to November 2019, and prior to that role, leading the Separation Management Office for HPA Inc.
Previously, Mr.A Lores was the Senior Vice President and General Manager for Business Personal Systems. Before his Business Personal Systems role, Mr.A Lores was Senior Vice President of
Customer Support and Services.Kristen Ludgate; age 62; Chief People OfficerMs. Ludgate has served as Chief People Officer since July 2021. Previously, Ms. Ludgate served as Executive Vice
President and Chief Human Resources Officer at 3M, a global technology company, from June 2018 until July 2021. Ms. Ludgate held a wide range of leadership positions during her 17 years
with 3M, leading global teams in human resources, legal, compliance, and communications.David McQuarrie; age 49; Chief Commercial OfficerMr. McQuarrie has served as Chief Commercial
Officer since November 2022. Previously, Mr. McQuarrie served as Senior Vice President & General Manager, Personal Systems Category, from November 2021 to November 2022, Global
Head of Customer Support from November 2019 to November 2021, and Global Head of Print Business Management from January 2017 to October 2019. Prior to joining HP, Mr. McQuarrie
served in various sales leadership positions at global personal computer and technology companies Lenovo (2008 to 2016) and Dell (1998 to 2007). Anneliese Olson; age 53; President of
Imaging, Printing & SolutionsMs. Olson has served as President of Imaging, Printing and Solutions since November 2024 and has over 28 years of experience at the Company. Previously, she
served as Senior Vice President & Managing Director, North America Market, and prior to that as Senior Vice President & Chief Operating Officer, Worldwide Print.Karen L. Parkhill; age 59;
Chief Financial OfficerMs. Parkhill has served as Chief Financial Officer since August 2024. Previously, she served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Medtronic plc, a
healthcare technology company, a position she held since June 2016. Prior to Medtronic, Ms. Parkhill served as Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer of Comerica Incorporated, a financial
services company, from 2011 to 2016. Ms. Parkhill was a member of Comericad€™s Management Executive Committee and the Comerica Bank Board of Directors. Prior to joining Comerica,
Ms. Parkhill worked for J.P. Morgan Chase & Co., a financial services company, in various capacities from 1992 to 2011, including serving as Chief Financial Officer of the Commercial Banking
business from 2007 to 2011.10Table of ContentsAvailable InformationOur Annual Report on FormA 10-K, Quarterly Reports on FormA 10-Q, Current Reports on FormA 8-K and amendments to
reports filed or furnished pursuant to SectionsA 13(a) and 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, are available free of charge on our website at http://investor.hp.com, as
soon as reasonably practicable after HP electronically files such reports with, or furnishes those reports to, the Securities and Exchange Commission. HP4€™ s Corporate Governance
Guidelines, Board of Directorsa€™ committee charters (including the charters of the Audit Committee, Finance, Investment and Technology Committee, HR and Compensation Committee, and
Nominating, Governance and Social Responsibility Committee) and code of ethics entitled &€celntegrity at HP4€ (none of which are incorporated by reference herein) are also available at that
same location on our website. If the Board grants any waivers from Integrity at HP to any of our directors or executive officers, or if we amend Integrity at HP, we will, if required, disclose these
matters via updates to our website atA http://investor.hp.com on a timely basis. We encourage investors to visit our website from time to time, as information is updated and new information is
posted.A The content of our website is not incorporated by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K or in any other report or document we file with the SEC, and any references to our
website are intended to be inactive textual references only.Stockholders may request free copies of these documents from:HPA Inc.Attention: Investor Relations1501 Page Mill Road,Palo Alto,
CA 94304http://investor.hp.com/resources/information-request/default.aspxAdditional InformationMicrosoftA® and WindowsA® are either registered trademarks or trademarks of Microsoft
Corporation in the United States and/or other countries. IntelA® is a trademark of Intel Corporation or its subsidiaries in the United States and/or other countries. AMD is a trademark of
Advanced Micro Devices,A Inc. Googled, ¢ and Google Chromea, ¢ are trademarks of Google LLC. NVIDIA is a trademark of NVIDIA Corporation in the United States and/or other countries. All
other trademarks are the property of their respective owners.11Table of ContentsITEM 1A. Risk Factors.The following discussion of risk factors contains forward-looking statements. These risk
factors may be important for understanding any statement in this Form 10-K or elsewhere. The following information should be particularly read in conjunction with Part I, Item I,
a€ceBusinessa€ and Part II, Item 7, a€ceManagementa€™ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operationsa€ and the Consolidated Financial Statements and related
notes in Part II, Item 8, &€ceFinancial Statements and Supplementary Dataa€ of this Form 10-K.The risks we describe in this Form 10-K or in our other SEC filings or additional risks and
uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently believe to be immaterial could, in ways we may not be able to accurately predict, recognize or control, have a material adverse
effect on our business, reputation, financial position, results of operations, cash flows and stock price, and they could cause our future results to be materially different than we presently
anticipate. STRATEGIC AND OPERATIONAL RISKSIf we cannot successfully execute our strategy and continue to develop, manufacture and market innovative products, services and solutions,
our business and financial performance may suffer.To execute our strategy, we must, among other things, optimize our cost structure, make long-term investments, develop or acquire and
appropriately protect intellectual property, commit significant research and development and other resources, evolve our go-to-market strategy and business model to meet changing market
dynamics, forces and demand. In addition, we need to innovate, develop and execute on evolutionary strategies in a rapidly changing and increasingly hybrid environment, seize on disruptive
opportunities and effectively respond to secular trends and shifts in customer preferences. Our financial performance will depend in part on our ability to remain competitive in offerings geared
towards new or emerging market trends, such as artificial intelligence and hybrid consumption. For example, in fiscal year 2024 we experienced continued demand softness in printing products
and solutions and we believe we and others in our industry face continuing secular challenges related to, among other things, decreased demand for printing products and solutions as a result
of increased digitization and hybrid work, and increasing competition from generic alternatives. We also need to ensure our existing offerings in this space, such as managed services and print
software, remain sufficiently differentiated. Our efforts to mitigate the impact of these challenges, such as by seeking to increase our margin and market share and drive demand in subscription
services and other recurring-revenue based business models, may not be successful, and shifting to recurring-revenue based business may require us to forego upfront revenue. In addition, we
may be unable to successfully execute our strategy, sufficiently invest in, prioritize research and development, market and scale, or accurately project the financial performance of our key
growth areas, other strategic growth initiatives and existing offerings, accurately predict technological or business trends or control costs. Moreover, the process of developing new high-
technology products, services and solutions and enhancing existing products, services and solutions, including through the introduction of Al capabilities, is complex, costly and uncertain, and
we may be unable to anticipate or respond to customersa€™ changing needs, accurately identify emerging technological trends or accurately project the demand, pricing, or other market
dynamics of such trends. Our ability to successfully offer our products, services and solutions in this rapidly evolving market requires an effective planning, forecasting, and management
process to enable us to effectively calibrate and adjust our business and business models in response to fluctuating market opportunities and conditions. This effort includes execution of
effective go-to-market plans, which may require us to evolve our talent and capabilities, incentive plans (especially for evolution to recurring revenue business), and coverage models. In
addition, we may be unable to appropriately prioritize and balance our initiatives or effectively manage change throughout our organization. Our industry is subject to rapid and substantial
innovation, technological change and customer preferences. Even if we successfully develop new products, solutions and technologies, future products, solutions and technologies, including
those created by our competitors, may eventually supplant ours if we are unable to keep pace with technological advances and end-user requirements and preferences and timely enhancement
of our existing products and technologies or develop new ones. As a result, we could lose market share and certain of our products, solutions and technologies may be rendered uneconomical or
obsolete.After we develop a product, we must be able to quickly manufacture appropriate volumes while also managing costs and preserving or improving margins. To accomplish this, we must
accurately forecast volumes, mixes of products and configurations that meet customer and legal requirements, and we may not succeed in doing so within a given producta€™s lifecycle or at
all. Any delay in the development, production or marketing of a new product, service or solution could result in us not being among the first to market, which could further harm our competitive
position. Moreover, new products and services may not be profitable, and even if they are profitable, the operating margins may not be as high as the historical or anticipated margins.12Table
of ContentsWe expect the proliferation of Al to have a significant impact on our industry and the markets in which we compete, and the development and use of AI presents competitive,
reputational, and liability risks.We believe the proliferation of Al, especially as it relates to our product and solutions offerings, will have a significant impact on customer preferences and
market dynamics in our industry, and our ability to effectively compete in this space will be critical to our financial performance. We also believe that the effective use of Al in our internal
operations is important to our long-term success. We are working to incorporate Al capabilities into our consumer and commercial products and solutions, as well as across the company in our
own internal operations, and our research into and continued development of such technologies remain ongoing. As with many innovations, Al presents risks, challenges, and unintended
consequences that could affect its rate and success of adoption, and therefore our business, and there is no guarantee that our use of Al or incorporation of AI capabilities into our products and
solutions will benefit our business operations or result in products and solutions that are preferred by our customers. We have invested, and expect to continue to invest, significant resources to
build and support our AI products. If our AI products fail to operate as anticipated or as well as competing products or otherwise do not meet customer needs or if we are unable to bring Al-
enabled products and solutions to market as effectively, or with the same speed or in the same volumes, as our competitors, we may fail to recoup our investments in AI or improve our financial
performance, our competitive position may be harmed, and our business and reputation may be adversely impacted. Moreover, our actions to drive demand to Al products may result in
cannibalization of demand for our traditional, non-Al products. In addition, Al algorithms may be flawed. Datasets may be insufficient or contain biased information. AI models deployed by us or
our partners may lead to unexpected or unintended outcomes that could erode trust in our Al products and solutions and potentially cause harm to individuals or society. These deficiencies and
other failures of Al systems could subject us to competitive harm, regulatory action, legal liability, including under new proposed legislation regulating Al in jurisdictions such as the U.S. and
European Union, new applications of existing data protection, privacy, intellectual property, and other laws, and brand or reputational harm. Additionally, our obligations to comply with the
evolving legal and regulatory landscape could entail significant costs or limit our ability to incorporate certain Al capabilities into our products and solutions. Some Al capabilities also present
ethical issues, and we may be unsuccessful in identifying or resolving issues before they arise. If we enable or offer Al products or solutions or implement Al capabilities in our internal
operations that are controversial because of their impact on human rights, the environment, privacy, employment, or other social, economic, or political issues, we may experience brand or
reputational harm or greater employee attrition.We are heavily dependent on third-party suppliers and supply chain issues have adversely affected, and could adversely affect in the future, our
financial results.We have at times operated in a supply-constrained environment and have faced, and may face in the future, component shortages, logistics challenges and manufacturing
disruptions that impact our revenues, profitability and cash flows. We are heavily dependent on third-party suppliers and their ability to deliver sufficient key components, products and services
at reasonable prices and in time for us to meet schedules for the delivery of our products and services. In addition, our operations depend on our ability to anticipate and our suppliersa€™
ability to fulfill, our needs for sufficient key components, products and services (including sourcing matched sets). Given the wide variety of products and services we offer, the large and diverse
distribution of our suppliers and contract manufacturers, and the long lead times required to manufacture, assemble and deliver certain components and products, problems have and could
continue to arise in production, planning and inventory management. Third-party suppliers may have limited financial resources to withstand challenging business conditions, particularly as a
result of increased interest rates or emerging market volatility, and our business could be negatively impacted if key suppliers are forced to cease or limit their operations. Changes or additions
to our supply chain require considerable time and resources and involve significant risks and uncertainties.We also have experienced, and may experience in the future, gross margin declines in
certain businesses, reflecting the effect of competitive pricing pressures and increases in component and manufacturing costs resulting from higher labor and material costs borne by our
manufacturers and suppliers that we are unable to pass on to our customers. Our business may be disrupted if we are unable to obtain equipment, parts or components from our
suppliersa€”and our suppliers from their suppliersa€”due to the insolvency of key suppliers or the inability of key suppliers to obtain credit, or if any of our distributors lack sufficient financial
resources to withstand economic weakness. In addition, our ongoing efforts to optimize the efficiency of our supply chain for cost or redundancy could cause supply disruptions and be more
expensive, time-consuming and resource-intensive than expected. Furthermore, certain of our suppliers and OMs may decide to discontinue business with us or limit the allocation of products
to us, which could result in our inability to fill our supply needs, jeopardizing our ability to fulfill our contractual obligations, which could in turn, result in a decrease in sales, profitability and
cash flows, contract penalties or terminations, and damage to customer relationships. 13Table of ContentsIn addition, our business is subject to the following specific supply chain related
risks:4€¢Component shortages. We have at times experienced and may in the future experience a shortage of, or a delay in receiving, certain components as a result of strong demand, capacity
constraints, supplier financial weaknesses, disputes with suppliers (some of whom are also our customers), disruptions in the operations of component suppliers, supplier ability to demonstrate
regulatory compliance, regulatory restrictions on specific components in certain markets, other problems experienced by suppliers or problems we face during the transition to new suppliers.
For example, a market shortage of integrated circuits and panels and other component supply has at times affected, and may affect in the future, lead times, the cost of that supply, and our
ability to meet customer demand for our products. Additionally, our Personal Systems business relies heavily upon OMs to manufacture our products and we are therefore dependent upon the
continuing operations of those OMs. We represent a substantial portion of the business for certain OMs, and changes to the nature or volume of our business transactions with a particular OM
could adversely affect the OM and lead to shortages or delays in receiving component products from that OM. Increased demand for particular components due to industry trends, including
components required for the operation of Al, may lead to shortages, delays, and price increases. Our anticipation of these and other supply chain dynamics may result in us purchasing
components in greater volumes and on earlier schedules in order to secure an adequate supply, which could adversely affect our working capital and cash flow. If shortages or delays in
component products occur, the price of certain components may increase, we may be exposed to quality issues, or the components may not be available at all. We may not be able to secure
enough components at reasonable prices or of acceptable quality to build products or provide services in a timely manner in the quantities needed or according to our specifications.
Accordingly, we may lose time-sensitive sales, incur additional freight costs or be unable to pass on price increases to our customers due to such component shortages or delays. If we cannot
adequately address a component supply issue, we may have to re-engineer some product or service offerings, which could result in further costs and delays.a€¢Sourcing inventory planning. In
order to secure components for our products or services, we have and may continue to make advance payments to suppliers or enter into non-cancelable commitments with vendors. In addition,
we have and may continue to strategically purchase components in advance of demand to take advantage of favorable pricing or to address concerns about future availability, which could
adversely affect our working capital and cash flow. If we fail to anticipate customer demand, an oversupply could result in excess or obsolete components.a€¢Contractual terms. As a result of
binding long-term price or purchase commitments with vendors, we may be obligated to purchase components or services at prices that are higher than those available in the current market
and may be limited in our ability to respond to changing market conditions. If we commit to purchasing components or services for prices in excess of the then-current market price, we may be



at a disadvantage to competitors who have access to components or services at lower prices, our gross margin could suffer, and we could incur additional charges relating to inventory
obsolescence. In addition, many of our competitors obtain products or components from the same OMs and suppliers that we utilize. Our competitors may obtain better pricing, more favorable
contractual terms and conditions, or more favorable allocations of products and components, and our ability to engage in relationships with certain OMs and suppliers could be limited. The
practice employed by our Personal Systems business of purchasing product components and transferring those components to OMs may create large supplier receivables with the OMs that,
depending on the financial condition of the OMs, may create collectability risks. In addition, to secure components, we may accept contractual terms and conditions that are less favorable to us.
4€¢Contingent workers. We also rely on third-party suppliers for the provision of contingent workers, and our failure to effectively manage this workforce could adversely affect our financial
results. Our ability to manage the costs associated with engaging a contingent workforce may be impacted by evolving local labor rights laws.4€¢Working conditions, human rights and
materials sourcing. Our brand perception, customer loyalty and legal compliance could be adversely impacted by a suppliera€™ s improper practices or failure to comply with our requirements
for environmentally, socially or legally responsible practices and sourcing, including sub-tier sourcing.14Table of Contentsa€¢Single-source suppliers. We obtain a significant number of
components from a single source due to technology, availability, price, quality or other considerations. For example, we rely on Canon for certain laser printer engines and laser toner cartridges
and certain key suppliers for application specific integrated circuits (a€ceASICsa€). We also rely on Intel, AMD and NVIDIA to provide us with a sufficient supply of processors for the majority of
our PCs and workstations. Some of those processors may be customized for our products. New products that we introduce may utilize custom components obtained initially from only one source
until we have determined whether there is a need for additional suppliers. Replacing a single-source supplier could delay production of some products as replacement suppliers may be subject
to capacity constraints or other output limitations. For some components, alternative sources may not exist or may be unable to produce the quantities of those components necessary to satisfy
our production requirements. In certain circumstances, we purchase components from single-source suppliers under short-term agreements that contain favorable pricing and other terms, but
that may be unilaterally modified or terminated by the supplier with limited notice and with little or no penalty. The performance of single-source suppliers under those agreements (and the
renewal or extension of those agreements upon similar terms) may affect the quality, quantity and price of our components. The loss of, deterioration of our relationship with, or limits in
allocation by, a single-source supplier, or any unilateral modification to the contractual terms under which we are supplied components by a single-source supplier could adversely affect our
business and financial performance. An adverse litigation outcome, including an injunction in an IP litigation, against a single-source supplier, could also significantly impact our ability to make
and sell products utilizing that suppliera€™s components.a€¢Geographic concentration. Our manufacturing facilities and suppliers have historically been, and continue to be, geographically
concentrated in certain regions, which could exacerbate the risks noted above. While we are undertaking initiatives to diversify our manufacturing and supply chain footprint, such initiatives
require significant investment and time and have been and can continue to be subject to regulatory, continuity, operational, geopolitical and other hurdles, and there can be no assurance that
these initiatives will be successful.Our business and financial performance could suffer if we do not manage the risks associated with our services businesses properly.The success of our
services business (such as our managed print services, digital services, consumer subscriptions and other workforce services in both Printing and Personal Systems) depends to a significant
degree on attracting, retaining, and maintaining or increasing the level of revenues from our customers. Our standard services agreements are generally renewable at a customera€™ s option
and/or subject to early termination rights. We may not be able to retain or renew services contracts with our customers, or our customers may reduce the scope of the services for which they
contract. Factors that may influence contract termination, non-renewal or reduction include business downturns, dissatisfaction with our services or products, our retirement or lack of support
for our services, our customers selecting alternative technologies, the cost of our services as compared to our competitors, general market conditions, a lower than investment grade credit
rating or other reasons. We may not be able to replace the revenue and earnings from lost customers or reductions in services. While our services agreements may include penalties for early
termination, these penalties may not fully cover our investments in these businesses. Our customers could also delay or terminate implementations or use of our services or choose not to invest
in additional services from us in the future. In addition, the pricing and other terms of certain services agreements require us to make estimates and assumptions at the time we enter into these
contracts that could differ from actual results. Any increased or unexpected costs or unanticipated delays in connection with the performance of these contracts, which may increase as services
become more customized, could make these agreements less profitable or unprofitable. Certain service-oriented business models, such as the &€cedevice as a serviced€ model under which
customers rent a hardware device for a periodic fee within a managed solution that provides professional services, software, support, monitoring and other services, may not generate net new
sales for customers who previously purchased our hardware transactionally. The device as a service model also requires the participation of a third-party financing provider, and we may face
challenges in finding such providers who are willing to provide financing on acceptable terms or at all. In addition, from time to time we offer new services for which customer demand and
adoption rates are difficult to predict, and we may not be able to scale these services as we expect. As a result, we may not generate the revenues, profits or cash flows we may have anticipated
from our services business within the expected timelines, if at all. We operate in an intensely competitive industry and competitive pressures could harm our business and financial
performance.We encounter aggressive competition in all areas of our business, and our competitors have targeted and are expected to continue targeting our key market segments. We compete
on the basis of our technology, innovation, performance, price, quality, reliability, brand, reputation, distribution, range of products and services, ease of use, account relationships, customer
training, service and support, security, availability of application software and internet infrastructure offerings, and our sustainability performance. We have faced, and may continue to face,
declines in market share for our products. If our products, services, support and cost structure do not enable us to compete successfully, our results of operations, cash flows and business
prospects could be affected.We have a large portfolio of products and must allocate our financial, personnel and other resources across our products while competing with companies that have
smaller portfolios or specialize in one or more of our product lines. Because of the size and scope of our portfolio, we may invest a greater percentage of our revenues, including on research and
development, than some of our competitors. As a result, we may invest less in certain areas of our business than our competitors, and our competitors may have greater financial, technical and
marketing resources available for their products and services, compared to the resources allocated to 15Table of Contentsour competing products and services, or greater economies of scale,
which could in turn result in our loss of market share. Our actions to mitigate the impact of these dynamics, such as reducing the size of our product portfolio, may not be successful. In addition,
if we cannot proportionately decrease our cost structure on a timely basis in response to competitive pricing pressures, our gross margin, profitability and cash flows could be adversely
affected.Our alliance partners in certain areas may be or may become our competitors in others. In addition, these partners also may acquire or form alliances with our competitors, which could
reduce their business with us. We have faced and expect to continue to face aggressive price competition and have lowered and may in the future need to lower the prices of many of our
products and services to stay competitive, while at the same time trying to maintain or improve our market share, revenue and gross margin. Competitors who have a greater presence in some
of the lower-cost markets in which we compete, or who can obtain better pricing, more favorable contractual terms and conditions, and/or more favorable allocations of products and
components, have been able to offer and may continue to be able to offer lower prices than we are able to offer. Price competition often increases during periods of lower demand, including as a
result of declining macroeconomic conditions. The sales prices for our products may also decline as a result of discounts, a change in or mix of products and services, anticipation of the
introduction of new products and services by us or by our competitors, promotional programs, product and related warranty costs or broader macroeconomic factors. We may also provide
pricing discounts to large customers, which may result in lower margins for the period in which the sales occur. In addition, currency fluctuations, particularly weakness in the Japanese Yen,
has and may continue to exacerbate pricing competition for our print products and services.Industry consolidation may also affect competition by creating larger, more homogeneous and
potentially stronger competitors in the markets in which we operate. Our competitors may also affect our business by entering into exclusive arrangements with our existing or potential
customers or suppliers. Furthermore, non-original supplies (including imitation, refill or remanufactured alternatives), which are often available at lower prices, compete with our Printing
Supplies business. We may not be able to prevent the use of imitation print supplies with our printers using technological protection measures, including due to regulatory issues or other legal
challenges. In addition, online and omnichannel retailers, resellers and distributors often sell our products alongside competing products, including non-original supplies, or they may highlight
the availability of lower cost non-original supplies. We expect this competition will continue.If we cannot continue to produce high-quality and secure products and services, our reputation,
business and financial performance may suffer.In the course of conducting our business, we must address quality and security issues associated with our products and services, including
potential flaws in our engineering, design and manufacturing processes, unsatisfactory performance under service contracts, and unsatisfactory performance or malicious acts by third-parties.
Many of our products and services, including those which incorporate Al capabilities, are dependent on third-party software, including from Microsoft and Google, to function as intended, and
product issues also sometimes result from the interaction between our products and third-party products and software. Our business is also exposed to the risk of defects in third-party
components or materials included in our products, including security vulnerabilities. The products and services that we offer are complex, and our regular testing and quality control efforts may
not be completely effective in controlling or detecting all quality and security issues or errors, particularly with respect to undiscovered defects or security vulnerabilities in components
manufactured by third parties.If we are unable to determine the cause or find an effective solution to address quality or security issues with our products, we may delay shipment to customers,
which would delay revenue recognition and receipt of customer payments. We have and may again in the future write off some or all of the value of non-performing inventory. In addition, after
products are delivered, quality and security issues may require us to repair or replace such products. Addressing these issues can be expensive and may result in additional warranty, repair,
replacement and other costs. In the event of security vulnerabilities or other issues with third-party components, we may have to rely on third parties to provide mitigation, which may be
ineffective. Further, adapting our products and services to meet new regulatory requirements can be costly and cause uncertainties and business disruption. Quality and security issues,
including those resulting from defects or security vulnerabilities in third-party components, can impair our relationships with new or existing customers and adversely affect our brand and
reputation. The proliferation of social media may increase the likelihood, speed, and magnitude of negative brand and reputation events.16Table of ContentsThird-party claims of IP
infringement are commonplace in our industry and may limit or disrupt our ability to sell our products and services.We are subject to third party claims that we or customers indemnified by us
are infringing upon such partiesa€™ IP rights. We have seen an increasing trend of patent assertion entities and operating companies with licensing businesses engaging in claims of
infringement and assertion of patents to extract settlements to avoid significant business disruption, including the assertion of patents related to standardized technologies, such as Wi-Fi or
video. The patent litigation environment has also become more challenging due to the emergence of venues adopting procedural and substantive rules and practices that make them more
favorable for patent asserters, including the availability of preliminary and permanent injunctions for non-competitors. If we cannot or do not license allegedly infringed IP at all or on
reasonable terms, or if we are required to substitute technology from another source, our operations could be adversely affected. Even if we believe that IP claims are without merit, they can be
time-consuming and costly to defend against and may divert managementa€™ s attention and resources away from our business. Claims of IP infringement have and may require us to redesign
affected products, enter into costly settlements or license agreements, pay damage awards, or face a temporary or permanent injunction prohibiting us from importing, marketing or selling
certain products. Additionally, claims of IP infringement may adversely impact our brand and reputation and imperil new and existing customer relationships.In certain countries (primarily in
Europe), proceedings are ongoing or have been concluded in which groups representing copyright owners seek to impose upon and collect from us levies upon IT equipment (such as PCs and
printers). There have also been efforts to introduce, modify or extend existing levy schemes and to increase the amount of the levies that can be collected from us. The total amount of the
copyright levies depends on several factors, and could be substantial. The ultimate impact of these copyright levies or similar fees, and our ability to recover such amounts through increased
prices, remains uncertain.The terms of the separation of Hewlett Packard Enterprise and us include licenses and other arrangements to provide for certain ongoing use of intellectual property
in the operations of both Hewlett Packard Enterprise and us. For example, through a joint brand holding structure, both Hewlett Packard Enterprise and we retain the ability to make ongoing
use of certain variations of the legacy Hewlett-Packard and HP branding, respectively. As a result of this continuing shared use of the legacy branding there is a risk that conduct or events
adversely affecting the reputation of Hewlett Packard Enterprise could also adversely affect our reputation.Our operating results have historically varied and may not be indicative of future
results.Our net revenue, gross margin, profit and cash flow generation vary among our portfolio of products and services, customer groups and geographic markets and therefore will likely vary
in future periods. Overall gross margins and profitability in any given period are dependent on the product, service, customer and geographic mix reflected in that perioda€™s net revenue,
which in turn depends on the overall demand for our products and services. We have experienced and may in the future experience delays or reductions in spending by our customers or
potential customers, which could have a material adverse effect on demand for our products and services and could result in a significant decline in net revenue. For example, we observed
continued market uncertainty, cautious commercial spending on information technology hardware, lower discretionary consumer spending, secular declines in demand for certain products or
solutions, including printing products and solutions, inflationary pressures, and foreign currency fluctuations. In addition, net revenue declines in some of our businesses may affect net revenue
in our other businesses, as we may lose cross-selling opportunities. Moreover, newer geographic markets can be relatively less profitable due to our investments associated with entering those
markets and local pricing pressures, as well as difficulty establishing and maintaining the operating infrastructure necessary to support the high growth rate associated with some of those
markets. Our efforts to address the challenges facing our business could increase the level of variability in our financial results because the rate at which we are able to realize the benefits from
those efforts may vary from period to period. These factors could also make it difficult to accurately forecast revenues and operating results and could negatively affect our ability to provide
accurate forecasts to suppliers and manufacturers, manage our relationships and other expenses and to make decisions about future investments.If we fail to manage the distribution of our
products and services properly, our business and financial performance could suffer.We use a variety of distribution methods to sell our products and services around the world, including third-
party resellers and distributors and both direct and indirect sales to enterprise accounts and consumers. Successfully managing our global, multi-tier distribution network including the
interaction of our direct sales and indirect channel sales efforts to reach potential customer segments for our products and services is a complex process. Moreover, since each distribution
method has distinct risks and gross margins, we may fail to implement the most advantageous balance in the delivery model for our products and services.17Table of ContentsConflicts might
arise between our various distribution channels, we may experience the loss or deterioration of an alliance or distribution arrangement or a reduced assortment of our products, we may not be
able to limit the potential misuse of pricing programs by our channel partners and we may fail to optimize the use of our pricing programs. Moreover, some of our channel partners and
distributors may have insufficient financial resources and may not be able to withstand changes in business conditions, including economic weakness, industry consolidation and market trends.
They may also have difficulty selling our products under new business models. Many of our significant distributors operate on narrow margins and have been negatively affected by business
pressures in the past. Additionally, in certain regions, we rely on a limited number of distributors, which could exacerbate these risks. Trade receivables that are not covered by collateral or
credit insurance are outstanding with our distribution and retail channel partners. Net revenue from indirect sales could suffer, and we could experience disruptions in distribution, if our
distributorsa€™ financial conditions, abilities to borrow funds or operations weaken or if our distributors cannot successfully compete in the online or omnichannel marketplace. Our inventory
management is complex, as we continue to sell a significant mix of products through distributors. We must manage both owned and channel inventory effectively, particularly with respect to
sales to distributors, which involves forecasting demand and pricing (and factoring in supply chain challenges and order cancellations). Our forecasts do not always accurately predict demand,
and distributors have and may continue to increase orders during periods of product shortages, cancel orders if their inventory is too high or delay orders in anticipation of new products.
Distributors also may adjust their orders in response to the supply of our products and the products of our competitors and seasonal fluctuations in end-user demand. Our reliance upon indirect
distribution methods, including a multi-tiered channel, may reduce our visibility into inventories, demand and pricing trends. Elevated channel inventory can result in adverse impacts to
demand and pricing for our products, the extent and timing of which are difficult to predict with precision or sometimes at all. Accordingly, our distribution model makes forecasting and
managing multi-tiered channel inventory more difficult. If we were to expand direct distribution initiatives, channel and indirect distributors could consider such initiatives in conflict with their



business interests and reduce their investment in the distribution and sale of our products, or cease all sales of our products. Sales of our products by channel partners to unauthorized resellers
or unauthorized resale of our products has and could continue to make our forecasting and channel inventory management more difficult and impact pricing in the market. For example, in the
past we have had channel partners sell products outside of their agreed territory, and misrepresent sales to unauthorized resellers as sales to end-users, frustrating our efforts to estimate
channel inventory or maintain consistent pricing, and negatively impacting gross margins. Moreover, our use of indirect distribution channels may limit our willingness or ability to adjust prices
quickly and otherwise to respond to pricing changes by competitors. In addition, factors in different markets may cause differential discounting among the geographies where our products are
sold, which makes it difficult to achieve global consistency in pricing and creates the opportunity for grey marketing. In addition, our global channel partners may fail to comply with applicable
legal and regulatory requirements. Our uneven sales cycle makes planning and inventory management difficult and future financial results less predictable.Our quarterly sales often have
reflected a pattern in which a disproportionate percentage of each quartera€™s total sales occurs towards the end of the quarter. This uneven sales pattern makes predicting net revenue,
earnings, cash flow from operations and working capital for each financial period difficult, increases the risk of unanticipated variations in our quarterly results and financial condition, and
places pressure on our inventory management and logistics systems. If orders fall short of predicted demand, this results in excess inventory. Alternatively, if orders exceed predicted demand,
we may not be able to fulfill all of the orders received in each quarter and such orders may be canceled by the customer. Depending on when they occur in a quarter, developments such as a
systems failure, component pricing movements, component shortages, supply disruptions, logistics challenges or declines in demand could adversely impact our inventory levels, our results of
operations and cash flows in a manner that is disproportionate to the number of days in the quarter affected. We experience seasonal trends in the sale of our products that may produce
variations in our quarterly results and financial condition. For example, sales to governments (particularly, sales to the U.S. government) are often stronger in the third calendar quarter, and
many customers whose fiscal year is the calendar year spend their remaining capital budget authorizations in the fourth calendar quarter. Consumer sales are often higher in the fourth
calendar quarter due in part to seasonal holiday demand, and our fourth fiscal quarter ending October 31 has typically been our strongest quarter by revenues. European sales are often weaker
during the summer months. Demand during the spring and early summer may also be adversely impacted by market anticipation of seasonal trends. However, historical seasonal patterns may
not continue in the future and such patterns have been and may be impacted by supply constraints, macroeconomic conditions, such as an economic slowdown or inflationary pressures, shifts in
customer behavior and the impacts of pandemics or other public health crises. Moreover, to the extent that we introduce new products in anticipation of seasonal demand trends, our
discounting of existing products may adversely affect our gross margins. Many of the factors that create and affect seasonal trends are beyond our control.18Table of ContentsIn order to be
successful, we must attract, retain, train, motivate, develop and transition key employees, and failure to do so could seriously harm us.In order to be successful, we must attract, hire, retain,
train, motivate, develop, and deploy qualified executives, engineers, technical staff and other key employees. Identifying, developing internally or hiring externally, training and retaining
qualified executives, engineers and qualified sales representatives are critical to our future, and competition for experienced employees in the technology industry can be intense. Equity-based
compensation is essential for attracting and retaining qualified employees and lack of positive performance in our stock price may adversely affect our ability to attract or retain key employees.
In addition, workforce dynamics are constantly evolving and we may not be able to manage changing workforce dynamics successfully. Moreover, changes in immigration policies may impair
our ability to recruit and hire technical and professional talent globally. Further, changes in our management team may be disruptive to our business, and we may be unable to successfully
transition and assimilate key new hires or promoted employees or successfully execute succession plans.Our financial performance may suffer if we cannot develop, obtain, license or enforce
the intellectual property rights on which our businesses depend.We rely upon patent, copyright, trademark, trade secret and other IP laws in the United States, similar laws in other countries,
and agreements with our employees, customers, suppliers and other parties, to establish and maintain IP rights in the products and services we sell, provide or otherwise use in our operations.
However, our IP rights could be challenged, invalidated, infringed or circumvented, or such IP rights may not be sufficient to permit us to take advantage of current market trends or to
otherwise provide competitive advantages, either of which could result in costly product redesign efforts, discontinuance of certain product offerings or other harm to our competitive position.
In addition, we may choose to not apply for patent protection or may fail to apply for patent protection in a timely fashion. Further, the laws of certain countries do not protect proprietary rights
to the same extent as the laws of the United States. Therefore, in certain jurisdictions we may be unable to protect our proprietary technology adequately against unauthorized third-party
copying or use, which could adversely affect our ability to sell products or services and our competitive position. In addition, certain of our businesses and products rely on key technologies
developed or licensed by third parties. We may not be able to obtain or continue to obtain licenses and technologies from these third parties at all or on reasonable terms, or such third parties
may demand cross-licenses to our IP. Third-party components may become obsolete, defective or incompatible with future versions of our products, our relationship with the third party may
deteriorate, or our agreements may expire or be terminated. We may face legal or business disputes with licensors that may threaten or lead to the disruption of inbound licensing relationships.
In order to remain in compliance with the terms of our licenses, we must monitor and manage our use of third-party components, including both proprietary and open source license terms that
may require the licensing or public disclosure of our IP without compensation or on undesirable terms. Some of these licenses may not be available to us in the future on terms that are
acceptable or that allow our product offerings to remain competitive. In addition, it is possible that as a consequence of a merger or acquisition, third parties may obtain licenses to some of our
IP rights or our business may be subject to certain restrictions that were not in place prior to such transaction. Because the availability and cost of licenses from third parties depends upon the
willingness of third parties to deal with us on the terms we request, there is a risk that third parties who license to our competitors will either refuse to license to us or refuse to license to us on
terms equally favorable to those granted to our competitors. Consequently, we may lose a competitive advantage with respect to these IP rights or we may be required to enter into costly
arrangements in order to terminate or limit these rights. Finally, we may rely on third parties to enforce certain IP rights.System security risks, data protection breaches, cyberattacks, system
outages and systems integration issues could disrupt our internal operations or services provided to customers, and could reduce our revenue, increase our expenses, damage our reputation
and adversely affect our cash flows and stock price.We are exposed to cyberattacks seeking to penetrate our network security and misappropriate or compromise our confidential information or
that of third parties, create system disruptions or cause shutdowns. Such attacks may involve the deployment of ransomware and other malicious software programs that attack our products or
otherwise exploit security vulnerabilities, or attempt to fraudulently induce our employees, customers, or others to disclose passwords, other sensitive information or provide access to our
systems or data. Such risks extend not only to our own products, services, systems and networks, but also to those of customers, suppliers, contractors, business partners, vendors, and other
third parties, particularly as all parties increasingly digitize their operations. We engage a significant number of these third parties to assist us with various business functions that require the
use, storage, processing and deletion of data. While we make efforts to assess and validate the implementation of cybersecurity requirements and controls by these third parties with respect to
the services provided and the data handled on our behalf, there remains a risk of misappropriation, compromise or breach of data outside of our direct control. In addition, hardware and
operating system software and applications that we produce or procure from third parties may contain defects or vulnerabilities in design or manufacture, including &€oebugsa€ that could
unexpectedly interfere with the operation of the product. Breaches of our facilities, network, or data security could disrupt the security of our systems and business applications, impair our
ability to provide services to our customers and protect the privacy of their data, result in product development delays, compromise confidential or technical business information, harm our
reputation or competitive position, result in theft or misuse of our IP or other assets, require us to allocate more resources to improve technologies, or otherwise adversely affect our business
and financial results. 19Table of ContentsAdditionally, the costs to combat cyber or other security threats can be significant, and our efforts to address these problems may not be successful and
could result in interruptions, delays, cessation of service and loss of existing or potential customers that may impede our sales, manufacturing, distribution or other critical functions. Media or
other reports of perceived vulnerabilities in our network security, regardless of their immediacy or accuracy, could adversely impact our brand and reputation and materially affect our business
and financial results. While we have implemented security measures and internal controls designed to protect against cyber and other security threats, such measures cannot provide absolute
security and may not be successful in preventing future security breaches. Moreover, these threats are constantly evolving, thereby making it more difficult to successfully defend against them
or to implement adequate preventative measures. Certain vulnerabilities are difficult to detect even using our best efforts, which may allow those vulnerabilities to persist in our systems over
long periods of time. In the past, we have experienced data security incidents resulting from unauthorized access to or use of our systems or those of third parties, which to date, have not had a
material impact on our operations; however, there remains the possibility of a future data security incident that results in a material impact to the Company. Additionally, it may be difficult to
determine the best way to investigate, mitigate, contain, and remediate the harm caused by a data security incident. Such efforts may not be successful, and we may make errors or fail to take
necessary actions. It may take considerable time for us to investigate and evaluate the full impact of incidents, particularly for sophisticated attacks. These factors may inhibit our ability to
provide prompt, full, and reliable information about the incident to our customers, partners, regulators, and the public. Remote work and remote access to our systems has increased
significantly, which also increases our cybersecurity attack surface. We have also seen an increase in cyberattack volume, frequency, and sophistication driven by the global enablement of
remote workforces. Geopolitical tensions or conflicts may further heighten the risk of cybersecurity attacks. The emergence and maturation of Al capabilities may also lead to new and/or more
sophisticated methods of attack, including fraud that relies upon a€cedeep fakea€ impersonation technology or other forms of generative automation that may scale up the efficiency or
effectiveness of cybersecurity attacks. While we carry cyber insurance, we cannot be certain that our coverage will be adequate for liabilities actually incurred, that insurance will continue to be
available to us on economically reasonable terms, or at all, or that any insurer will not deny coverage as to any future claim.Because we process proprietary information and sensitive or
confidential data relating to our business (including data relating to employees, independent contractors and other personnel), our customers and third parties, breaches of our security
measures or accidental loss, inadvertent disclosure or unapproved dissemination of such data can expose us, our customers, third parties and the individuals affected to a risk of loss, alteration
or misuse of such information. A breach could also damage our brand and reputation or otherwise harm our business, and could result in government enforcement actions, litigation, civil
monetary penalties or fines and other potential liability for us. We are subject to federal, state, and international laws relating to privacy and data protection, particularly in the U.S., European
Union (such as the General Data Protection Regulation (4€eGDPR4€)) and China, and other countriesa€™ legislative and regulatory bodies are increasingly proposing new or more stringent
requirements relating to privacy and data protection. These laws and regulations continue to evolve, are increasing in complexity and number and increasingly conflict among the various
countries in which we operate, which has resulted in greater compliance risk and cost for us. In addition, the cost and operational consequences of implementing new privacy and data
protection measures could be significant. Portions of our IT infrastructure, including those provided by third parties, have experienced, and may experience in the future, interruptions, outages,
delays or cessations of service or may produce errors in connection with systems integrations, migration work or other causes, which could result in business disruptions. The process of
remediating these issues could be more expensive, time-consuming, disruptive and resource intensive than planned. Further, such disruptions could adversely impact our ability to fulfill orders
and respond to customer requests and interrupt other processes, resulting in delayed sales, lower margins, lost customers or reputational damage.We may not achieve some or all of the
expected benefits of our restructuring plans and our restructuring may adversely affect our business.We have undertaken and may undertake in the future restructuring plans in order to realign
our cost structure and to achieve operating efficiencies that we expect to reduce costs, including the plan announced in November 2022. Implementation of any restructuring plan may be costly
and disruptive to our business, and we may not be able to obtain the anticipated cost savings, operational improvements and estimated workforce reductions within the projected timing or at
all. Additionally, as a result of restructuring initiatives, we may experience a loss of continuity, loss of accumulated knowledge and/or inefficiency, loss of key employees and/or other retention
issues during transitional periods. Restructuring can require a significant amount of time and focus, which may divert attention from operating and growing our business. Moreover, projections
of any cost savings or other benefits associated with our restructuring plans are based on current business operations and market dynamics, and could be significantly impacted by various
factors, including but not limited to our evolving business models, future investment decisions, market environment and technology landscape. For more information about our restructuring
plans, see Note 3, &€mRestructuring and Other Chargesa€ to our Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8.20Table of ContentsWe may not be able to execute acquisitions, divestitures and
other significant transactions successfully and we may have difficulty or fail to successfully integrate acquired companies.As part of our business strategy, we may acquire companies or
businesses, divest businesses or assets, enter into strategic alliances and joint ventures, and make investments to further our business. Risks associated with these transactions include the
following:4€¢We may not fully realize the anticipated benefits of any particular transaction, in the timeframe we expected or at all, such transaction may be less profitable than anticipated or
unprofitable, we may not identify all factors to estimate accurately our costs, timing or other matters, and realizing the benefits of a particular transaction may depend upon competition, market
trends, additional costs or investments and the actions of advisors, suppliers or other third parties.d€¢Certain transactions have resulted, and in the future may result, in significant costs and
expenses, including those related to compensation and benefit costs, goodwill and impairment charges, charges from elimination of duplicative facilities and contracts, inventory adjustments,
assumed litigation and other liabilities, advisory fees, and payments to executive officers and key employees under retention plans.a€¢Our due diligence may fail to identify significant issues
with the targeta€™s product quality, financial disclosures, accounting practices or internal controls, including as a result of being dependent on the veracity and completeness of statements and
disclosures made or actions taken by third parties, or the assumptions or judgments we make with respect to our due diligence may be incorrect.a€¢In order to finance a transaction, we may
issue common stock (potentially creating dilution) or take on additional debt, which may adversely impact our credit rating.a€¢These transactions could adversely impact our effective tax
rate.a€¢An acquisition target may have differing or inadequate cybersecurity and data protection controls.a€¢These transactions may lead to litigation.In addition, if we fail to identify,
successfully complete and integrate transactions that further our strategic objectives, we may be required to expend resources to develop products, services and technology internally, which
may put us at a competitive disadvantage. In the case of a divestiture, we may have difficulty finding buyers or alternative exit strategies on acceptable terms in a timely manner. We may also
dispose of a business at a price or on terms that are less desirable than we had anticipated. In addition, we may experience fewer benefits than expected, and the impact of the divestiture on
our financial performance may be larger than projected. The business combination and investment transactions in which we engage may be large or complex, and we must manage post-closing
issues such as the integration of the acquired business. Integrations involve significant challenges and are often time-consuming and expensive and could significantly disrupt our business and
the acquired business. These challenges include successfully combining product and service offerings; entering or expanding into markets; retaining key employees; integrating employees,
facilities, technology, products, processes, operations (including supply and manufacturing operations), sales and distribution channels, business models and business systems; and retaining
customers and distributors.Our aspirations and disclosures related to environmental, social and governance (4€eESGA€) matters expose us to risks that could adversely affect our reputation
and performance. We have established and publicly announced ESG goals, including our commitments to address climate change, human rights, and digital equity. These statements reflect our
current plans and aspirations and are not guarantees that we will be able to achieve them. Our failure to adequately update, accomplish or accurately track and report on these goals on a timely
basis, or at all, or a decision to amend, retire, or stop reporting on certain goals, or positions we take or do not take on social issues could adversely affect our reputation, financial performance
and growth, and expose us to increased scrutiny from the investment community, special interest groups, customers and enforcement authorities. In addition, there exists certain a€ceanti-
ESGa€ sentiment among some individuals and government institutions, and we may also face scrutiny, reputational risk, lawsuits or market access restrictions from these parties regarding our
ESG initiatives.Our ability to achieve any ESG objective is subject to numerous risks, some of which are outside of our control. Examples of such risks include the availability and cost of low- or
non-carbon-based energy sources, the evolving regulatory requirements affecting product circularity, ESG standards or disclosures, the evolving consumer protection laws applicable to ESG
matters, the availability of materials and suppliers that can meet our sustainability, diversity and other ESG goals and the availability of funds to invest in ESG initiatives in times where we are
seeking to reduce costs.21Table of ContentsStandards for tracking and reporting ESG matters continue to evolve. Our selection of voluntary disclosure frameworks and standards, and the
interpretation or application of those frameworks and standards, may change from time to time or differ from those of others. Methodologies for reporting ESG data may be updated and



previously reported ESG data may be adjusted to reflect improvement in availability and quality of third-party data, changing assumptions, changes in the nature and scope of our operations
and other changes in circumstances. Our processes and controls for reporting ESG matters across our operations and supply chain are evolving along with multiple disparate standards for
identifying, measuring, and reporting ESG metrics, including ESG-related disclosures that are or may become required by the SEC, European and other regulators (including, but not limited to,
the EU Corporate Sustainability Reporting Directive, the EU Corporate Sustainability Due Diligence Directive, the state of Californiad€™s new climate change disclosure requirements, and
climate-change disclosure requirements from the SEC), and such standards may change over time, which could result in significant revisions to our current goals, reported progress in achieving
such goals, or ability to achieve such goals in the future. If our ESG practices do not meet evolving government, investor or other stakeholder expectations and standards, then our reputation or
our attractiveness as an investment, business partner, acquiror, product or service provider or employer could be negatively impacted and we could be subject to litigation or regulatory
proceedings.Some anti-takeover provisions contained in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws, as well as provisions of Delaware law, could impair a takeover attempt.Certain provisions in
our certificate of incorporation and bylaws and the Delaware General Corporation Law may discourage, delay or prevent changes of control of HP judged as undesirable by our Board of
Directors. These provisions include: authorizing blank check preferred stock, which we could issue with voting, liquidation, dividend and other rights superior to our common stock; limiting the
liability of, and providing indemnification to, our directors and officers; specifying that our stockholders may take action only at a duly called annual or special meeting of stockholders and
otherwise in accordance with our bylaws and limiting the ability of our stockholders to call special meetings; requiring advance notice of proposals by our stockholders for business to be
conducted at stockholder meetings and for nominations of candidates for election to our Board of Directors; and controlling the procedures for our Board of Directors and stockholder meetings,
and election, appointment and removal of our directors. These provisions could deter or delay hostile takeovers, proxy contests and changes in control or our management or limit the
opportunity for our stockholders to receive a premium for their shares of our stock. MACROECONOMIC, INDUSTRY AND FINANCIAL RISKSDue to the international nature of our business,
geopolitical or economic changes or events, uncertainty or other factors could harm our business and financial performance.Approximately 65% of our net revenue for fiscal year 2024 came
from outside the United States. In addition, we operate in emerging markets, which can be more volatile. Our future business and financial performance could suffer due to a variety of
international factors, including:a€¢instability in a countrya€™s or regiond€™ s economic, regulatory or political conditions, including inflation, recession, interest rate fluctuations, changes or
uncertainty in fiscal or monetary policy, actual or anticipated military or political conflicts, health emergencies or pandemics;a€¢the imposition by governments of additional taxes, tariffs or
other restrictions on foreign trade or changes in restrictions on trade between the United States and other countries where HP products are manufactured or sold, including China;a€¢trade
sanctions, embargoes, country localization requirements and import restrictions and other policies and regulations affecting production, shipping, pricing and marketing of products, including
policies adopted by any country that may favor domestic companies and technologies over foreign competitors;a€¢political sentiment impacting global trade, including the willingness of non-
U.S. consumers to purchase from U.S. corporations;a€¢local labor conditions and regulations, including labor issues faced by suppliers and OEMs, or immigration and labor laws which may
adversely impact our access to technical and professional talent; &€¢changes or uncertainty in international, national or local legal environments, including tax, data handling, privacy, artificial
intelligence, intellectual property, consumer protection, environmental and antitrust laws;a€¢import, export or other business licensing requirements or requirements relating to making foreign
direct investments, which could increase our cost of doing business, prevent us from shipping products, affect our ability to obtain favorable terms for components, increase our operating costs
or lead to penalties or restrictions;a€¢compliance with the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, U.S. export control and trade sanction laws, and similar anti-corruption and international trade
laws, and adverse consequences for any failure to comply, including compliance by recently acquired companies, which may have less robust internal compliance procedures; anda€
¢fluctuations in freight costs, limitations on shipping and receiving capacity, and other disruptions in the transportation and shipping infrastructure at important geographic points for our
products and shipments.22Table of ContentsThe factors described above also could disrupt our product and component manufacturing and key suppliers located outside of the United States
and our supply chain. For example, we rely on manufacturers in Taiwan to produce notebook computers and other suppliers in Asia for product assembly and manufacture and have
manufacturing operations in Israel which support our Industrial Graphics business. The impact of certain geopolitical conflicts (including any escalation or expansion thereof), such as the
ongoing military conflicts in Ukraine and the Middle East or tensions in the Taiwan Strait and South China Sea, and any broadening of ancillary geopolitical, economic, and other effects could
adversely impact these operations and could heighten the other risks identified in this report.Economic weakness and uncertainty is expected to continue to adversely affect demand for our
products and services and, as a result, our business and financial performance.Our business and financial performance depend on worldwide economic conditions and the demand for our
products and services. Ongoing economic weakness, including an economic slowdown or recession, uncertainty in markets throughout the world and other adverse economic conditions,
including inflation, changes in monetary policy, increased interest rates, tariffs, exchange rates and an evolving global trade environment, have resulted in, and may continue to result in,
decreased demand for our products and services and challenges in managing inventory levels and accurately forecasting revenue, gross margin, cash flows and expenses. For example, during
fiscal year 2024 we observed continued market uncertainty, cautious commercial spending on information technology hardware, including in China, lower discretionary consumer spending,
increasing commodity costs, inflationary pressures, and foreign currency fluctuations. Changes in government spending limits may continue to reduce demand for our products and services
from governments or organizations that receive government funding. Moreover, U.S. government contracts are subject to congressional funding, which at times has been and may in the future
be unavailable or delayed, which could impact our business.Prolonged or more severe economic weakness and uncertainty could also cause our expenses to vary materially from our
expectations. Financial turmoil affecting the banking system and financial markets or significant financial services institution failures could negatively impact our treasury operations or those of
our suppliers, vendors or customers, rapidly and without notice. Poor financial performance of asset markets and the adverse effects of fluctuating exchange rates could lead to higher pension
and post-retirement benefit expenses. Interest and other expenses could vary materially from expectations depending on interest rates, borrowing costs, exchange rates, costs of hedging and
the fair value of derivative instruments. Economic downturns also may lead to future restructuring actions and associated expenses.We are exposed to fluctuations in currency exchange rates,
which could adversely impact our results.Currencies other than the U.S. dollar, including the euro, the British pound, Indian rupee, Chinese yuan (renminbi) and the Japanese yen, can have an
impact on our results as expressed in U.S. dollars. Global events, trade disputes, economic sanctions, inflation, increasing interest rates and emerging market volatility, and the resulting
uncertainty, may cause currencies to fluctuate, which may contribute to variations in our sales in impacted jurisdictions. Because most of our revenues are generated outside the United States,
fluctuations in currency exchange rates have adversely affected, and could in the future adversely affect, our net revenue growth. In addition, currency variations can adversely affect margins
on sales of our products in countries outside of the United States and products that include components obtained from suppliers located outside of the United States, as well as our ability to
increase prices. In addition, currency fluctuations, particularly weakness in the Japanese Yen, has and may continue to exacerbate pricing competition for our print products and services. From
time to time, we may use derivative contracts designated as cash flow hedges to protect against foreign currency exchange rate risks. However, our hedging strategies may be ineffective, may
not offset any or more than a portion of the adverse financial impact resulting from currency variations, or may result in losses.Business disruption events could seriously harm our future
revenue, cash flows and financial condition and increase our costs and expenses.Our worldwide operations could be disrupted by natural disasters, telecommunications failures, cybersecurity
incidents or other disruptions impacting information technology systems, manufacturing equipment failures, power or water shortages, fires, extreme weather conditions, and other disasters or
catastrophic events, for which we are predominantly self-insured. Terrorist acts or armed conflicts, for which we are predominantly uninsured, may also disrupt our operations. Global
pandemics, such as COVID-19, or other public health crises may adversely affect, among other things, our supply chain and associated costs; demand for our products and services; our
operations and sales, marketing and distribution efforts; our research and development capabilities; our engineering, design, and manufacturing processes; and other important business
activities. These events could result in significant losses, adversely affect our competitive position, increase our costs, require substantial expenditures and recovery time, make it difficult or
impossible to provide services or deliver products to our customers or to receive components from our suppliers, create delays and inefficiencies in our supply chain and result in the need to
impose employee travel restrictions. Our operations and those of our suppliers and distributors could be adversely affected if manufacturing, logistics, or other operations in key locations, are
disrupted for any reason, such as those described above or other economic, business, labor, environmental, public health, regulatory or political reasons. In addition, even if our operations are
unaffected or recover quickly, if our customers cannot timely resume their own operations, they may reduce or cancel their orders, or these events could otherwise result in a decrease in
demand for our products.23Table of ContentsClimate change and associated regulatory and market impacts may have an adverse effect on our business.There are climate-related risks wherever
our business is conducted. Global climate change is resulting, and is projected to continue to result, in natural disasters and adverse weather, such as drought, wildfires, storms, sea-level rise,
flooding, heat waves, and cold waves, occurring more frequently or with greater intensity. Such extreme climate related events are driving changes in market dynamics, stakeholder
expectations, local, national and international climate change policies and regulations, which could result in disruptions to us, our suppliers, vendors, customers and logistics hubs and impact
employeesa€™ abilities to live in certain areas, commute or to work from home effectively. These disruptions could make it more difficult and costly for us to deliver our products and services,
obtain components or other supplies through our supply chain, maintain or resume operations or perform other critical corporate functions, and could reduce customer demand for our products
and services. Furthermore, climate change has reduced the availability and increased the cost of insurance for these negative impacts of natural disasters and adverse weather conditions by
contributing to an increase in the incidence and severity of such natural disasters.The increasing concern over climate change has resulted, and we expect will continue to result, in transition
risks such as shifting customer preferences and regulations, including with regard to our products and their environmental impact. These demands have, and we expect will continue to, cause
us to incur additional costs and make other changes to our operations. If we fail to manage transition risks effectively, customer demand for our products and services could diminish, and our
profitability and cash flow could suffer. Additionally, concerns over climate change have resulted in, and are expected to continue to result in, the adoption of regulatory requirements designed
to address climate change, such as imposing a price on carbon emissions, requirements of increased circularity in products, product efficiency and environmental certification requirements and
climate-related disclosures. As a result, we have experienced and expect to continue to experience, increased compliance burdens and costs, increased indirect costs resulting from our
suppliers passing on compliance costs to us, and certain of our products may be rendered obsolete, financially unviable or face market access issues. Further, anti-ESG government initiatives
may conflict with other regulatory requirements or our stakeholdersa€™ expectations. The impacts of climate change, whether involving physical risks or transition risks, are expected to be
widespread and may materially adversely affect our business and financial results. Failure to maintain our credit ratings could adversely affect our liquidity, capital position, borrowing costs
and access to capital markets, as well as our subscription based and other offerings.Our credit risk is evaluated by the major independent rating agencies. A downgrade of our current credit
rating could increase the cost of borrowing under our credit facilities, reduce access to capital markets and/or market capacity for our commercial paper or require the posting of additional
collateral under some of our derivative contracts. In addition, a downgrade of our credit rating could have an adverse impact on our subscription, other recurring revenue business and other
offerings and our strategy related to such businesses due to higher borrowing costs and customer preferences when deciding to purchase our subscription based and other offerings. We have in
the past, and may from time to time in the future, take actions to manage our capital structure, including reducing our outstanding debt, in order to maintain our credit rating. Such actions may
reduce the funds we would otherwise have available for working capital, capital expenditures, dividends, stock repurchases, acquisitions, and other general corporate purposes. We cannot be
assured that we will be able to maintain our current credit ratings, and any additional actual or anticipated changes or downgrades in our credit ratings, including any announcement that our
ratings are under further review for a downgrade, may impact us in a similar manner and have a negative impact on our liquidity, capital position, access to capital markets and our subscription
based and other offerings.Our debt obligations could adversely affect our business and financial condition.In addition to our current debt, we may also incur additional indebtedness. Our debt
level and related debt service obligations could have the effect, among others, of reducing our flexibility to respond to changing business and economic conditions, and reducing funds available
for working capital, capital expenditures, dividends, stock repurchases, acquisitions, and other general corporate purposes. We may also be required to raise additional financing for working
capital, capital expenditures, debt service obligations, debt refinancing, future acquisitions or for other general corporate purposes, which will depend on, among other factors, our financial
position and performance, as well as prevailing market conditions and other factors beyond our control. Consequently, we may not be able to obtain additional financing or refinancing on terms
acceptable to us, or at all, which could adversely impact our ability to service our outstanding indebtedness or to repay our outstanding indebtedness as it becomes due and could adversely
impact our business and financial condition. Additionally, further indebtedness may increase the risk of a future downgrade in our credit ratings, which could increase future debt costs, limit
the future availability of debt financing and adversely affect our subscription based business.24Table of ContentsThe amount and frequency of our share repurchases and dividends are affected
by a number of factors and may fluctuate.Although historically we have announced regular cash dividend payments and we have adopted a share repurchase program, we are not obligated to
pay cash dividends or to repurchase a specified number or dollar value of shares under our share repurchase program or at all. The declaration and payment of any future dividends is at the
discretion of our Board of Directors. The level of dividends and amount, timing, and purchases under our share repurchase program, if any, are influenced by many factors and may fluctuate
based on our operating results, cash flows, and priorities for the use of cash, the market price of our common stock, and, with respect to share repurchases, our possession of potentially
material nonpublic information. In addition, we cannot guarantee that our share repurchase program will be fully consummated or that it will enhance long-term shareholder value.We make
estimates and assumptions in connection with the preparation of our financial statements, and any changes to those estimates and assumptions could adversely affect our results of operations,
cash flows and financial condition.In connection with the preparation of our financial statements, we use certain estimates and assumptions based on historical experience and other factors.
Our most critical accounting estimates are described in the section entitled 4€ceManagementa€™s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operationsa€ in Item 7 of this
report. For example, we make significant estimates and assumptions when accounting for revenue recognition, taxes on earnings and goodwill, and when making decisions related to provisions
for legal proceedings and other contingencies. We also estimate sales and marketing program incentives based on a number of factors including historical experience, expected customer
behavior and market conditions. These estimates and assumptions are subject to significant uncertainties, some of which are beyond our control. Should any of these estimates and assumptions
change or prove to have been incorrect, it could adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.We have identified a material weakness in our internal control over
financial reporting that could, if not remediated, result in material misstatements in our financial statements and cause us to fail to meet our reporting and financial obligations.As more fully
disclosed in Item 9A, &€ceControls and Procedures,a€ under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial
officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting. Based on that
evaluation, we have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of October 31, 2024 due to a material weakness in internal control over financial reporting. A
material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in our internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
Company&€™s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.We identified a material weakness in internal control over financial reporting that
resulted from undue reliance on information generated from certain software solutions affecting various financial statement accounts without effectively designed and operating IT general
controls, specifically around user access, change management and job schedule monitoring IT operations. This material weakness did not result in any material misstatement of our financial
statements. While this material weakness did not result in a material misstatement of our financial statements, this control deficiency was not remediated as of October 31, 2024 and there is a
reasonable possibility that it could have resulted in a material misstatement in the Company's annual or interim consolidated financial statements that would not be detected. Accordingly, we
have determined that this control deficiency constituted a material weakness. While the Companya€™s management, under the oversight of the Audit Committee, has taken steps to implement
our remediation plan as described more fully in Item 9A, a€ceControls and Procedures,a€ the material weakness will not be considered remediated until the enhanced controls operate for a



sufficient period of time and management has concluded, through testing, that the related controls are effective. Furthermore, we can give no assurance that the measures we take will
remediate the material weakness.We can give no assurance that additional material weaknesses will not arise in the future. Any failure to remediate the material weakness, or the development
of new material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting, could result in material misstatements in our financial statements and cause us to fail to meet our reporting and
financial obligations, which in turn could have a negative impact on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows, restrict our ability to access the capital markets, require
significant resources to correct the material weaknesses or deficiencies, subject us to fines, penalties or judgments, harm our reputation or otherwise cause a decline in investor confidence and
cause a decline in the market price of our stock.Ineffective internal controls could impact our business and operating results.Our internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements because of its inherent limitations, including the possibility of human error, failure or interruption of information technology systems, the circumvention or overriding of
controls, or fraud. Even effective internal controls can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements. If we fail to maintain the
adequacy of our internal controls, including any failure to implement required new or improved controls, or if we experience difficulties in their implementation, our business and operating
results could be harmed and the company could fail to meet its financial reporting obligations.25Table of ContentsLEGAL AND REGULATORY RISKSOur business is subject to various federal,
state, local and foreign laws and regulations that could adversely affect our business and results of operations and cash flows.We are subject to various federal, state, local and foreign laws and
regulations. There can be no assurance that such laws and regulations will not be interpreted and changed in ways that will require us to modify our business models and objectives or affect our
returns on investments by restricting existing activities and products, subjecting them to escalating costs or increased restrictions or prohibiting them outright. In particular, we face increasing
complexity in our product design and procurement operations as we adjust to new and future requirements relating to the composition of our products, their safe use, the energy consumption
associated with those products, climate change laws and regulations, and product repairability, reuse, recyclability and take-back legislation. In addition, there is existing and proposed
legislation related to human rights, environmental and social responsibility (including tracing requirements related to forced labor prohibitions) for our operations, supply chain partners, and
our products and services. Moreover, we are becoming increasingly subject to laws, regulations and international treaties relating to climate change, such as carbon pricing or product energy
efficiency requirements or more prescriptive reporting requirements. Additionally, the rapid evolution and increased adoption of AI technologies and our obligations to comply with emerging
laws and regulations may require us to develop additional Al-specific governance programs, which could entail significant costs or limit our ability to incorporate certain Al capabilities into our
products and solutions.As these new laws, regulations, treaties and similar initiatives and programs are adopted and implemented, we will be required to comply or potentially face market
access limitations or restrictions on our products entering certain jurisdictions, sanctions or other penalties, including fines. Such burdens or costs may result in an adverse effect on our
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. We could also face significant compliance and operational burdens and incur significant costs in our efforts to comply with or rectify
non-compliance with these laws or regulations. Our potential exposure also includes third-party property damage, personal injury claims and clean-up costs. Further, liability under some
environmental laws relating to contaminated sites can be imposed retroactively, on a joint and several basis, and without any finding of noncompliance or fault. We are subject to risks
associated with litigation and regulatory proceedings.We face legal claims or regulatory matters involving stockholder, consumer, competition, commercial, IP, employment, and other issues on
a global basis. There is an increasingly active litigation and regulatory environment, including but not limited to employment and patent-monetization claims in the United States, Germany and
Brazil, and litigation and regulatory matters focused on consumer protection, privacy, and competition regulation globally. Patent monetization campaigns have become increasingly aggressive,
including those by patent holders for standardized technology, such as WiFi and video and other standardized technology in PCs, who have sued in venues that allow injunctions despite
commitments to license patents on fair and reasonable terms. If we are unsuccessful in defending against such claims, we may be exposed to exorbitant licensing demands in order to avoid
potential disruptions to our business. As described in Note 14, &€ceLitigation and Contingenciesa€ to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, we are engaged in a number of litigation
and regulatory matters that may have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition, cash flows or results of operations, if decided adversely to or settled by us. Litigation and
regulatory proceedings are inherently uncertain, and adverse rulings have occurred and may occur, including awards of monetary damages, imposition of fines, issuance of injunctions or cease-
and-desist orders directing us to cease engaging in certain business practices, cease manufacturing or selling certain products, requiring the compulsory licensing of patents, or requiring other
remedies. In addition, regardless of the outcome, litigation and regulatory proceedings can be costly, time-consuming, disruptive to our operations, and distracting to management.We and
Hewlett Packard Enterprise entered into a separation and distribution agreement and various other agreements in connection with the separation of the two businesses. The separation and
distribution agreement provides for cross-indemnities between HP and Hewlett Packard Enterprise for liabilities allocated to the respective party pursuant to the terms of such agreement. If
Hewlett Packard Enterprise or its successor entities (including spun off businesses to which obligations have been transferred) are unable to satisfy their obligations under these agreements,
we could incur operational difficulties or losses.Failure to comply with our customer and partner contracts or government contracting regulations could adversely affect our business and
financial performance. Our contracts with our customers may include unique and specialized performance requirements. In particular, our contracts with federal, state, provincial and local
governmental customers are subject to procurement regulations, contract provisions and other specific requirements relating to their formation, administration and performance. In addition,
contracts with customers may also include a requirement to comply with customer codes of conduct, which may have terms that conflict with our code of conduct, business policies and strategic
objectives. Any failure by us to comply with the specific provisions in our customer contracts or any violation of government contracting regulations could result in loss of business or the
imposition of civil and criminal penalties, which may include termination of contracts, forfeiture of profits, suspension of payments and, in the case of our government contracts, fines and
suspension from future government contracting. Such failures could also cause reputational damage to our business and affect our ability to compete for new contracts. If our customer
contracts are terminated, if we are suspended or disbarred from government work, or if our ability to compete for new contracts is adversely affected, our financial performance could suffer.
Our partner contracts 26Table of Contentsalso contain terms relating to new partner business models and tools creation that could raise issues for which laws or regulations are currently
changing or emerging. This could affect us in ways that are not currently fully known or measurable. Changes in our tax provisions, adverse tax audits, the adoption of new tax legislation, or
exposure to additional tax liabilities could have a material impact on our financial performance.We are subject to income taxes in the United States and approximately 61 other countries, and
we are subject to routine corporate income tax audits in many of these jurisdictions. We believe that the positions taken on our tax returns are fully supported, but tax authorities may challenge
these positions, and our positions may not be fully sustained on examination by the relevant tax authorities. We regularly assess the likely outcomes of these audits in order to determine the
appropriateness of our tax provision, and, we believe we have provided adequate reserves for all tax deficiencies or reductions in tax benefits that could reasonably result from an audit. Our
accrual for uncertain tax positions is attributable primarily to uncertainties concerning the tax treatment of our domestic operations, including the allocation of income among different
jurisdictions, intercompany transactions, pension and related interest. We adjust our uncertain tax positions to reflect the impact of negotiations, settlements, rulings, advice of legal counsel,
and other information and events pertaining to a particular audit. Determining the appropriate provision for potential deficiencies or reductions in tax benefits that could reasonably result from
an audit requires management judgments and estimates, and income tax audits are inherently unpredictable. We may not accurately predict the outcomes of these audits, and the amounts
ultimately paid upon resolution of audits could be materially different from the amounts previously included in our income tax provision and, therefore, could have a material impact on our
income tax provision, net income and cash flows.Our effective tax rate in the future could be adversely affected by changes to our operating structure, changes in the mix of earnings in
countries with differing statutory tax rates, changes in the valuation of deferred tax assets and liabilities, or changes in tax laws or in their interpretation or enforcement. In addition, changes in
tax law and regulation in the U.S. or elsewhere could significantly impact our tax rate, the carrying value of deferred tax assets, or our deferred tax liabilities. In addition, our effective tax rate
could also be materially affected by the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Developmenta€™s (the &€ OECDA&€), the European Commissiona€™ s and other certain major
jurisdictionsa€™ heightened interest in and taxation of large multi-national companies. For instance, the OECD has enacted model rules for a new global minimum tax framework (a&€eBEPS
Pillar Two&€), and various governments around the world have enacted, or are in the process of enacting, legislation on these rules.27Table of ContentsITEM 1B.A A A A Unresolved Staff
Comments.None.Item 1C. CybersecurityHPa€™s work to defend against cybersecurity threats is occurring against the backdrop of an evolving global threat landscape. Like other Fortune 500
companies, we face a substantial number of cybersecurity threatsa€”ranging from common cyberattacks such as phishing to more evolved threats that incorporate the use of Al. Our products
and processes pose an attractive challenge for the most advanced of threat actorsa€”including but not limited to those who are state-sponsored. As a global corporation with a wide range of
systems and networks in place, and with customers who threat actors might also wish to target, we could face attacks not only on our own structures, but also on those of our many third-party
providers and partners. In response to this threat environment, we have implemented a comprehensive cybersecurity program to assess, identify, and manage risks from cybersecurity threats.
Our holistic approach is designed to integrate cybersecurity across the value chain, including in the design, development, and delivery of our products, services, solutions, and operations.Our
Chief Information Security Officer (4€0eCISO&€) has responsibility for HPa€™ s global cybersecurity program, including infrastructure and technology platforms, overseeing governance,
regulatory and compliance, operations, strategy, and architecture. The CISO reports to our Chief Financial Officer. This role is responsible for building out a cybersecurity organization that is
designed to enable robust security coupled with productivity for more than 70,000 global employees, contractors, and partners. The CISO supports HPa€™ s business acceleration and
transformation by identifying and managing cybersecurity risks, balancing them with business priorities, and using a contemporary security posture to support HP4€™ s position as an industry
leader. As part of this, the CISO receives reports on cybersecurity threats from a number of experienced information security officers responsible for various parts of the business on an ongoing
basis and in conjunction with management, regularly reviews risk management measures implemented by the Company to identify and mitigate data protection and cybersecurity risks.Our
cybersecurity organization collaborates heavily with technology, business and legal stakeholders to enable secure business strategy, maintain, and grow proper security oversight, enhance
security monitoring and response, and quantify and reduce risks and compliance gaps. There are six key focus areas within the cybersecurity organization: enterprise security operations,
architecture and security engineering, identity access management, IT risk management and compliance, governance, risk and compliance, and strategy and program delivery. Additionally, we
aim to incorporate a broad range of industry-standard cybersecurity best practices throughout our cybersecurity organization. These include, among other things:a€¢an insider threat program
that coordinates resources to discourage, identify, and mitigate cybersecurity threats;a€¢regular audits of HP cybersecurity systems and annual risk assessments of related HP systems and
processes, including our information security management systems;a€¢an incident response plan that sets out a coordinated approach to investigating, containing, documenting and mitigating
incidents, including reporting findings and keeping senior management and other key stakeholders informed and involved as appropriate;a€¢annual and ongoing security awareness training for
employees; a€¢a cybersecurity/information security policy, as well as an acceptable use policy that defines the permitted usage of company-provided technology and contains consequences for
noncompliance;a€¢company-wide privacy policies as well as a physical security program that secures our offices and data center facilities;a€¢systems and processes designed to oversee,
identify, and reduce the potential impact of a security incident at a third-party vendor, service provider or customer or otherwise implicating the third-party technology and systems we use;
andéa€¢engagement with industry peers and participation in cybersecurity forums to share knowledge and learn from best practices.On an annual basis, the cybersecurity organization also
enlists the aid of an independent third party to assess our alignment with the National Institute of Standards & Technologya€™s Cyber Security Framework. The assessment examines our
information/cybersecurity program and its associated controls and delivers a report that documents assessment results and provides recommendations for further enhancements. The
cybersecurity organization is responsible for presenting an overview of the Cybersecurity Risk Assessment Report to the Board of Directors on at least an annual basis, and the HP executive
leadership team is heavily involved in implementing and resolving recommendations. From time to time, we also engage assessors, consultants, auditors, or other third parties to assist with
assessing, identifying, and managing cybersecurity risks.Our cybersecurity risks are evaluated by senior leadership, including as part of our enterprise risk assessments that are reviewed by the
Audit Committee and our Board of Directors, and our Internal Audit function, which is an objective, independent assurance and advisory organization that helps HP achieve business objectives
and conducts regular assessments, audits, and testing of the cybersecurity program and its associated controls.28Table of ContentsAs of the date of this Form 10-K, risks from cybersecurity
threats, including as a result of any previous cybersecurity incidents, have not materially affected us, including our business strategy, results of operations or financial condition. However, there
can be no guarantee that we will not experience such an event moving forward and if realized, these risks are reasonably likely to materially affect us. Additional information on cybersecurity
risks we face can be found in 4€ceRisk Factorsa€ in Item 1A of Part I of this report under the heading &€ceSystem security risks, data protection breaches, cyberattacks, system outages and
systems integration issues could disrupt our internal operations or services provided to customers, and could reduce our revenue, increase our expenses, damage our reputation and adversely
affect our cash flows and stock price,a€ which should be read in conjunction with the foregoing information.Our Board, in coordination with the Audit Committee, oversees the Companya€™s
enterprise risk management process, including the management of risks arising from cybersecurity threats. Our Board has delegated the primary responsibility to oversee cybersecurity matters
to the Audit Committee. The Board and Audit Committee regularly review the measures implemented by the Company to identify and mitigate data protection and cybersecurity risks. As part of
such reviews, the Board and Audit Committee regularly receive reports and presentations from management regarding our information and technology security program, including the CISO,
which address a wide range of topics including recent developments, evolving standards, vulnerability assessments, third-party and independent reviews, the threat environment, technological
trends and information security considerations arising with respect to the Companya€™s peers and third parties. We have protocols by which certain cybersecurity incidents that meet
established reporting thresholds are escalated within the Company and, where appropriate, reported promptly to the Board and Audit Committee, as well as ongoing updates regarding any such
incident until it has been addressed.ITEM 2. Properties.As of OctoberA 31, 2024, we owned or leased approximately 17.2A million square feet of space worldwide, a summary of which is
provided below.A Fiscal year ended OctoberA 31, 2024A OwnedLeasedTotalA (square feet in millions)Administration and support1.9A 5.3A 7.2A (Percentage)26A %74A %100A %Manufacturing
plants, research and development facilities and warehouse operations2.5A 4.8A 7.3A (Percentage)34A %66A %100A %Total(1)4.4A 10.1A 14.5A (Percentage)30A %70A %100A %(1)Excludes 2.7
million square feet of vacated space, of which 1.8 million square feet is leased to third parties.We believe that our existing properties are in good condition and are suitable for the conduct of
our business. Each of our segments Personal Systems, Printing and Corporate Investments uses each of the properties at least in part, and we retain the flexibility to use each of the properties
in whole or in part for each of the segments.Principal Executive OfficesOur principal executive offices, including our global headquarters, which we lease, are located at 1501 Page Mill Road,
Palo Alto, California, United States.Headquarters of Geographic OperationsThe locations of our geographic headquarters are as follows: AmericasA Europe, Middle East, AfricaA Asia PacificPalo
Alto, United StatesA Geneva, Sw1tzerlandA SlngaporeZQTable of ContentsProduct Development and ManufacturingThe locations of our major product development and manufacturmg facilities

ValleyAAA A A AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA A A Mex1coa€ TuuanaA Europe, Middle East, AfricaA A A A Israela€”Kiryat-Gat, Rehovot, NetanyaA A Spa1na€"Barce10naA51a

PacificA A Chinad€” Chongqing, Shangha].A AAA Indlaa€”BangaloreA Malaysiad€”PenangA A Singaporea€”SingaporeA South Korea&€”PangyoA Taiwana€”TaipeiA Technology

officeA A A A Spaina€”BarcelonaA A United Kingdoma€”BristolA A United Statesa€”Corvallis, Palo Alto, Scotts ValleyITEM 3. Legal Proceedings.Information with respect to this item may be
found in NoteA 14, 4€ceLitigation and Contingenciesa€ to the Consolidated Financial Statements in ItemA 8, which is incorporated herein by reference.ITEM 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.Not
applicable.30Table of ContentsPART IIITEM 5. Market for Registranta€™s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.Our common stock is traded
on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol HPQ.For information about dividends, see our Consolidated Statements of Stockholdersa€™ Deficit in ItemA 8, which is incorporated herein
by reference. As of DecemberA 2, 2024, there were approximately 45,149 stockholders of record.Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities There were no unregistered sales of equity securities in
fiscal year 2024.Issuer Purchases of Equity SecuritiesTotalNumberof SharesPurchasedAveragePrice Paidper ShareTotal Number ofShares Purchased asPart of PubliclyAnnounced Plansor



ProgramsApproximate DollarValue of Sharesthat May Yet BePurchased under thePlans or ProgramsPeriodIn thousands, except per share amountsAugust

20245,410A $34.62A 5,410A $9,974,455A September 20249,433A $34.66A 9,433A $9,647,496A October 202410,575A $36.46A 10,575A $9,261,940A Total25,418A A 25,418A A The
Companya€™s share repurchase program, which does not have a specific expiration date, authorizes repurchases in the open market or in private transactions. On August 27, 2024, HPa€™s
Board of Directors increased HP4€™ s total share repurchase authorization to $10.0 billion, inclusive of the amount remaining under previously authorized share repurchases. In the fourth
quarter of fiscal year 2024, we returned $0.9 billion to shareholders through the repurchase of 25.4 million shares on the open market. 31Table of ContentsStock Performance Graph and
Cumulative Total ReturnThe graph below shows the cumulative total stockholder return assuming the investment of $100 at the market close on OctoberA 31, 2019 (and the reinvestment of
dividends thereafter) in each of HP common stock, the S&PA 500 Index, and the S&P Information Technology Index. The comparisons in the graph below are based on historical data and are
not indicative of, or intended to forecast, future performance of our common stock.10/1910/2010/2110/2210/2310/24HP

Inc.$100.00A $107.25A $186.21A $174.60A $172.55A $240.79A S&PA 500 Index$100.00A $109.70A $156.75A $133.82A $147.36A $203.35A S&P Information Technology

Index$100.00A $134.47A $197.56A $157.53A $206.12A $311.72A 32Table of ContentsITEM 6. [Reserved]. 33Table of ContentsHP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES Managementa€™s Discussion and
Analysis ofFinancial Condition and Results of OperationsITEM 7. Managementa€™s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.The discussion of financial
condition and results of our operations that follows provides information that will assist the reader in understanding our Consolidated Financial Statements, the changes in certain key items in
those financial statements from year to year, and the primary factors that accounted for those changes, as well as how certain accounting principles, policies and estimates affect our
Consolidated Financial Statements. This discussion should be read in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial Statements and the related notes that appear elsewhere in this document. This
section generally discusses the results of operations for the fiscal year ended OctoberA 31, 2024 compared to the fiscal year ended OctoberA 31, 2023. For a discussion of fiscal year ended
OctoberA 31, 2023 compared to the fiscal year ended OctoberA 31, 2022, please refer to Part I, Item 7, 4€ceManagementa€™s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operationsa€ in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended OctoberA 31, 2023.34Table of ContentsHP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESManagementa€™s Discussion and Analysis
ofFinancial Condition and Results of Operations OVERVIEWHP delivers innovative and sustainable devices, services, and subscriptions for personal computing, printing, 3D printing, hybrid
work, gaming and other related technologies. We have three reportable segments: Personal Systems, Printing, and Corporate Investments. The Personal Systems segment offers commercial and
consumer desktops, notebooks and workstations (including HPa€™s portfolio of AI PCs and workstations), thin clients, retail POS systems, displays, hybrid systems, software, solutions including
endpoint security, and services. The Printing segment provides consumer and commercial printer hardware, supplies, solutions and services. Corporate Investments include certain business
incubation and investment projects.a€¢In Personal Systems, our long-term strategic focus is on:a—|profitable growth through innovation, market segmentation and simplification of our
portfolio;a—|enhanced innovation in multi-operating systems, multi-architecture, customer segments and other key attributes;a—|investing in endpoint services and solutions. We are focused on
services, including Device-as-a-Service, as the market shifts to subscription-based solutions, and accelerating in attractive adjacencies such as hybrid systems; andd—!driving innovation to
enable productivity and collaboration, with Al PCs and workstations playing a critical role in the transformation of how people live and work.a€¢In Printing, our long-term strategic focus is on:a
—loffering innovative, intelligent printing experiences and subscription-based solutions designed to securely serve consumer and SMB customers through our Instant Ink Services and HP All-In
Plan, as well as large enterprises through our Managed Print Services solutions;a—|providing digital printing solutions for industrial graphics segments and applications including commercial
publishing, labels, packaging, and textiles; anda—expanding our footprint in 3D printing across digital manufacturing and strategic applications. We have focused on growing our hybrid
systems, gaming, workforce solutions, consumer subscriptions, industrial graphics and our 3D and personalization businesses at a rate faster than our core business with accretive margins in
the longer term. We believe our ability to innovate will help us gain momentum in growth areas like hybrid systems and gaming, and we see significant opportunities to drive greater recurring
revenues across Personal Systems and Printing. Our Workforce Solutions organization drives integration across our commercial services, software and security portfolio. We continue to build
on strong portfolios like Instant Ink to grow our Consumer Subscription business. In Industrial Graphics, we are driving the shift from analog to digital in segments like labels and packaging. In
3D and Personalization, we are creating end-to-end solutions that we believe can capture more value with our differentiated technology.We believe we are well positioned to lead the future of
work with our competitive product lineup and enhanced portfolio of hybrid systems, remote-computing solutions, and intelligent print solutions. We are driving innovation by accelerating the
delivery of Al across our product portfolio and focusing on growth opportunities in commercial, solutions, and premium consumer and gaming markets. We are consolidating all our software
resources under the Technology and Innovation Organization to evolve from a transactional hardware company to a more experience-led organization, further strengthening our ability to
capture these opportunities.We continue to experience challenges that are representative of the trends and uncertainties that may affect our industry, generally, and our business and financial
results, specifically, and we expect these challenges to continue in the short-term. One set of challenges relates to the current macroeconomic environment and the adverse impact on demand
for certain of our products. A second set of challenges relates to changes in the competitive landscape. Our primary competitors are exerting competitive pressure in targeted areas and are
entering new markets, our emerging competitors are introducing new technologies and business models, and our alliance partners in some businesses are increasingly becoming our
competitors in others. A third set of challenges relates to business model changes and our go-to-market execution in an evolving distribution and reseller landscape, with increasing online and
omnichannel presence. Specific challenges we face at the segment level are set forth below.a€¢In Personal Systems, we face challenges with a competitive pricing environment, variability in
commodity costs, and demand softness in certain geographic regions.a€¢In Printing, we face challenges from changing customer behaviors as well as competitors with a favorable foreign
currency environment and non-original supplies (which includes imitation, refill, or remanufactured alternatives). We also obtain many Printing components from single source suppliers due to
technology, availability, price, quality, or other considerations.35Table of ContentsHP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES Managementa€™ s Discussion and Analysis ofFinancial Condition and Results of
OperationsTo address these challenges, we continue to pursue innovation with a view towards developing new products and services aligned with generating market demand and meeting the
needs of our customers and partners. In addition, we continue to work on improving our operations and adapting our business models, with a particular focus on enhancing our end-to-end
processes, analytics, efficiencies and simplification of our product portfolio. We also continue to work on optimizing our sales coverage models, aligning our sales incentives with our strategic
goals, improving channel execution and inventory, production and backlog management, strengthening our capabilities in our areas of strategic focus, effective cost management, strengthening
our pricing strategy, and developing and capitalizing on market opportunities.Macroeconomic EnvironmentOur business and financial performance depend significantly on worldwide economic
conditions. We face global macroeconomic challenges such as ongoing geopolitical conflicts (including the military conflicts in Ukraine and the Middle East, and tensions in the Taiwan Strait
and South China Sea), uncertainty in the markets, volatility in exchange rates, inflationary trends and evolving dynamics in the global trade environment. We also experience seasonality in the
sale of our products and services which may be affected by general economic conditions. During fiscal year 2024, we experienced continued industry wide demand softness in Printing and a
competitive pricing environment, particularly from our Japanese competitors benefiting from a favorable foreign currency environment. In Personal Systems, we faced a competitive pricing
environment, variability in commodity costs, and demand softness in certain regions. We experienced gradual market recovery in Commercial PS resulting in overall PC unit growth in fiscal
year 2024 and net revenue growth in Personal Systems in the second half of fiscal year 2024.We are also exposed to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. We have a large global
presence, with approximately 65% of our net revenue from outside the United States. For a further discussion of trends, uncertainties and other factors that could impact our operating results,
see the section entitled 4€ceRisk Factorsa€ in Item 1A of Part I in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.Transformation Updateln November 2022, we announced our Future Ready Plan (the
a€ceFiscal 2023 Plana€ or a€ceFuture Readya€) to become a more digitally enabled company, focus investments on key growth opportunities and simplify our operating model. The Fiscal 2023
Plan is expected to run through end of fiscal 2025. The three key elements of our Fiscal 2023 Plan are digital transformation, portfolio optimization, and operational efficiency. We accelerated
our cumulative savings target for fiscal year 2024 and are on track to achieve our overall program savings.Since announcing our Fiscal 2023 Plan, we have enhanced our digital capabilities in
Workforce Solutions and continued to leverage Al to positively impact our products, solutions and operations. Additionally, we are reducing portfolio complexity, improving continuity of supply,
and increasing our forecast accuracy across our business to drive reduction in our cost of sales and operating expenses. We also continued to reduce our structural cost through headcount
reductions and are on track to achieve our overall headcount reduction goal. We expect to continue to invest some of the savings into our growth areas and our people.See a€oeRisk
Factorsa€”Strategic and Operational Risk Factorsa€”We may not achieve some or all of the expected benefits of our restructuring plans and our restructuring may adversely affect our
businessa€ in Item 1A, which is incorporated herein by reference. For more information on our Fiscal 2023 Plan, see Note 3, a€ceRestructuring and Other Charges,a€ to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in Item 8 of Part II of this report, which is incorporated herein by reference.CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATESA GeneralOur Consolidated Financial Statements are
prepared in accordance with United States (a€ceU.S.a€) generally accepted accounting principles (&€0eGAAP&€), which require management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, net revenue and expenses, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Critical accounting estimates are those that involve a significant level of
estimation uncertainty and have had or are reasonably likely to have a material impact on our financial condition or results of operations. Management bases its estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumptions that it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities. Management believes that the accounting estimates employed and the resulting amounts are reasonable; however, actual results may differ from these estimates.A A
summary of our significant accounting policies is included in NoteA 1, 4€ceSummary of Significant Accounting Policiesa€ to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, which is
incorporated herein by reference. Management believes the following accounting policies reflect the critical accounting estimates used in the preparation of our Consolidated Financial
Statements.36Table of ContentsHP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES Managementa€™s Discussion and Analysis ofFinancial Condition and Results of OperationsRevenue Recognition - Variable
ConsiderationWe recognize revenue depicting the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that may include variable consideration. When the transaction price includes
a variable amount, we estimate the amount using either the expected value or most likely amount method. At the time of revenue recognition, we reduce the transaction price by the estimated
variable consideration (e.g., customer and distributor programs and incentive offerings, rebates, promotions, other volume-based incentives and expected returns). We use estimates to
determine the expected variable consideration for such programs based on historical experience, expected consumer behavior and market conditions.Taxes on EarningsAs a result of certain
employment actions and capital investments we have undertaken, income from manufacturing activities in certain jurisdictions is subject to reduced tax rates and, in some cases, is wholly
exempt from taxes for fiscal years through 2029.Material changes in our estimates of cash, working capital and long-term investment requirements in the various jurisdictions in which we do
business could impact how future earnings are repatriated to the United States, and our related future effective tax rate. We record a valuation allowance to reduce deferred tax assets to the
amount that we are more likely than not to realize. In determining the need for a valuation allowance, we consider future market growth, forecasted earnings, future taxable income, the mix of
earnings in the jurisdictions in which we operate and prudent and feasible tax planning strategies. In the event we were to determine that it is more likely than not that we will be unable to
realize all or part of our deferred tax assets in the future, we would increase the valuation allowance and recognize a corresponding charge to earnings or other comprehensive income in the
period in which we make such a determination. Likewise, if we later determine that we are more likely than not to realize the deferred tax assets, we would reverse the applicable portion of the
previously recognized valuation allowance. In order for us to realize our deferred tax assets, we must be able to generate sufficient taxable income in the jurisdictions in which the deferred tax
assets are located.We are subject to income taxes in the United States and approximately 61 other countries, and we are subject to routine corporate income tax audits in many of these
jurisdictions. We believe that positions taken on our tax returns are fully supported, but tax authorities may challenge these positions, and our positions may not be fully sustained on
examination by the relevant tax authorities. Accordingly, our income tax provision includes amounts intended to satisfy assessments that may result from these challenges. Our accrual for
uncertain tax positions is attributable primarily to uncertainties concerning the tax treatment of our domestic operations, including the allocation of income among different jurisdictions,
intercompany transactions, pension and related interest. We adjust our uncertain tax positions to reflect the impact of negotiations, settlements, rulings, advice of legal counsel, and other
information and events pertaining to a particular audit. Determining the appropriate provision for potential deficiencies or reductions in tax benefits that could reasonably result from an audit
requires management judgments and estimates, and income tax audits are inherently unpredictable. We may not accurately predict the outcomes of these audits, and the amounts ultimately
paid on resolution of an audit could be materially different from the amounts previously included in our income tax provision and, therefore, could have a material impact on our provision for
taxes, net earnings and cash flows. For a further discussion on taxes on earnings, refer to Note 6, &€ceTaxes on Earningsa€ to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, which is
incorporated herein by reference.Legal ContingenciesWe are involved in various lawsuits, claims, investigations and proceedings including those consisting of IP, commercial, securities,
employment, employee benefits and environmental matters that arise in the ordinary course of business. We record a liability when we believe that it is both probable that a liability has been
incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. Significant judgment is required to determine both the probability of having incurred a liability and the estimated amount of the
liability. We review these matters at least quarterly and adjust these liabilities to reflect the impact of negotiations, settlements, rulings, advice of legal counsel and other updated information
and events, pertaining to a particular case. Litigation is inherently unpredictable. However, we believe we have valid defenses with respect to legal matters pending against us. Nevertheless,
cash flows or results of operations could be materially affected in any particular period by the resolution of one or more of these contingencies. We believe we have recorded adequate
provisions for any such matters and, as of October 31, 2024, it was not reasonably possible that a material loss had been incurred in excess of the amounts recognized in our financial
statements.37Table of ContentsHP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES Managementa€™s Discussion and Analysis ofFinancial Condition and Results of OperationsSRECENT ACCOUNTING
PRONOUNCEMENTSFor a summary of recent accounting pronouncements applicable to our consolidated financial statements see NoteA 1, & ceSummary of Significant Accounting Policiesa€
to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, which is incorporated herein by reference. RESULTS OF OPERATIONSA Revenue from our international operations has historically
represented, and we expect will continue to represent, a majority of our overall net revenue. As a result, our net revenue growth has been impacted, and we expect it will continue to be
impacted, by fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. In order to provide a framework for assessing performance excluding the impact of foreign currency fluctuations, we supplement
the year-over-year percentage change in net revenue with the year-over-year percentage change in net revenue on a constant currency basis, which excludes the effect of foreign currency
exchange fluctuations calculated by translating current period revenues using monthly exchange rates from the comparative period and excluding any hedging impact recognized in the current
period, and without adjusting for any repricing or demand impacts from changes in foreign currency exchange rates. This information is provided so that net revenue can be viewed with and
without the effect of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, which is consistent with how management evaluates our net revenue results and trends, as management does not believe
that the excluded items are reflective of ongoing operating results. The constant currency measures are provided in addition to, and not as a substitute for, the year-over-year percentage
change in net revenue on a GAAP basis. Other companies may calculate and define similarly labeled items differently, which may limit the usefulness of this measure for comparative
purposes.Results of operations in dollars and as a percentage of net revenue were as follows:A A For the fiscal | years ended October 31A 202420232022Dollars% of Net RevenueDollars% of Net
RevenueDollars% of Net RevenueA Dollars inA millionsNet revenue:Products$50,453A 94.2A %$50,660A 94.3A %$60,041A 95.4A %Services3,106A 5.8A %3,058A 5.7A %2,869A 4.6A %Total net
revenue53,559A 100.0A %53,718A 100.0A %62,910A 100.0A %Cost of net

revenue:Products(1)39,952A 79.2A %40,484A 79.9A %48,881A 81.4A %Services(2)1,789A 57.6A %1,726A 56.4A %1,766A 61.6A %Total cost of net

revenue41,741A 77.9A %42,210A 78.6A %50,647A 80.5A %Gross margin11,818A 22.1A %11,508A 21.4A %12,263A 19.5A %Research and

development1,640A 3.1A %1,578A 2.9A %1,653A 2.6A %Selling, general and administrative5,658A 10.6A %5,357A 10.0A %5,264A 8.4A %Restructuring and other



charges301A 0.5A %527A 1.0A %218A 0.3A %Acquisition and divestiture charges83A 0.2A %240A 0.4A %318A 0.5A %Amortization of intangible

assets318A 0.6A %350A 0.7A %228A 0.4A %Russia exit chargesa€”A 4€”A %a€”A 4€”A %23A a€”A %Total operating expenses8,000A 15.0A %8,052A 15.0A %7,704A 12.2A %Earnings from
operations3,818A 7.1A %3,456A 6.4A %4,559A 7.2A %Interest and other, net(539)(1.0)%(519)(0.9)%(235)(0.4)%Earnings before taxes3,279A 6.1A %2,937A 5.5A %4,324A 6.8A %(Provision for)
benefit from taxes(504)(0.9)%326A 0.6A %(1,192)(1. 9)%Net earnings$2, 775A 5.2A %$3,263A 6.1A %$3,132A 4.9A %(1)A A A A Products cost of net revenue as a percentage of net revenue is
calculated as a percentage of product net revenue.(2)A A A A Services cost of net revenue as a percentage of net revenue is calculated as a percentage of services net revenue.38Net
RevenueProducts net revenue includes revenue from the sale of hardware, supplies, subscriptions and software licenses. Services net revenue includes revenue from our service offerings and
support on hardware devices. In fiscal year 2024, total net revenue decreased 0.3% (decreased 0.2% on a constant currency basis) as compared to the prior-year period. Net revenue from the
United States decreased 0.2% and remained at $18.8 billion, and outside of the United States decreased 0.3% to $34.8 billion. The decrease in products net revenue was primarily driven by
lower hardware units in Printing and competitive pricing in Printer hardware and Personal Systems, partially offset by market recovery in Commercial PS and higher net revenue in key growth
areas. Services net revenue remained flat. A detailed discussion of the factors contributing to the changes in segment net revenue is included under 4€ceSegment Informationa€ below.A Gross
Marginln fiscal year 2024, gross margin increased by 0.7 percentage points, primarily driven by products gross margin due to lower supply chain costs, and cost savings, including Future
Ready transformation savings, partially offset by competitive pricing in Printer hardware and Personal Systems, and mix shifts towards Personal Systems while services gross margin
decreased.A detailed discussion of the factors contributing to the changes in segment gross margins is included under &€ceSegment Informationa€ below.A Operating ExpensesResearch and
development (a4€eR&Da€)R&D expense increased 3.9% in fiscal year 2024, primarily due to continued investments in innovation, partially offset by disciplined cost management including
Future Ready transformation savings.Selling, general and administrative (4€ceSG&A&€)SG&A expense increased 5.6% in fiscal year 2024, primarily due to higher litigation costs and go-to-
market initiatives, partially offset by disciplined cost management including Future Ready transformation savings.Restructuring and other chargesRestructuring and other charges relate
primarily to the Fiscal 2023 Plan. For more information, see Note 3, &€aeRestructuring and Other Chargesa€, to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of Part II of this report, which is
incorporated herein by reference.Acquisition and divestiture chargesAcquisition and divestiture charges primarily include direct third-party professional and legal fees, and integration and
divestiture-related costs, as well as non-cash adjustments to the fair value of certain acquired assets such as inventory and certain compensation charges related to cash settlement of restricted
stock units and performance-based restricted stock units from acquisitions. Acquisition and divestiture charges decreased by $157 million in the fiscal year 2024, primarily due to reduced
integration activities associated with the fiscal year 2022 Poly acquisition.Amortization of intangible assetsA Amortization of intangible assets decreased in fiscal year 2024 and relates to
intangible assets resulting from acquisitions.Interest and other, netInterest and other, net increased $20 million in the fiscal year 2024 primarily due to the net gain on extinguishment of debt
as well as retirement benefits associated with our Enhanced Early Retirement (4€ceEER&€) program recorded in the prior year period, partially offset by lower interest expense on
debt.Provision for taxesOur effective tax rate was 15.4% in fiscal year 2024. The effective tax rate differs from the U.S. federal statutory rate of 21% primarily due to impacts of changes in
valuation allowances and favorable tax rates associated with certain earnings from HP4€™ s operations in lower-tax jurisdictions throughout the world.For a reconciliation of our effective tax
rate to the U.S. federal statutory rate of 21% in fiscal year 2024, and further explanation of our provision for income taxes, see NoteA 6, &€ceTaxes on Earningsa€ to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in Item 8, which is incorporated herein by reference.39In fiscal year 2024, we recorded $214A million of net income tax benefits related to non-recurring items in the provision for
taxes. This amount included $198 million related to changes in valuation allowances, $60 million related to restructuring charges, $14 million related to the filing of tax returns in various
jurisdictions, and $11 million related to acquisition charges. These benefits were partially offset by $39 million of uncertain tax position charges and $25 million related to changes in tax
rates.In December 2021, the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (the 4€ceOECD&€) introduced model rules for a global minimum tax framework known as (&€ceBEPS
Pillar Twoa€). Numerous governments worldwide have enacted or are in the process of enacting legislation to implement this framework. Where applicable, these rules will take effect for us
beginning in the fiscal year 2025 and we plan to treat the tax as a period cost. We do not anticipate a material impact on our effective tax rate or cash tax payments in these jurisdictions for
fiscal year 2025. Our assessment for subsequent fiscal years may be influenced by additional legislative guidance and the enactment of further provisions within the BEPS Pillar Two
framework.Segment InformationDuring the first quarter of fiscal year 2024, HP realigned its business unit financial reporting more closely with its customer market segmentation. Future
changes to this organizational structure may result in changes to the segments disclosed. For more information on our segments see NoteA 2, 4€ceSegment Information,&€ to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in Item 8, which is incorporated herein by reference.Personal SystemsA ForA theA fiscalA yearsA endedA OctoberA 31A 2024202320224 Dollars in millionsNet
revenue$36,195$35,684$44,011Earnings from operations$2,194$2,129$2,761Earnings from operations as a % of net revenue6.1%6. 0A %6.3%The components of net revenue and the weighted
net revenue change by business unit were as follows:A ForA theA fiscalA yearsA endedA OctoberA 31A Net RevenueWeighted Net Revenue Change Percentage

Points(1)A 20242023202220242023A In millionsA Commercial PS$25,486A $24,712A $29,616A 2.1A (11.1)Consumer PS10,709A 10,972A 14,395A (0.7)(7.8)Total Personal

Systems$36,195A $35,684A $44,011A 1.4A (18.9)(1) Weighted Net Revenue Change Percentage Points measures contribution of each business unit towards overall segment revenue growth. It
is calculated by dividing the change in revenue of each business unit from the prior-year period by total segment revenue for the prior-year period.Fiscal year 2024 compared with fiscal year
2023Personal Systems net revenue increased 1.4% (increased 1.3% on a constant currency basis) in the fiscal year 2024, as compared to the prior-year period. The net revenue increase was
primarily due to a 3.3% increase in PC unit volume driven by Commercial PS, partially offset by a 1.4% decrease in average selling price (d€ceASPsa€). The decrease in ASPs is primarily due to
competitive pricing, partially offset by favorable mix shifts.Commercial PS revenue increased 3.1% primarily driven by a 5.7% increase in units due to market recovery, partially offset by a 1.6%
decrease in ASPs. The decrease in ASPs was driven by unfavorable mix shifts and competitive pricing.Consumer PS net revenue decreased 2.4% driven by a 2.5% decrease in ASPs and a 0.3%
decrease in units due to demand softness, especially in China. The decrease in ASPs was driven by competitive pricing and unfavorable mix shifts, partially offset by favorable foreign currency
impacts.40Personal Systems earnings from operations as a percentage of net revenue increased by 0.1 percentage points driven by an increase in gross margin, partially offset by an increase in
operating expenses as a percentage of revenue. Gross margin increased primarily due to lower supply chain cost, favorable mix shifts as well as Future Ready transformation savings, partially
offset by competitive pricing. Operating expenses as a percentage of revenue increased primarily due to higher litigation costs, go-to-market initiatives and continued investments in innovation,
partially offset by disciplined cost management including Future Ready transformation savings.PrintingA ForA theA fiscalA yearsA endedA OctoberA 31A 202420232022A Dollars in millionsNet
revenue$17,338$18,029$18,902Earnings from operations$3,290$3,399$3,619Earnings from operations as a % of net revenue19.0%18.9%19. 1%A The components of the net revenue and
weighted net revenue change by business unit were as follows:A A ForA theA fiscalA yearSA endedA OctoberA 31A NetA RevenueWeighted Net Revenue Change Percentage

Points(1)A 20242023202220242023A InA millionsA Supplies$11,295A $11,452A $11,761A (0.9)(1.6)Commercial Printing4,841A 5,250A 5,339A (2.2)(0.5)Consumer

Printing1,202A 1,327A 1,802A (0.7)(2.5)Total Printing$17,338A $18,029A $18,902A (3.8)(4.6)(1) Weighted Net Revenue Change Percentage Points measures the contribution of each business
unit towards overall segment revenue growth. It is calculated by dividing the change in revenue of each business unit from the prior period by total segment revenue for the prior-year

period.A Fiscal year 2024 compared with fiscal year 2023Printing net revenue decreased 3.8% (decreased 3.2% on a constant currency basis) for fiscal year 2024 as compared to the prior-year
period. The decline in net revenue was primarily driven by Commercial Printing, Consumer Printing and Supplies as well as unfavorable foreign currency impacts. Net revenue for Supplies
decreased 1.4% primarily due to decline in the installed base and usage as well as foreign currency impacts, partially offset by disciplined pricing. Printer unit volume decreased 7.2% due to
demand weakness and hardware ASPs decreased 3.2%. Printer hardware ASPs decreased primarily due to competitive pricing, particularly from our Japanese competitors benefiting from a
favorable foreign currency environment, and mix shifts.Net revenue for Commercial Printing decreased by 7.8%, primarily due to an 8.8% decrease in printer unit volume and a 1.8% decrease
in ASPs. The decrease in ASPs was primarily driven by competitive pricing, partially offset by favorable mix shifts.Net revenue for Consumer Printing decreased 9.4%, primarily due to a 6.2%
decrease in printer unit volume and a 3.3% decrease in ASPa€™s. The decrease in ASPs was primarily driven by competitive pricing, partially offset by favorable mix shifts.Printing earnings
from operations as a percentage of net revenue increased by 0.1 percentage points driven by an increase in gross margin, partially offset by higher operating expenses as a percentage of
revenue. The increase in gross margin was primarily driven by favorable mix shifts as well as cost savings including Future Ready transformation savings, partially offset by competitive pricing.
Operating expenses as a percentage of revenue increased primarily due to higher go-to-market initiatives, partially offset by disciplined cost management including Future Ready transformation
savings. Corporate InvestmentsThe loss from operations in Corporate Investments for the fiscal year 2024 was primarily due to expenses associated with our incubation projects and
investments in digital enablement.41LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCESA We use cash generated by operations as our primary source of liquidity. We believe that current cash, cash flow
from operating activities, new borrowings, available commercial paper authorization and the credit facility will be sufficient to meet HPa€™ s operating cash requirements, planned capital
expenditures, interest and principal payments on all borrowings, pension and post-retirement funding requirements, authorized share repurchases and annual dividend payments for the
foreseeable future. Additionally, if suitable acquisition opportunities arise, the Company may obtain all or a portion of the required financing through additional borrowings. While our access to
capital markets may be constrained and our cost of borrowing may increase under certain business, market and economic conditions, our access to a variety of funding sources to meet our
liquidity needs is designed to facilitate continued access to capital resources under all such conditions. Our liquidity is subject to various risks including the risks identified in the section entitled
a€ceRisk Factorsa€ in ItemA 1A and market risks identified in the section entitled 4€ceQuantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Riska€ in ItemA 7A, which are incorporated herein
by reference.Amounts held outside of the U.S. are generally utilized to support non-U.S. liquidity needs and may from time to time be distributed to the U.S. Repatriations of amounts held
outside the U.S. generally will not be taxable from a U.S. federal tax perspective but may be subject to state income or foreign withholding tax upon repatriation. As we evaluate the future cash
needs of our operations, we may revise the amount of foreign earnings considered to be permanently reinvested in our foreign subsidiaries and how to utilize such funds, including reducing our
gross debt level, or other uses.LiquidityOur cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash and total debt were as follows:A A AsA ofA OctoberA 31A 20242023A InA millionsCash and cash
equivalents$3,238A $3,107A Restricted cash$15A $125A Total debt$9,669A $9,484A Our key cash flow metrics were as

follows:A ForA theA fiscalA yearsA endedA OctoberA 31A 202420232022A A In millions Net cash provided by operating activities$3,749A $3,571A $4,463A Net cash used in investing
activities(646)(590)(3,549)Net cash used in financing activities(3,082)(2,894)(2,068)Net increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash$2 1A $87A $(1,154)Operating
activitiesA Net cash provided by operating activities increased by $0.2 billion for fiscal year 2024 due to favorable working capital impacts, partially offset by changes in receivables from
contract manufacturers due to higher manufacturing activity and amounts collected and held on behalf of a third party for trade receivables previously sold.42Key working capital
metricsManagement utilizes current cash conversion cycle information to manage our working capital level. The table below presents the cash conversion cycle:A As

ofA OctoberA 31202420232022Days of sales outstanding in accounts receivable (4€ceDS04€)33A 28A 28A Days of supply in inventory (4€ceDOSa€)63A 57A 57A Days of purchases outstanding
in accounts payable (4€eDPO&€)(138)(117)(114)Cash conversion cycle(42)(32)(29)October 31, 2024 as compared to October 31, 2023The cash conversion cycle is the sum of days of DSO and
DOS less DPO. Items which may cause the cash conversion cycle in a particular period to differ from historical trends include, but are not limited to, changes in business mix, changes in
payment terms, timing and extent of receivables factoring, seasonal trends and the timing of revenue recognition and inventory purchases within the period.DSO measures the average number
of days our receivables are outstanding. DSO is calculated by dividing ending accounts receivable, net of allowance for credit losses, by a 90-day average of net revenue. The increase in DSO
was primarily due to unfavorable revenue linearity.DOS measures the average number of days from procurement to sale of our product. DOS is calculated by dividing ending inventory by a 90-
day average of cost of goods sold. The increase in DOS is primarily due to strategic buys in Personal Systems and higher in-transit shipments.DPO measures the average number of days our
accounts payable balances are outstanding. DPO is calculated by dividing ending accounts payable by a 90-day average of cost of goods sold. The increase in DPO as compared to prior-year
period, was primarily due to higher manufacturing volumes in Personal Systems as well as favorable changes in payment terms.Investing activitiesNet cash used in investing activities increased
$0.1 billion for fiscal year 2024 as compared to the prior-year period, primarily due to payments made in connection with acquisitions.Financing activitiesNet cash used in financing activities
increased by $0.2 billion in fiscal year 2024 compared to the prior-year period, primarily due to higher share repurchases of $2.0 billion, partially offset by lower net debt repayment of $1.6
billion and collateral returned for derivative instruments of $0.2 billion in the prior-year period.43Share repurchases and dividendsIn fiscal year 2024, HP returned $3.2 billion to shareholders
in the form of share repurchases of $2.1 billion and cash dividends of $1.1 billion. On August 27, 2024, HPa€™s Board of Directors increased HPa€™s total share repurchase authorization to
$10.0 billion, inclusive of the amount remaining under previously authorized share repurchases. As of October 31, 2024, HP had approximately $9.3 billion remaining under the share
repurchase authorizations approved by HPa€™s Board of Directors. For more information on our share repurchases, see Note 12, 4€ceStockholdersa€™ Deficita€, to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in Item 8, which is incorporated herein by reference.Capital resourcesDebt LevelsA A AsA ofA OctoberA 31A 20242023A Dollars in millionsShort-term debt$1,406$230Long-term
debt$8,263$9,254Weighted-average interest rate4.5A %4.2A %We maintain debt levels that we establish through consideration of a number of factors, including cash flow expectations, cash
requirements for operations, investment plans (including acquisitions), share repurchase activities, our cost of capital and targeted capital structure.Short-term debt increased by $1.2 billion
and long-term debt decreased by $1.0 billion for fiscal year 2024 as compared to prior-year period. These changes are due to reclassification of Global Notes due in June 2025 to short-term.Our
weighted-average interest rate reflects the effective interest rate on our borrowings prevailing during the period and reflects the effect of interest rate swaps. For more information on our
interest rate swaps, see NoteA 10, 4€ceFinancial Instrumentsa€ in the Consolidated Financial Statements and notes thereto in Item 8, &€ceFinancial Statements and Supplementary Dataa€,
which is incorporated herein by reference.For more information on our outstanding debt, see Note 11, a€ceBorrowingsa€, to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of Part II of this
report, which is incorporated herein by reference.As of OctoberA 31, 2024, we maintained a $5.0 billion sustainability-linked senior unsecured committed revolving credit facility maturing
August 1, 2029. Funds borrowed under the revolving credit facility may be used for general corporate purposes.Available borrowing resourcesAs of OctoberA 31, 2024, we had available
borrowing resources of $0.9 billion from uncommitted lines of credit in addition to funds available under the revolving credit facility.In February 2024, we filed an automatically effective shelf
registration statement with the SEC, which enables us to offer for sale, at any time and from time to time, in one or more offerings, an unspecified amount of debt securities, common stock,
preferred stock, depository shares and warrants.For more information on our borrowings, see Note 11, &€ceBorrowingsa€, to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of Part II of this
report, which is incorporated herein by reference.44Credit ratingsOur credit risk is evaluated by major independent rating agencies based upon publicly available information as well as
information they obtain during our ongoing discussions. While we currently do not have any rating downgrade triggers that would accelerate the maturity of a material amount of our debt, a
downgrade from our current credit rating may increase the cost of borrowing under our credit facilities, reduce market capacity for our commercial paper, require the posting of additional
collateral under some of our derivative contracts and may have a negative impact on our liquidity and capital position and our contractual business going forward, depending on the extent of
such downgrade. See &€meRisk Factorsa€”Macroeconomic, Industry and Financial Risksa€”Failure to maintain our credit ratings could adversely affect our liquidity, capital position, borrowing
costs and access to capital markets, as well as our subscription based and other offerings.4€ in Item 1A, which is incorporated herein by reference. We can access alternative sources of funding,
including drawdowns under our credit facility, if necessary, to offset potential reductions in the market capacity for our commercial paper.45Table of ContentsHP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Managementa€™s Discussion and Analysis ofFinancial Condition and Results of Operations (Continued) CONTRACTUAL AND OTHER OBLIGATIONSOur contractual and other obligations as of
OctoberA 31, 2024, were as follows:A Payments Due by PeriodA TotalShort-termLong-termA In millionsPrincipal payments on debt(1)$9,71 7A $1,406A $8,311A Interest payments on
debt(2)2,724A 404A 2,320A Purchase obligations(3)1, 366A 896A 470A Operating lease obligations1, 361A 513A 848A Finance lease obhgatlonsSlA 13A 18A Total(4)(5)



(6)$15,199A $3,232A $11,967A (1)Amounts represent the principal cash payments relating to our short-term and long-term debt and do not include any fair value adjustments, discounts or
premiums.(2)Amounts represent the expected interest payments relating to our short-term and long-term debt. We have outstanding interest rate swap agreements accounted for as fair value
hedges that have the economic effect of changing fixed interest rates associated with some of our U.S. Dollar Global Notes to variable interest rates. The impact of our outstanding interest rate
swaps as of OctoberA 31, 2024 was factored into the calculation of the future interest payments on debt.(3)Purchase obligations include agreements to purchase goods or services that are
enforceable and legally binding on us and that specify all significant terms, including fixed or minimum quantities to be purchased; fixed, minimum or variable price and volume provisions; and
the approximate timing of the transaction. These purchase obligations are related principally to inventory and other items. Purchase obligations exclude agreements that are cancellable without
penalty. Purchase obligations also exclude open purchase orders that are routine arrangements entered into in the ordinary course of business as they are difficult to quantify in a meaningful
way. Even though open purchase orders are considered enforceable and legally binding, the terms generally allow us the option to cancel, reschedule, and adjust terms based on our business
needs prior to the delivery of goods or performance of services.(4)Retirement and Post-Retirement Benefit Plan Contributions. In fiscal year 2025, we expect to contribute approximately $36
million to our non-U.S. pension plans, $30 million to cover benefit payments to U.S. non-qualified pension plan participants and $4 million to cover benefit claims for our post-retirement benefit
plans. Our policy is to fund our pension plans so that we meet the minimum contribution required by local government, funding and taxing authorities. Expected contributions and payments to
our pension and post-retirement benefit plans are excluded from the contractual obligations table because they do not represent contractual cash outflows as they are dependent on numerous
factors which may result in a wide range of outcomes. For more information on our retirement and post-retirement benefit plans, see Note 4, 4€ceRetirement and Post-Retirement Benefit
Plansa€, to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, which is incorporated herein by reference.(5)Cost Savings Plans. As a result of our approved restructuring plans, we expect to make
future cash payments of approximately $0.2A billion in the fiscal year 2025. For more information on our restructuring activities that are part of our cost improvements, see Note 3,
a€eeRestructuring and Other Chargesa€, to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, which is incorporated herein by reference.(6)Uncertain Tax Positions. As of OctoberA 31, 2024, we
had approximately $1.0 billion of recorded liabilities including related interest and penalties pertaining to uncertain tax positions. We are unable to make a reasonable estimate as to when cash
settlement with the tax authorities might occur due to the uncertainties related to these tax matters. Payments of these liabilities would result from settlements with taxing authorities. For more
information on our uncertain tax positions, see Note 6, 4&€ceTaxes on Earningsa€, to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, which is incorporated herein by reference.A 460ff-balance
sheet arrangementsAs part of our ongoing business, we have not participated in transactions that generate material relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships, such as
entities often referred to as structured finance or special purpose entities, which would have been established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements or other
contractually narrow or limited purposes.A We have third-party short-term financing arrangements intended to facilitate the working capital requirements of certain customers and HP. For
more information on our third-party short-term financing arrangements, see NoteA 7 &€ceSupplementary Financial Informationa€ to the Consolidated Financial Statements in ItemA 8, which is
incorporated herein by reference.47Table of ContentsITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.In the normal course of business, we are exposed to foreign currency
exchange rate and interest rate risks that could impact our financial position, cash flows and results of operations. Our risk management strategy with respect to these market risks may include
the use of derivative instruments. We use derivative contracts only to manage existing underlying exposures. Accordingly, we do not use derivative contracts for speculative purposes. Our risks,
risk management strategy and a sensitivity analysis estimating the effects of changes in fair value for each of these exposures are outlined below.Actual gains and losses in the future may differ
materially from the sensitivity analyses based on changes in the timing and amount of foreign currency exchange rate and interest rate movements and our actual exposures and derivatives in
place at the time of the change, as well as the effectiveness of the derivative to hedge the related exposure.Foreign currency exchange rate riskWe are exposed to foreign currency exchange
rate risk inherent in our sales commitments, anticipated sales, anticipated purchases and assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. We transact business in over
40 currencies worldwide, of which the most significant foreign currencies to our operations for fiscal year 2024 were Euro, Chinese yuan renminbi, Japanese yen and British pound. For most
currencies, we are a net receiver of the foreign currency and therefore benefit from a weaker U.S. dollar and are adversely affected by a stronger U.S. dollar relative to the foreign currency.
Even where we are a net receiver of the foreign currency, a weaker U.S. dollar may adversely affect certain expense figures, if taken alone.We use a combination of forward contracts and at
times, options designated as cash flow hedges to protect against the foreign currency exchange rate risks inherent in our forecasted net revenue and, to a lesser extent in cost of sales. We also
use other derivatives not designated as hedging instruments consisting primarily of forward contracts to hedge foreign currency balance sheet exposures. Alternatively, we may choose not to
hedge the risk associated with our foreign currency exposures, primarily if such exposure acts as a natural hedge for offsetting amounts denominated in the same currency or if the currency is
too difficult or too expensive to hedge.We have performed sensitivity analyses as of October 31, 2024 and 2023, using a modeling technique that measures the change in the fair values arising
from a hypothetical 10% adverse movement in the levels of foreign currency exchange rates relative to the U.S. dollar, with all other variables held constant. The analyses cover all of our
foreign currency derivative contracts offset by underlying exposures. The foreign currency exchange rates we used in performing the sensitivity analysis were based on market rates in effect as
of October 31, 2024 and 2023. The sensitivity analyses indicated that a hypothetical 10% adverse movement in foreign currency exchange rates would result in a foreign exchange loss of $94
million and $133 million as of October 31, 2024 and October 31, 2023, respectively.Interest rate riskWe also are exposed to interest rate risk related to debt we have issued and our investment
portfolio.We issue long-term debt in either U.S. dollars or foreign currencies based on market conditions at the time of financing. We may use interest rate and/or currency swaps to modify the
market risk exposures in connection with the debt to achieve a floating interest expense and/or U.S. dollar principal outflows. The swap transactions generally involve the exchange of fixed for
floating interest payments. However, we may choose not to swap fixed for floating interest payments or may terminate a previously executed swap if we believe a larger proportion of fixed-rate
debt would be beneficial.In order to hedge the fair value of certain fixed-rate investments, we may enter into interest rate swaps that convert fixed interest returns into variable interest returns.
We may use cash flow hedges to hedge the variability in interest income received on certain variable-rate investments. We may also enter into interest rate swaps that convert variable rate
interest returns into fixed-rate interest returns.We have performed sensitivity analyses as of October 31, 2024 and 2023, using a modeling technique that measures the change in the fair values
arising from a hypothetical 10% adverse movement in the levels of interest rates across the entire yield curve, with all other variables held constant. The analyses cover our debt, investments
and interest rate swaps. The analyses use actual or approximate maturities for the debt, investments and interest rate swaps. The discount rates used were based on the market interest rates in
effect as of October 31, 2024 and 2023. The sensitivity analyses indicated that a hypothetical 10% adverse movement in interest rates would have resulted in a loss in the fair values of our debt
and investments, net of interest rate swaps, of $164 million and $196 million as of October 31, 2024 and October 31, 2023, respectively.48Table of ContentsA A A A ITEM 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data.Table of ContentsA PageReports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (PCAOB ID: 42)50Management's Report on Internal Control Over
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Leases10349Table of ContentsA A A A Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting FirmTo the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of HP Inc.Opinion on the Financial
StatementsWe have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of HP Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) as of October 31, 2024 and 2023, the related consolidated statements of
earnings, comprehensive income, stockholdersa€™ deficit and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended October 31, 2024, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the
d€ceconsolidated financial statementsa€). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company at October 31, 2024
and 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended October 31, 2024, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the Company's internal control over financial
reporting as of October 31, 2024, based on criteria established in Internal Controla€”Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(2013 framework), and our report dated December 12, 2024 expressed an adverse opinion thereon.Basis for OpinionThese financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Companya€™s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are
required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission
and the PCAOB.We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.Critical Audit MatterThe critical audit matter communicated below is a
matter arising from the current period audit of the financial statements that was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relates to accounts or
disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective or complex judgments. The communication of the critical audit matter does not
alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the
critical audit matter or on the account or disclosure to which it relates.Estimation of variable considerationDescription of the MatterAs described in Note 1 of the consolidated financial
statements, the Company reduces revenue for customer and distributor programs and incentive offerings including rebates, promotions and other volume-based incentives. The Company uses
estimates to determine the expected variable consideration for such programs based on factors like historical experience, expected customer behavior and market conditions. Estimated variable
consideration is presented within other current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet and totaled $3.1 billion at October 31, 2024.Auditing the Companya€™s measurement of variable
consideration is especially challenging because the calculation is complex and reflects managementa€™s assumptions about expected future claims activity and changes in those assumptions
can have a material effect on the amount of variable consideration recognized.How We Addressed the Matter in Our AuditOur audit procedures included, among others, developing an
independent estimate of the variable consideration and comparing our estimate to the recorded balance. We performed this predictive analysis at both an aggregated and disaggregated level.
We also inspected the terms and conditions of the incentive offerings. In addition, we compared previous estimates of variable consideration to actual payments./s/ Ernst & Young LLPWe have
served as the Companya€ ™ s auditor since 2000.Houston, TexasDecemberA 12, 202450Table of ContentsA A A A Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting FirmTo the Stockholders
and the Board of Directors of HP Inc.Opinion on Internal Control Over Financial ReportingWe have audited HP Inc. and subsidiariesd€™ internal control over financial reporting as of October
31, 2024, based on criteria established in Internal Controla€”Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework) (the
COSO criteria). In our opinion, because of the effect of the material weakness described below on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, HP Inc. and subsidiaries (the
Company) has not maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of October 31, 2024, based on the COSO criteria.A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the companya€™s annual or interim financial statements will
not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. The following material weakness has been identified and included in managementa€™s assessment. Management has identified a material
weakness related to ineffective design and operation of information technology (4€eITa€) general controls in the areas of user access, change management and job schedule monitoring IT
operations for certain IT applications supporting the companya€™s internal control over financial reporting. As a result, the application controls and IT dependent manual controls that rely
upon information from the impacted IT applications were also deemed ineffective.We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States) (PCAOB), the consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of October 31, 2024 and 2023, the related consolidated statements of earnings, comprehensive income,
stockholdersa€™ deficit and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended October 31, 2024, and the related notes. This material weakness was considered in determining the
nature, timing and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the 2024 consolidated financial statements, and this report does not affect our report dated December 12, 2024, which expressed
an unqualified opinion thereon.Basis for OpinionThe Companya€ ™s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Managementa€™s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on the Companya€™s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent
with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.We
conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.Definition and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial ReportingA companya€™s
internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A companya€™s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the companya€™s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over
financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate./s/ Ernst & Young LLPHouston, TexasDecemberA 12, 202451Table of
ContentsA A A A Managementa€™s Report on Internal Control Over Financial ReportingHPA€™s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting. HP4€™s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. HPa€™s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of HP; (ii) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of HP are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of HP; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of HP4€™s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of



changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. HPa€™s management assessed the effectiveness of HP4€™s internal control over
financial reporting as of October 31, 2024, utilizing the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Controla€”Integrated
Framework (2013 framework).A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the Companya€™s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.As previously reported in the Companya€™s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2023, we identified a material weakness in internal control over financial reporting. The material weakness resulted from undue
reliance on information generated from certain software solutions affecting net revenue without effectively designed and operating information technology (4€ceITa€) general controls,
specifically around user access and change management. As of October 31, 2024, the Company has concluded that the previously identified material weakness was not remediated and that IT
general control deficiencies exist in the areas of user access, change management and job schedule monitoring IT operations for certain IT applications affecting various financial statement line
items as well as net revenue. As a result of the material weakness, the application controls and IT dependent manual controls that rely upon information from affected IT applications were also
deemed ineffective. This material weakness did not result in any material misstatement of our financial statements.While this material weakness did not result in a material misstatement of our
financial statements, this control deficiency was not remediated as of October 31, 2024 and there is a reasonable possibility that it could have resulted in a material misstatement in the
Company's annual or interim consolidated financial statements that would not be detected. Accordingly, we determined that this control deficiency constituted a material weakness.As a result of
this material weakness, management has concluded that we did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as of October 31, 2024.The effectiveness of HPa€™ s internal
control over financial reporting as of October 31, 2024 has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, HPa€™s independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which appears
in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.A /s/ ENRIQUE LORES/s/ KAREN L. PARKHILLEnrique LoresPresident and Chief Executive OfficerDecemberA 12, 2024A Karen L.
ParkhillChief Financial OfficerDecemberA 12, 202452Table of ContentsA A A A HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESConsolidated Statements of

EarningsA ForA theA fiscalA yearsA endedA OctoberA 31A 202420232022A InA millions,A exceptA perA shareA amountsNet

revenueProducts$50,453A $50,660A $60,041A Services3,106A 3,058A 2,869A Total net revenue53,559A 53,718A 62,910A Cost of net

revenue:Products39,952A 40,4844 48,881A Services1,789A 1,726A 1,766A Total cost of net revenued1,741A 42,2104 50,647A Gross margin11,818A 11,508A 12,263A Research and
development1,640A 1,578A 1,653A Selling, general and administrative5,658A 5,357A 5,264A Restructuring and other charges301A 527A 218A Acquisition and divestiture

charges83A 240A 318A Amortization of intangible assets318A 350A 228A Russia exit chargesa€”A a4€”A 23A Total costs and expenses8,000A 8,052A 7,704A Earnings from

operations3, 818A 3,456A 4,559A Interest and other, net(539)(519)(235)Earmngs before taxes3,279A 2,937A 4,324A (Prov1510n for) benefit from taxes(504)326A (1,192)Net

eammgs$2 775A $3,263A $3 132A Net earnings per share:A A A Basic$2.83A $3.29A $3.02A Diluted$2.81A $3.26A $2.98A Weighted-average shares used to compute net earnings per

share:A A A Basic979A 992A 1,038A Diluted989A 1,000A 1,050A The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.53Table of ContentsA A A A HPA INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIESConsolidated Statements of Comprehensive IncomeFor the fiscal years ended October 31A 202420232022A In millionsNet earnings$2, 775A $3,263A $3 132A Other
comprehensive (loss) income before taxes:A Change in unrealized components of available-for-sale debt securities: A Unrealized gains (losses) arising during the penod8A 2A (11)Change in
unreallzed components of Cash flow hedges A Unreallzed gams (losses) arising durmg the pen0d51A (427)1 541A Gams reclassified 1nt0 earnmgs(274)(84)(779)A (223)(51 1)762A Change in

except par valueASSETSA A Current assets:A A Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash$3, 253A $3,232A Accounts receivable, net of allowance for credit losses of $83 and $93,

respectively5, 117A 4,237A Inventory7, 720A 6,862A Other current assets4,670A 3,646A Total current assets20,760A 17,977A Property, plant and equipment,

net2,914A 2,827A Goodwill8,627A 8,591A Other non-current assets7,608A 7,609A Total assets$39,909A $37,004A LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERSA€™ DEFICITA Current liabilities:A Notes
payable and short-term borrowings$1,406A $230A Accounts payah1e16,903A 14,046A Other current liabilities10,378A 10,212A Total current liabilities28,687A 24,488A Long-term

debt8,263A 9,254A Other non-current liabilities4,282A 4,331A Commitments and contingenciesStockholdersa€™ deficit:0Preferred stock, $0.01 par value (300 shares authorized; none
issued)a€”A &€”A Common stock, $0.01par value (9,600 shares authorized; 939 and 989 shares issuedA andA outstanding as of OctoberA 31, 2024, and 2023, respectively)9A 10A Additional
paid-in capitall,778A 1,505A Accumulated deficit(2,676)(2,361)Accumulated other comprehensive loss(434)(223)Total stockholdersa€™ deficit(1,323)(1,069)Total liabilities and
stockholdersa€™ deficit$39,909A $37,004A The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.55Table of ContentsA A A A A HPA INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIESConsolidated Statements of Cash FlowsA ForA theA fiscalA yearsA endedA OctoberA 31A 202420232022A InA millionsCash flows from operating activities: A A A Net
earnings$2,775A $3,263A $3,132A Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by operating activities:A A A Depreciation and amortization830A 850A 780A Stock-based
compensation expense452A 438A 343A Restructuring and other charges301A 527A 218A Deferred taxes on earnings(122)(923)577A Other, net(38)(10)475A Changes in operating assets and
liabilities, net of acquisitions:Accounts receivable(929)278A 1,285A Inventory(852)668A 214A Accounts payab192,840A (1,240)(909)Net investment in leases from integrated financing(165)(110)
(155)Taxes on eamings(24)198A (134)Restructuring and other(264)(310)(245)Other assets and liabilities(1,055)(58)(1,118)Net cash provided by operating activities3,749A 3,571A 4,463A Cash
flows from investing activities:A A Investment in property, plant and equipment, net(592)(593)(765)Purchases of available-for-sale securities and other investments(4)(11)(52)Maturities and
sales of available-for-sale securities and other investments8A 21A 9A Collateral posted for derivative instrumentsa€”A a€”A 14A Payments made in connection with business acquisitions, net of
cash acqulred(58)(7)(2 755)Net cash used in investing act1v1t19s(646)(590)(3 549)Cash flows from financing activities: AA Payments of short-term borrowings with original maturities less than
90A days, neta€”A (10)(400)Proceeds from debt, net of issuance costs380A 255A 4,175A Payment of debt and other associated costs(213)(1,700)(693)Stock-based award activities and
others(74)(99)(95)Repurchase of common stock(2,100)(100)(4,297)Cash dividends paid(1,075)(1,037)(1,037)Collateral (returned) withdrawn for derivative

instrumentsa€”A (200)200A Settlement of cash flow hedges 4€”A (3)79A Net cash used in financing activities(3,082)(2,894)(2,068)Increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents and restricted
cash21A 87A (1,154)Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of period3,232A 3,145A 4,299A Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of

period$3,253A $3,232A $3,145A Supplemental cash flow disclosures:Income taxes paid, net of refunds$649A $398A $749A Interest expense paid$441A $548A $305A The accompanying notes
are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.56Table of ContentsA A A A HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESConsolidated Statements of Stockholdersa€™ Deficit

A CommonA StockAdditionalPaid-in CapltalA AccumulatedOtherComprehenswe (Loss) IncomeTotal Stockholdersa€™ DeficitNumber ofA SharesPar ValueAccumulated

DeficitA InA millions,A exceptA numberA ofA sharesA inA thousandsBalance as of October 31, 20211,092,205A $11A $1,060A $(2, 470)$(245)$(1 644)Net earnings3,132A 3,132A Other
comprehensive income, net of taxes530A 530A Comprehensive income3,662A Issuance of common stock in connection with employeeA stock plans and other11,951A (111)(111)Repurchases of
common stock (Note 12)(124,287)(1)(129)(4,117)(4,247)Cash dividends ($1.00 per common share)(1,037)(1,037)Stock-based compensation expense343A 343A Business

acquisitions9A 9A Balance as of October 31, 2022979,869A 10A 1,172A (4,492)285A (3,025)Net earnings3,263A 3,263A Other comprehensive loss, net of taxes(508)(508)Comprehensive
income2,755A Issuance of common stock in connection with employeeA stock plans and other12,537A (100)(100)Repurchases of common stock (Note 12)(3,624)(5)(95)(100)Cash dividends
($1.05 per common share)(1,037)(1,037)Stock-based compensation expense438A 438A Balance as of October 31, 2023988,782A 10A 1,505A (2,361)(223)(1,069)Net

earnings2,775A 2,775A Other comprehensive loss, net of taxes(211)(211)Comprehensive income2,564A Issuance of common stock in connection with employeeA stock plans and

other13,063A (74)(74)Repurchases of common stock (Note 12)(62,856)(1)(110)(2,015)(2,126)Cash dividends ($1.10 per common share)(1,075)(1,075)Stock-based compensation

expense452A 452A Other5A 5A Balance as of October 31, 2024938,989A $9A $1,778A $(2,676)$(434)$(1,323)The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial
Statements.57Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial StatementsNoteA 1: Summary of Significant Accounting PoliciesBasis of PresentationThe
accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of HP and its wholly-owned subsidiaries are prepared in conformity with U.S. GAAP.Principles of ConsolidationThe Consolidated Financial
Statements include the accounts of HP and its subsidiaries and affiliates in which HP has a controlling financial interest or is the primary beneficiary. All intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated.ReclassificationsHP has reclassified certain prior-year amounts to conform to the current-year presentation.Use of EstimatesThe preparation of financial
statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in HPa€™s Consolidated Financial Statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results may differ materially from those estimates.Foreign Currency TranslationHP predominantly uses the U.S. dollar as its functional currency. Assets and
liabilities denominated in non-U.S. dollars are remeasured into U.S. dollars at current exchange rates for monetary assets and liabilities and at historical exchange rates for non-monetary assets
and liabilities. Net revenue, costs and expenses denominated in non-U.S. dollars are recorded in U.S. dollars at monthly average exchange rates prevailing during the period. HP includes gains
or losses from foreign currency remeasurement in Interest and other, net in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings. Certain foreign subsidiaries designate the local currency as the functional
currency, and HP records the translation of their assets and liabilities into U.S. dollars at the balance sheet dates as translation adjustments and includes them as a component of Accumulated
other comprehensive loss.Recently Adopted Accounting PronouncementsIn September 2022, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (a€ceFASB&€) issued guidance that enhances the
transparency about the use of supplier finance programs. Under the new guidance, companies that use a supplier finance program in connection with the purchase of goods or services are
required to disclose information about those programs to allow users of financial statements to understand the nature, activity during the period, changes from period to period, and potential
magnitude. HP adopted this guidance in the first quarter of fiscal year 2024, except for the disclosure on roll forward information which will be adopted in fiscal year 2025, in line with the
effective adoption dates prescribed by the FASB. See Note 7, &€ceSupplementary Financial Information,&€ for additional disclosure related to HPa€™s supplier finance programs.Recently
Issued Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet AdoptedIn November 2024, the FASB issued guidance that requires disaggregation of specific expense categories in disclosures within the footnotes
to the financial statements on an annual and interim basis. HP is required to adopt this guidance for its annual period ending October 31, 2028 and all interim periods thereafter on a
prospective basis. Early adoption is permitted. HP is currently evaluating the impact of this guidance on its disclosures.In December 2023, the FASB issued guidance that enhances the
transparency of income tax disclosures by expanding annual disclosure requirements related to the rate reconciliation and income taxes paid. HP is required to adopt this guidance for its annual
period ending October 31, 2026. Early adoption is permitted. HP is currently evaluating the impact of this guidance on its disclosures.In November 2023, the FASB issued guidance that updates
reportable segment disclosure requirements primarily through enhanced disclosures about significant segment expenses and information used to assess segment performance on an annual and
interim basis. HP is required to adopt this guidance for its annual period ending October 31, 2025 and all interim periods thereafter. Early adoption is permitted. HP is currently evaluating the
impact of this guidance on its disclosures.58Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial StatementsRevenue RecognitionGeneralHP recognizes revenues at
a point in time or over time depicting the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which HP expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. HP follows the five-step model for revenue recognition as summarized below:1.Identify the contract with a customer - A contract with customer exists when (i) it is
approved and signed by all parties, (ii) each partya€™s rights and obligations can be identified, (iii) payment terms are defined, (iv) it has commercial substance and (v) the customer has the
ability and intent to pay. HP evaluates customersa€™ ability to pay based on various factors like historical payment experience, financial metrics and customer credit scores. While the majority
of our sales contracts contain standard terms and conditions, there are certain contracts with non-standard terms and conditions.2.Identify the performance obligations in the contract - HP
evaluates each performance obligation in an arrangement to determine whether it is distinct, such as hardware and/or service. A performance obligation constitutes distinct goods or services
when the customer can benefit from such goods or services either on its own or together with other resources that are readily available to the customer and the performance obligation is
distinct within the context of the contract.3.Determine the transaction price - Transaction price is the amount of consideration to which HP expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to the customer. If the transaction price includes a variable amount, HP estimates the amount it expects to be entitled to using either the expected value or the most likely
amount method. HP reduces the transaction price at the time of revenue recognition for customer and distributor programs and incentive offerings, rebates, promotions, other volume-based
incentives and expected returns. HP uses estimates to determine the expected variable consideration for such programs based on factors like historical experience, expected consumer behavior
and market conditions. HP has elected the practical expedient of not accounting for significant financing components if the period between revenue recognition and when the customer pays for
the product or service is one year or less.4.Allocate the transaction price to performance obligations in the contract - When a sales arrangement contains multiple performance obligations, such
as hardware and/or services, HP allocates revenue to each performance obligation in proportion to their selling price. The selling price for each performance obligation is based on its
Standalone Selling Price (a&€0eSSPa€). HP establishes SSP using the price charged for a performance obligation when sold separately (a€ceobservable pricea€) and, in some instances, using the
price established by management having the relevant authority. When observable price is not available, HP establishes SSP maximizing the use of observable inputs based on management
judgment while considering internal factors such as historical discounting trends for products and services, pricing practices and other observable factors.5.Recognize revenue when (or as) the
performance obligation is satisfied - Revenue is recognized when, or as, a performance obligation is satisfied by transferring control of a promised good or service to a customer. HP generally
invoices the customer upon delivery of the goods or services and the payments are due as per contract terms. For fixed price support or maintenance contracts that are in the nature of stand-
ready obligations, payments are generally received in advance from customers and revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over the duration of the contract.HP reports revenue net of any
taxes collected from customers and remitted to government authorities, and the collected taxes are recorded as other current liabilities until remitted to the relevant government authority. HP
includes costs related to shipping and handling in Cost of net revenue.HP records revenue on a gross basis when HP is a principal in the transaction and on a net basis when HP is acting as an
agent between the customer and the vendor. HP considers several factors to determine whether it is acting as a principal or an agent, most notably whether HP is the primary obligor to the
customer, has established its own pricing and has inventory and credit risks.HardwareHP transfers control of the products to the customer at the time the product is delivered to the customer
and recognizes revenue accordingly, unless customer acceptance is uncertain or significant obligations to the customer remain unfulfilled. HP records revenue from the sale of equipment under
sales-type leases as revenue at the commencement of the lease.ServicesHP recognizes revenue from fixed-price support, maintenance and other service contracts over time depicting the
pattern of service delivery and recognizes the costs associated with these contracts as incurred.59Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial
StatementsContract Assets and LiabilitiesContract assets are rights to consideration in exchange for goods or services that HP has transferred to a customer when such right is conditional on
something other than the passage of time. Such contract assets are not material to HP4€™s Consolidated Financial Statements.Contract liabilities are recorded as deferred revenues when
amounts invoiced to customers are more than the revenues recognized or when payments are received in advance for fixed-price support or maintenance contracts. The short-term and long-
term deferred revenues are reported within the Other current liabilities and Other non-current liabilities respectively.Cost to obtain a contract and fulfillment costIncremental direct costs of
obtaining a contract primarily consist of sales commissions. HP has elected the practical expedient to expense as incurred the costs to obtain a contract with a benefit period equal to or less
than one year. For contracts with a period of benefit greater than one year, HP capitalizes incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer and amortizes these costs over their
expected period of benefit provided such costs are recoverable.Fulfillment costs consist of set-up and transition costs related to other service contracts. These costs generate or enhance



resources of HP that will be used in satisfying the performance obligation in the future and are capitalized and amortized over the expected period of the benefit, provided such costs are
recoverable.See Note 7, &€ceSupplementary Financial Informationa€ for details on net revenue by region, cost to obtain a contract and fulfillment cost, contract liabilities and value of remaining
performance obligations.LeasesAt the inception of a contract, HP assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. The assessment is based on (1) whether the contract involves the use of a
distinct identified asset, (2) whether HP obtains the right to substantially all the economic benefit from the use of the asset throughout the period, and (3) whether HP has the right to direct the
use of the asset.All significant lease arrangements are recognized at lease commencement. Leases with a lease term of 12 months or less at inception are not recorded on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets and are expensed on a straight-line basis over the lease term in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings. HP determines the lease term by assuming the exercise of renewal
options that are reasonably certain. As most of the leases do not provide an implicit interest rate, HP uses the unsecured borrowing rate and risk-adjusts that rate to approximate a
collateralized rate at the commencement date to determine the present value of future payments that are reasonably certain.Stock-Based CompensationHP determines stock-based
compensation expense based on the measurement date fair value of the award. HP recognizes compensation cost only for those awards expected to meet the service and performance vesting
conditions on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the award. HP determines compensation costs at the aggregate grant level for service-based awards and at the individual
vesting tranche level for awards with performance and/or market conditions. HP estimates the forfeiture rate based on its historical experience.A Retirement and Post-Retirement PlansHP has
various defined benefit, other contributory and non-contributory retirement and post-retirement plans. HP generally amortizes unrecognized actuarial gains and losses on a straight-line basis
over the average remaining estimated service life of participants. In limited cases, HP amortizes actuarial gains and losses using the corridor approach. See NoteA 4, 4€ceRetirement and Post-
Retirement Benefit Plansa€ for a full description of these plans and the accounting and funding policies.60Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial
StatementsAdvertising CostCosts to produce advertising are expensed as incurred during production. Costs to communicate advertising are expensed when the advertising is first run. Such
costs totaled approximately $628 million, $611 million and $696 million in fiscal years 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.Restructuring and Other ChargesHP records charges associated with
management-approved restructuring plans to reorganize one or more of HP4€™ s business segments, to remove duplicative headcount and infrastructure associated with business acquisitions
or to simplify business processes and accelerate innovation. Restructuring charges can include severance costs to reduce a specified number of employees, enhanced early retirement
incentives, infrastructure charges to vacate facilities and consolidate operations, and contract cancellation costs. HP records restructuring charges based on estimated employee terminations,
committed early retirements and site closure and consolidation plans. HP accrues for severance and other employee separation costs under these actions when it is probable that benefits will be
paid and the amount is reasonably estimable. The rates used in determining severance accruals are based on existing plans, historical experiences and negotiated settlements. Other charges
include non-recurring costs, including those as a result of information technology rationalization efforts and transformation program management costs, and are distinct from ongoing
operational costs. These costs primarily relate to third-party professional services and other non-recurring costs. Taxes on EarningsHP recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities for the
expected tax consequences of temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts using enacted tax rates in effect for the year the differences are
expected to reverse. HP records a valuation allowance to reduce the deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized.HP records accruals for uncertain tax positions
when HP believes that it is not more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities based on the technical merits of the position. HP makes
adjustments to these accruals when facts and circumstances change, such as the closing of a tax audit or the refinement of an estimate. The provision for income taxes includes the effects of
adjustments for uncertain tax positions, as well as any related interest and penalties.HP is subject to the Global Intangible Low-Taxed Income (&€ceGILTIa€) tax in the U.S. and elects to
recognize these taxes as a current expense in the period incurred.Accounts ReceivableHP records allowance for credit losses for the current expected credit losses inherent in the asset over its
expected life. The allowance for credit losses is maintained based on the relevant information about past events, including historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and
supportable forecasts that affect the collectability of the reported amount.HP records a specific reserve for individual accounts when HP becomes aware of specific customer circumstances,
such as in the case of a bankruptcy filing or deterioration in the customera€™ s operating results or financial position. If there are additional changes in circumstances related to the specific
customer, HP further adjusts estimates of the recoverability of receivables. HP assesses collectability by pooling receivables where similar risk characteristics exist. HP maintains an allowance
for credit losses for all other customers based on a variety of factors, including the use of third-party credit risk models that generate quantitative measures of default probabilities based on
market factors, financial condition of customers, length of time receivables are past due, trends in the weighted-average risk rating for the portfolio, macroeconomic conditions, information
derived from competitive benchmarking, significant one-time events, and historical experience. The past due or delinquency status of a receivable is based on the contractual payment terms of
the receivable.HP utilizes certain third-party arrangements in the normal course of business as part of HPa€™s cash and liquidity management and also to provide liquidity to certain partners to
facilitate their working capital requirements. These financing arrangements, which in certain cases provide for partial recourse, result in the transfer of HP4€™s trade receivables to a third-
party. HP reflects amounts transferred to, but not yet collected from the third-party in Accounts receivable in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. For arrangements involving an element of
recourse, the fair value of the recourse obligation is measured using market data from similar transactions and reported as a current liability in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.Concentrations
of RiskFinancial instruments that potentially subject HP to significant concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash and cash equivalents, investments, receivables from trade
customers and contract manufacturers and derivatives.61Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial StatementsHP maintains cash and cash equivalents,
investments, derivatives and certain other financial instruments with various financial institutions. These financial institutions are located in many different geographic regions, and HPa€™s
policy is designed to limit exposure from any particular institution. As part of its risk management processes, HP performs periodic evaluations of the relative credit standing of these financial
institutions. HP has not sustained material credit losses from instruments held at these financial institutions. HP utilizes derivative contracts to protect against the effects of foreign currency,
interest rate and, on certain investment exposures. Such contracts involve the risk of non-performance by the counterparty, which could result in a material loss. The likelihood of which HP
deems to be remote.HP sells a significant portion of its products through third-party distributors and resellers and, as a result, maintains individually significant receivable balances with these
parties. If the financial condition or operations of these distributorsa€™ and resellersa€™ aggregated business deteriorates substantially, HP4€™ s operating results could be adversely affected.
The ten largest distributor and reseller receivable balances, which were concentrated primarily in North America and Europe, collectively represented approximately 38% and 41% of gross
accounts receivable as of OctoberA 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. One customer, TD Synnex Corp, accounted for 9.7% of gross accounts receivable as of OctoberA 31, 2024 and 13.2% of
gross accounts receivable as of OctoberA 31, 2023. Credit risk with respect to other accounts receivable is generally diversified due to HPA€™ s large customer base and their dispersion across
many different industries and geographic markets. HP performs ongoing credit evaluations of the financial condition of its third-party distributors, resellers and other customers and may
require collateral, such as letters of credit and bank guarantees, in certain circumstances.A HP utilizes outsourced manufacturers around the world to manufacture HP-designed products. HP
may purchase product components from suppliers and sell those components to its outsourced manufacturers thereby creating receivable balances from the outsourced manufacturers. The
three largest outsourced manufacturer receivable balances collectively represented 89% and 58% of HP&a€™s supplier receivables of $0.8 billion and $0.3 billion as of OctoberA 31, 2024 and
2023, respectively. HP includes the supplier receivables in Other current assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets on a gross basis. HP4€™ s credit risk associated with these receivables is
mitigated wholly or in part, by the amount HP owes to these outsourced manufacturers, as HP generally has the legal right to offset its payables to the outsourced manufacturers against these
receivables. HP does not reflect the sale of these components in net revenue and does not recognize any profit on these component sales until the related products are sold by HP, at which time
any profit is recognized as a reduction to cost of products net revenue.A HP obtains a significant number of components from single source suppliers like Canon, due to technology, availability,
price, quality or other considerations. The loss of a single source supplier, the deterioration of HP4€™ s relationship with a single source supplier, or any unilateral modification to the
contractual terms under which HP is supplied components by a single source supplier could adversely affect HPa€™ s net revenue, cash flows and gross margins.InventoryHP records inventory
at the lower of cost or market (net realizable value) on a first-in, first-out basis. Cost is computed using standard cost which approximates actual cost. Adjustments, if required, to reduce the
cost of inventory to market are made for estimated excess, obsolete or impaired balances after considering judgments related to future demand and market conditions.Property, Plant and
Equipment, NetHP reflects property, plant and equipment at cost less accumulated depreciation. HP capitalizes additions and improvements and expenses maintenance and repairs as incurred.
Depreciation expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Estimated useful lives are five to 40A years for buildings and improvements and three to
15A years for machinery and equipment. HP depreciates leasehold improvements over the life of the lease or the asset, whichever is shorter. HP depreciates equipment held for lease over the
initial term of the lease to the equipmenta€™s estimated residual value. On retirement or disposition, the asset cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the Consolidated
Balance Sheets with any gain or loss recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings.Internal Use Software and Cloud Computing ArrangementsHP capitalizes external costs and directly
attributable internal costs to acquire or create internal use software which are incurred subsequent to the completion of the preliminary project stage. These costs relate to activities such as
software design, configuration, coding, testing, and installation. Costs related to post-implementation activities such as training and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Once the software is
substantially complete and ready for its intended use, capitalized development costs are amortized straight-line over the estimated useful life of the software, generally not to exceed five
years.62Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial StatementsHP also enters into certain cloud-based software hosting arrangements that are accounted
for as service contracts. For internal-use software obtained through a hosting arrangement that is in the nature of a service contract, HP incurs certain implementation costs such as
integrating, configuring, and software customization, which are consistent with costs incurred during the application development stage for on-premise software. HP applies the same guidance
to determine costs that are eligible for capitalization. For these arrangements, HP amortizes the capitalized development costs straight-line over the fixed, non-cancellable term of the
associated hosting arrangement plus any reasonably certain renewal periods. HP also applies the same impairment model to both internal-use software and capitalized implementation costs in a
software hosting arrangement that is in the nature of a service contract.GoodwillHP reviews goodwill for impairment annually during its fourth quarter and whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying amount of goodwill may not be recoverable. HP can elect to perform a qualitative assessment to test a reporting unita€™s goodwill for impairment or
directly perform the quantitative impairment test. Based on the qualitative assessment, if HP determines that the fair value of a reporting unit is more likely than not (i.e., a likelihood of more
than 50 percent) to be less than its carrying amount, a quantitative impairment test will be performed.If a quantitative impairment test is performed, HP compares the fair value of each
reporting unit to its carrying amount. The fair values are derived most significantly from the income approach, with lesser weight attributed to the market approach. Under the income
approach, HP estimates the fair value of a reporting unit based on the present value of estimated future cash flows. Cash flow projections are based on managementa€™s estimates of revenue
growth rates and operating margins, taking into consideration industry and market conditions. The discount rate is based on the weighted-average cost of capital adjusted for the relevant risk
associated with business-specific characteristics and the uncertainty related to the reporting unita€™s ability to execute on the projected cash flows. Under the market approach, HP estimates
fair value based on market multiples of earnings derived from comparable publicly-traded companies with similar operating and investment characteristics as the reporting unit. HP weights the
fair value derived from the market approach depending on the level of comparability of these publicly-traded companies to the reporting unit. When market comparables are not meaningful or
not available, HP estimates the fair value of a reporting unit using only the income approach.If the fair value of a reporting unit exceeds the carrying amount of the net assets assigned to that
reporting unit, goodwill is not impaired. If the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, goodwill is impaired and the excess of the reporting unita€™s carrying value over
the fair value is recognized as an impairment loss.Debt and Marketable Equity Securities InvestmentsHP determines the appropriate classification of its investments at the time of purchase and
re-evaluates the classifications at each balance sheet date. Debt and marketable equity securities are generally considered available-for-sale. All highly liquid investments with maturities of
three months or less at the date of purchase are classified as cash equivalents. Marketable debt securities with maturities of twelve months or less are classified as short-term investments and
marketable debt securities with maturities greater than twelve months are classified based on their availability for use in current operations. Marketable equity securities, including mutual
funds, are classified as either short or long-term based on the nature of each security and its availability for use in current operations.Available-for-sale debt securities are reported at fair value
with unrealized gains and losses, net of applicable taxes, in Accumulated other comprehensive loss. Unrealized gains and losses on equity securities, credit losses and impairments on available-
for-sale debt securities are recorded in Consolidated Statements of Earnings. Realized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities are calculated at the individual security level and included
in Interest and other, net in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings.HP monitors its investment portfolio for potential impairment and credit losses on a quarterly basis. If HP intends to sell a
debt security or it is more likely than not that HP will be required to sell the security before recovery, then a decline in fair value below cost is recorded as an impairment charge in Interest and
other, net and a new cost basis in the investment is established.In other cases, if the carrying amount of an investment in debt securities exceeds its fair value and the decline in value is
determined to be due to credit related reasons, HP records a credit loss allowance, limited by the amount that fair value is less than the amortized cost basis. HP recognizes the corresponding
charge in Interest and other, net and the remaining unrealized loss, if any, in Accumulated other comprehensive loss in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Factors that HP considers while
determining the credit loss allowance includes, but is not limited to, severity and the reason for the decline in value, interest rate changes and counterparty long-term ratings.DerivativesHP
uses derivative instruments, primarily forward contracts, option contracts, interest rate swaps, total return swaps, treasury rate locks and forward starting swaps to hedge certain foreign
currency, interest rate and, return on certain investment exposures. HP also may use other derivative instruments not designated as hedges, such as forwards used to hedge foreign currency
balance sheet 63Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statementsexposures. HP does not use derivative instruments for speculative purposes. See
NoteA 10, a€ceFinancial Instrumentsa€ for a full description of HPA€™s derivative instrument activities and related accounting policies.Legal ContingenciesHP is involved in various lawsuits,
claims, investigations and proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of business. HP records a liability for contingencies when it believes it is both probable that a liability has been incurred
and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. See NoteA 14, a€ceLitigation and Contingenciesa€ for a full description of HPa€™s loss contingencies and related accounting
policies.64Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)NoteA 2: Segment InformationHPA€™s operations are organized into three
reportable segments: Personal Systems, Printing, and Corporate Investments. HPa€™ s organizational structure is based on many factors that the chief operating decision maker (4€ceCODMa€£)
uses to evaluate, view and run the business operations, which include, but are not limited to, customer base and homogeneity of products and technology. The segments are based on this
organizational structure and information reviewed by HP4€™s CODM to evaluate segment results. The CODM uses earnings from operations to evaluate the performance of the overall business
and to allocate resources to each of the segments.The accounting policiesA HP uses to derive segment results are substantially the same as those used by HP in preparing these financial
statements. HP derives the results of the business segments directly from its internal management reporting system.HP does not allocate certain operating expenses, which it manages at the
corporate level, to its segments. These unallocated amounts include expenses such as certain corporate governance costs and infrastructure investments, stock-based compensation expense,
restructuring and other charges, acquisition and divestiture charges, amortization of intangible assets and Russia exit charges.Segment Operating Results from Operations and the
reconciliation to HP consolidated results were as follows:A ForA theA fiscalA yearsA endedA OctoberA 31A 202420232022A In millions Net revenue:A A A Commercial

PS$25,486A $24,712A $29,616A Consumer PS10,709A 10,972A 14,395A Personal Systems36, 195A 35,684A 44,011A Supplies11, 295A 11,452A 11,761A Commercial

Printing4,841A 5,250A 5,339A Consumer Printing1,202A 1,327A 1,802A Printing17,338A 18,029A 18,902A Corporate Investments25A 7A 2A Total segment net

revenue53,558A 53,720A 62,915A Other1A (2)(5)Total net revenue$53,559A $53,718A $62,910A Earnings before taxes:A A Personal

Systems$2,194A $2,129A $2,761A Printing3,290A 3,399A 3,619A Corporate Investments(132)(142)(230)Total segment earnings from operations5,352A 5,386A 6,150A Corporate and



unallocated costs and other(380)(375)(461)Stock-based compensation expense(452)(438)(343)Restructuring and other charges(301)(527)(218)Acquisition and divestiture charges(83)(240)
(318)Amortization of intangible assets(318)(350)(228)Russia exit Chargesé€"A 4€”A (23)Interest and other, net(539)(519)(235)Total earnings before taxes$3,279A $2,937A $4,324A 65Table of
Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)RealignmentEffective at the beginning of its first quarter of fiscal year 2024, HP realigned its
business unit financial reporting more closely with its customer market segmentation. The realignment resulted in the transfer of LaserJet printers net revenues from Consumer Printing to
Commercial Printing. HP reflected this change to its business unit information in prior reporting periods on an as-if basis which resulted in the reclassification of net revenues from Consumer
Printing to Commercial Printing. The reporting change had no impact to previously reported segment net revenue, consolidated net revenue, earnings from operations, net earnings or net
earnings per share (4€ceEPSa€).Segment AssetsHP allocates assets to its business segments based on the segments primarily benefiting from the assets. Total assets by segment and the
reconciliation of segment assets to HP consolidated assets were as follows:A AsA ofA OctoberA 31A 20242023A InA millionsPersonal

Systems$22,378A $18,791A Printing16,457A 15,955A Corporate Investments181A 176A Corporate and unallocated assets893A 2,082A Total assets$39,909A $37,004A Major CustomersNo
single customer represented 10% or more of HPa€™s net revenue in any fiscal year presented.Geographic InformationNet revenue by country is based upon the sales location that
predominately represents the customer location. Other than the United States, no country represented more than 10% of HP net revenue in any fiscal year presented.Net revenue by country
was as follows:A ForA theA fiscalA yearsA endedA OctoberA 31A 202420232022A A InA millionsA United States$18,790A $18 829A $21,626A Other countries34,769A 34,889A 41,284A Total net
revenue$53,559A $53,718A $62,910A Net property, plant and equipment by country in which HP operates was as follows:A AsA ofA OctoberA 31A 20242023A InA millionsUnited
States$1,471A $1,351A Singapore335A 341A South Korea297A 307A Malaysia275A 287A Other countries536A 541A Total property, plant and equipment, net$2,914A $2,827A A No single
country other than those represented above exceeded 10% or more of HP&A€™ s total net property, plant and equipment in any fiscal year presented.66Table of Contents HPA INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)NoteA 3: Restructuring and Other Charges Summary of Restructuring PlansHP&€™ s restructuring activities in fiscal
years 2024, 2023 and 2022 summarized by plan were as follows:Fiscal 2023 PlanOther prior year plans(1)TotalSeverance and EERNon-laborInA millionsAccrued balance as of October 31,
2021$4€”A $a€”A $90A $90A Chargesa€”A a€”A 193A 193A Cash paymentsa€”A a€”A (217)(217)Non-cash and other adjustmentsa€”A a€”A (34)(34)Accrued balance as of October 31,
20224€”A 4€”A 32A 32A Charges402A 41A 1A 444A Cash payments(172)(15)(35)(222)Non-cash and other adjustments(142)(2)(8)4A (146)Accrued balance as of October 31,

202388A 18A 2A 108A Charges205A 16A 12A 233A Cash payments(173)(18)(5)(196)Non-cash and other adjustmentsa€”A (5)(2)(7)Accrued balance as of October 31,

2024$120A $11A $7A $138A Total costs incurred to date as of October 31, 2024$607A $57A $878A $1,542A Reflected in Consolidated Balance Sheets:Other current

liabilities$120A $3A $7A $130A Other non-current liabilities$a€”A $8A $a€”A $8A (1)A A A A Primarily includes the fiscal 2020 plan along with other legacy plans, all of which are substantially
complete. HP does not expect any further material activity associated with these plans.(2)A A A A Includes reclassification of liability related to the EER plan of $139 for certain healthcare and
medical savings account benefits to pension and post-retirement plans. See Note 4 a&€ceRetirement and Post-Retirement Benefit Plansa€ for further information.Fiscal 2023 PlanOn November
18, 2022, HPa€™ s Board of Directors approved the Future Ready Plan intended to enable digital transformation, portfolio optimization and operational efficiency which HP expects will be
implemented through fiscal year 2025. HP expects workforce reductions of approximately 7,000 employees. HP estimates that it will incur pre-tax charges of approximately $1.0A billion of
which approximately $0.7A billion primarily in labor costs related to workforce reductions and the remaining costs will relate to non-labor actions and other charges.Other ChargesOther
charges include non-recurring costs, including those as a result of information technology rationalization efforts and transformation program management costs, and are distinct from ongoing
operational costs. These costs primarily relate to third-party professional services and other non-recurring costs. HP incurred $68 million, $83 million and $25 million of other charges in fiscal
year 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.NoteA 4: Retirement and Post-Retirement Benefit PlansDefined Benefit PlansHP sponsors a number of defined benefit pension plans worldwide. The
most significant defined benefit plan, the HP Inc. Pension Plan (4€cePension Plana€) is a frozen plan in the United States.67Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)HP reduces the benefit payable to certain U.S. employees under the Pension Plan for service before 1993, if any, by any amounts due to the
employee under HPa€™s frozen defined contribution Deferred Profit-Sharing Plan (4€ceDPSPA€). As of OctoberA 31, 2024 and 2023, the fair value of HP4€™s DPSP plan assets was $297
million and $311 million, respectively. The DPSP obligations are equal to the plan assets and are recognized as an offset to the Pension Plan when HP calculates its defined benefit pension cost
and obligations.Post-Retirement Benefit PlansHP sponsors retiree health and welfare benefit plans, of which the most significant are in the United States. Under the HP Inc. Retiree Welfare
Benefits Plan, certain pre-2003 retirees and grandfathered participants with continuous service to HP since 2002 are eligible to receive partially subsidized medical coverage based on years of
service at retirement. HP4€™ s share of the premium cost is capped for all subsidized medical coverage provided under the HP Inc. Retiree Welfare Benefits Plan. HP currently leverages the
employer group waiver plan process to provide HP Inc. Retiree Welfare Benefits Plan post-65 prescription drug coverage under Medicare PartA D, thereby giving HP access to federal subsidies
to help pay for retiree benefits.A Certain employees not grandfathered for partially subsidized medical coverage under the above programs, and employees hired after 2002 but before
AugustA 2008, are eligible for credits under the HP Inc. Retiree Welfare Benefits Plan. Credits offered after SeptemberA 2008 are provided in the form of matching credits on employee
contributions made to a voluntary employee beneficiary association upon attaining age 45 or as part of early retirement programs. On retirement, former employees may use these credits for
the reimbursement of certain eligible medical expenses, including premiums required for coverage.Defined Contribution PlansHP offers various defined contribution plans for U.S. and non-U.S.
employees. Total defined contribution expense was $133 million, $131 million, and $119 million in fiscal year 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively.U.S. employees are automatically enrolled in
the HP Inc. 401(k)A Plan when they meet eligibility requirements, unless they decline participation. The employer matching contributions in the HP Inc. 401(k)A Plan is 100% of the first 4% of
eligible compensation contributed by employees, and the employer match is vested after three years of employee service. Generally, an employee must be employed by HP Inc. on the last day of
the calendar year to receive a match.Pension and Post-Retirement Benefit ExpenseA The components of HP&A€™s pension and post-retirement benefit (credit) cost recognized in the
Consolidated Statements of Earnings were as follows:A ForA theA fiscalA yearsA endedA OctoberA 31A 202420232022202420232022202420232022A U.S.A DefinedBenefitA PlansNon-

U.S.A DefinedBenefitA PlansPost-RetirementBenefitA PlansA InA millionsService cost$a€”A $a€”A $a€”A $37A $39A $56A $1A $1A $1A Interest

cost228A 217A 161A 46A 41A 22A 15A 15A 8A Expected return on plan assets(246)(258) 298)(51)(53) 48)(15)(14)(9)Amortization and deferrals:A A A A A A Actuarial loss

(galn)28A 18A 5A (1 4A 36A (15) (16)(15)Pr10r service cost (credit)a€”A a€”A a€”A 6A 5A 5A (10)(1 1)(11)Net perlodlc benefit cost (credlt)lOA (23)(132)37A 36A 71A (24)(25)(26)Settlement
lossa€”A a€”A a€”A 2A a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A Special termination benefit costa€”A 105A a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A 34A a€”A Total periodic benefit cost

(credit)$10A $82A $(132)$39A $36A $71A $(24)$9A $(26)The components of net periodic benefit (credit) cost other than the service cost component are included in Interest and other, net in
the Consolidated Statements of Earnings.The weighted-average assumptions used to calculate the total periodic benefit (credit) cost were as follows:A 68Table of Contents HPA INC. AND
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(Continued)A ForA theA fiscalA yearsA endedA OctoberA 31A 202420232022202420232022202420232022A U.S.A DefinedBenefitA PlansNon-U.S.A DefinedBenefitA PlansPost-
RetirementBenefitA PlansDiscount rate6.2A %5.7A %2.9A %3.9A %3.5A %1.3A %6.0A %5.6A %2.5A %Expected increase in compensation

levels2.0A %2.0A %2.0A %3.0A %3.0A %2.6A %a€”A %a€”A %a€”A %Expected long-term return on plan assets6.6A %6.4A %5.1A %5.3A %5.4A %4.3A %5.2A %3.3A %2.0A %Interest crediting
rateS.SA %5.0A %5.0A %2;6A %2.6A %2.6A %5.4A %4.2A %2<9A %Fupded StatusThe funded status of Phe defined benefit and post-retirement benefit plans was as

contrlbutlonSZGA 27A 53A 36A 4A 4A Participant contributionsa€”A a€ "A 17A 17A 28A 32A Benefits paid(258)(274)(54)(38)(48)(54)Settlement(1)(3)(28)

(33)a€”A a€”A Transfersa€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A (82)4€”A Currency impacta€”A a€”A 27A 62A 4€”A 4€”A Fair value of assets 4€” end of

year$4,218A $3,853A $1,085A $959A $317A $382A Change in benefits obligationA A A A A A Projected benefit obligation 4€” beginning of

year$3, 854A $3,969A $1 185A $1 145A $299A $274A Service costa€”A 4€”A 37A 39A 1A 1A Interest cost228A 217A 46A 41A 15A 15A Participant

contributionsa€”A a€”A 17A 17A 28A 32A Actuarial loss (ga1n)395A (160)116A (71)(8)(3)Benefits paid(258)(274)(54)(38)(48)(54)Plan amendmentsa€”A a€”A a€”A 4A a€”A a€”A Settlement(1)(3)
(28)(33)a€"A a€”A Special termination benefit costa€”A 105A a€”A a€”A a€”A 34A Currency impacta€”A a€”A 26A 81A a€”A 4€”A Projected benefit obligation &€” end of

year$4,218A $3,854A $1,345A $1,185A $287A $299A Funded status at end of year$a€”A $(1)$(260)$(226)$30A $83A Accumulated benefit obligation$4,217A $3,854A $1,248A $1,088A 69Table
of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)The cumulative net actuarial losses for our defined pension plans and retiree welfare plans
increased year over year. These loss increases were primarily due to decreases in discount rates and other assumption changes. The increase in losses was partially offset due to higher than
expected return on assets.The weighted-average assumptions used to calculate the projected benefit obligations were as

follows:A ForA theA fiscalA yearsA endedA OctoberA 31A 202420232024202320242023A U.S.A DefinedBenefitA PlansNon-U.S. DefinedBenefitA PlansPost-RetirementBenefitA PlansDiscount
rate5.3A %6.2A %3.2A %3.9A %5.2A %6.0A %Expected increase in compensation levels2.0A %2.0A %2.7A %3.0A %a€”A %a€”A %Interest crediting

rate5.2A %5.5A %2.6A %2.6A %4.7A %5.4A %The net assets and liabilities for HPA€™ s defined benefit and post-retirement benefit plans recognized on HP&€™s Consolidated Balance Sheet
were as follows:A AsA ofA OctoberA 31A 202420232024202320242023A U.S.A DefinedBenefitA PlansNon-U.S.A DefinedBenefitA PlansPost-RetirementBenefitA PlansA InA millionsOther non-
current assets$277A $266A $50A $40A $35A $87A Other current liabilities(31)(31)(10)(22)(4)(3)Other non-current liabilities(246)(236)(300)(244)(1)(1)Funded status at end of

year$a€"A $(1)$(260)$(226)$30A $83A The following table summarizes the pre-tax net actuarial loss (gam) and prior service cost (credlt) recognized in Accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) for the defined benefit and post-retirement benefit plans A As of October 31, 2024A U.S.A DefinedBenefitA PlansNon-U.S.A DefinedBenefitA PlansPost-

RetirementBenefitA PlansA InA millionsNet actuarial loss (gam)$571A $73A $(192)Prior service cost (credit)a€”A 36A (46)Total recognized in Accumulated other comprehensive income
(1055)$571A $109A $(238)A Defined benefit plans with prOJected benefit obhgatlons exceedlng the fair value of plan assets were as

follows:A AsA ofA OctoberA 31A 2024202320242023A U.S.A DefinedBenefitA PlansNon-U.S.A DefinedBenefitA PlansA InA millionsAggregate fair value of plan

assets$a€”A $a€”A $894A $780A Aggregate projected benefit 0b11gat10n$277A $267A $1,207A $1,052A 70Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)Defined benefit plans with accumulated benefit obligations exceeding the fair value of plan assets were as

follows:A AsA ofA OctoberA 31A 2024202320242023A U.S.A DefinedBenefitA PlansNon-U.S.A DefinedBenefitA PlansA InA millionsAggregate fair value of plan

assets$a€”A $a€”A $610A $563A Aggregate accumulated benefit obligation$277A $267A $859A $758A Fair Value of Plan AssetsThe table below sets forth the fair value of plan assets by asset
category within the fair value hierarchy as of OctoberA 31, 2024. Refer to Note 9, 4€ceFair Valuea€ for details on fair value hierarchy. Certain investments that are measured at fair value using
the Net Asset Value (A4€0eNAVA€) per share as a practical expedient have not been categorized in the fair value hierarchy.A The fair value amounts presented in this table provide a
reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the total value of plan assets.A As of October 31, 2024A U.S.A DefinedA BenefitA PlansNon-U.S.A DefinedA BenefitA PlansPost-

RetirementA BenefitA PlansA LevelA 1LevelA 2LevelA 3TotalLevelA 1LevelA 2LevelA 3TotalLevelA 1LevelA 2LevelA 3TotalA InA millionsAsset category:A A A Equity

securities(1)$a4€”A $17A $a€”A $17A $8A $109A $a€”A $117A $a€”A $a€”A $a€”A $a€”A Debt

securities(2)Corporatea€”A 2,213A a€”A 2,213A a€”A 16A a€”A 16A a€”A 143A a€”A 143A Governmenta€”A 1,392A a€”A 1,392A a€”A 59A a€”A 59A a€”A 102A a€”A 102A Insurance
contractsa€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A 72A a€”A 72A a€”A a€”A a4€”A a€”A Common collective trusts and 103-12 Investment

entities(3)a€”A a€”A a€”A 4€”A a€”A 10A a€”A 10A a4€”A a€”A a€”A a4€”A Investment funds(4)10A 4€”A 4€”A 10A a€”A 347A a€”A 347A 45A a4€”A 45A Cash and cash

equivalents(S)l 7A 23A 4€”A 40A 21A 1A 4€”A 22A 4€”A a€”A 4€”A 4€”A Other(6)(251)(147)a€"A (398)a€”A 116A 4€"A 116A (8)a€”A (8)Net plan assets subject to

value$4, 218A $1, 085A $317A 71Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contlnued)A A A A A The table below sets forth the fair value of
plan assets by asset category within the fair value hierarchy as of OctoberA 31, 2023. A As of October 31, 2023A U.S.A DefinedA BenefitA PlansNon-U.S.A DefinedA BenefitA PlansPost-
RetirementA BenefitA PlansA LevelA 1LevelA 2LevelA 3TotalLevelA 1LevelA 2LevelA 3TotalLevelA 1LevelA 2LevelA 3TotalA InA millionsAsset category:A A A Equity

securities(1)$1A $28A $a€”A $29A $8A $92A $a€”A $100A $a4€”A $a€”A $a€”A $a€”A Debt

securities(2)Corporatea€”A 1,855A 4€”A 1,855A a€”A 17A a€”A 17A 4€”A 214A 4€”A 214A Governmenta€”A 1,208A a€”A 1,208A 4€”A 55A 4€”A 55A a€”A 100A 4€”A 100A Real estate
fundsa€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A 4€”A 4€”A a€”A a€”A 4€”A a€”A a€”A Insurance contractsa€”A a€”A 4€”A a€”A 4€”A 67A a€”A 67A 4€”A 4€”A 4€”A 4€”A Common collective trusts and 103-12
Investment entities(3)a€”A a€”A 4€”A 4€”A a€”A 8A 4€”A 8A 4€”A 4€”A 4€”A a€”A Investment funds(4)10A 4€”A a€”A 10A 4€”A 292A 4€”A 292A 67A a€”A 67A Cash and cash
equivalents(5)41A 31A a€”A 72A 21A 1A a€”A 22A (1)a€”A a€”A (1)Other(6)(109)(147)a€”A (256)a4€”A 89A a€”A 89A a€”A a€”A a4€”A Net plan assets subject to

leveling$(57)$2,975A $a€”A $2,918A $29A $621A $a4€”A $650A $66A $314A $a€”A $380A Investments using NAV as a practical expedient(7)935A 309A 2A Investments at fair

value$3,853A $959A $382A (1)Investments in publicly traded equity securities are valued using the closing price on the measurement date as reported on the stock exchange on which the
individual securities are traded.(2)The fair value of corporate, government and asset-backed debt securities is based on observable inputs of comparable market transactions. Also included in
this category is debt issued by national, state and local governments and agencies.(3)Department of Labor 103-12 IE (Investment Entity) designation is for plan assets held by two or more
unrelated employee benefit plans which includes limited partnerships and venture capital partnerships. Certain common collective trusts and interests in 103-12 entities are valued using NAV
as a practical expedient.(4)Includes publicly traded funds of investment companies that are registered with the SEC, funds that are not publicly traded and a non-U.S. fund-of-fund arrangement.
(5)Includes cash and cash equivalents such as short-term marketable securities. Cash and cash equivalents include money market funds, which are valued based on NAV. Other assets were
classified in the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input (e.g., quoted prices and observable inputs) that is significant to the fair value measure in its entirety.(6)Includes primarily
reverse repurchase agreements, unsettled transactions, and derivative instruments.(7)These investments include alternative investments, which primarily consist of private equities and hedge
funds. The valuation of alternative investments, such as limited partnerships and joint ventures, may require significant management judgment. For alternative investments, valuation is based
on NAV as reported by the asset manager or investment company and adjusted for cash flows, if necessary. In making such an assessment, a variety of factors are reviewed by management,
including but not limited to the timeliness of NAV as reported by the asset manager and changes in general economic and market conditions subsequent to the last NAV reported by the asset
manager.a€¢Private equities include limited partnerships such as equity, buyout, venture capital, real estate and other similar funds that invest in the United States and internationally where
foreign currencies are hedged.a€¢Hedge funds include limited partnerships that invest both long and short primarily in common stocks and credit, relative value, event-driven equity, distressed
debt and macro strategies. Management of the hedge funds has the ability to shift investments from value to growth strategies, from small to large capitalization stocks and bonds, and from a
net long position to a net short position.These investments also include Common Collective Trusts and 103-12 Investment Entities as defined in note (3) above and Investment Funds as defined
in note (4) above.72Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)A Plan Asset AllocationsA Refer to the fair value hierarchy table
above for actual assets allocations across the benefit plans. The weighted-average target asset allocations across the benefit plans represented in the fair value tables above were as



follows:2024 Target AllocationAssetA CategoryU.S.A DefinedA BenefitA PlansNon-U.S.A DefinedBenefitA PlansPost-RetirementBenefitA PlansEquity-related

investmentsa€”A %36.4A %a€”A %Debt securities91.0A %37.1A %100.0A %Real estated€”A %10.8A %a€”A %Cash and cash

equivalentsa€”A %3.1A %a€”A %Other9.0A %12.6A %a€”A %Total100.0A %100.0A %100.0A %Investment PolicyA HP&€™s investment strategy is to seek a competitive rate of return relative to
an appropriate level of risk depending on the funded status of each plan and the timing of expected benefit payments. The majority of the plansa€™ investment managers employ active
investment management strategies with the goal of outperforming the broad markets in which they invest. Risk management practices include diversification across asset classes and
investment styles and periodic rebalancing toward asset allocation targets. A number of the plansa€™ investment managers are authorized to utilize derivatives for investment or liability
exposures, and HP may utilize derivatives to affect asset allocation changes or to hedge certain investment or liability exposures.The target asset allocation selected for each U.S. plan (pension
and post-retirement) reflects a risk/return profile HP believes is appropriate relative to each plana€™s liability structure and return goals. HP conducts periodic asset-liability studies for U.S.
plans to model various potential asset allocations in comparison to each plana€™s forecasted liabilities and liquidity needs. Due to the strong funded status for the U.S. Pension Plan, consistent
with our policy, steps have been taken to de-risk the portfolio by reallocation of assets to liability hedging fixed-income investments. Outside the United States, asset allocation decisions are
typically made by an independent board of trustees for the specific plan. As in the United States, investment objectives are designed to generate returns that will enable the plan to meet its
future obligations. HP reviews the investment strategy and where appropriate, can offer some assistance in the selection of investment managers, with final decisions on asset allocation and
investment managers made by the board of trustees for the specific plan.Basis for Expected Long-Term Rate of Return on Plan AssetsThe expected long-term rate of return on plan assets
reflects the expected returns for each major asset class in which the plan invests and the weight of each asset class in the target mix. Expected asset returns reflect the current yield on
government bonds, risk premiums for each asset class and expected real returns which considers each countrya€™s specific inflation outlook. Because HPa€™ s investment policy is to employ
primarily active investment managers who seek to outperform the broader market, the expected returns are adjusted to reflect the expected additional returns net of fees.Retirement Incentive
ProgramAs part of the Fiscal 2023 Plan, HP announced a voluntary EER program for its U.S. employees in January 2023. Voluntary participation in the EER program was limited to employees at
least 55 years old with 10 or more years of service at HP. Employees accepted into the EER program left HP on dates ranging from March 15, 2023 to October 31, 2023. The U.S. defined
benefit pension plan was amended to provide that the EER benefit was to be paid from the plan for eligible electing EER participants. The retirement incentive benefit was calculated as a lump
sum based on years of service at HP at the time of retirement, ranging from 20 to 52 weeks of pay. As a result of this retirement incentive, HP recognized a special termination benefit
(&€eSTBAE) expense of $105 million for the year ended October 31, 2023 as a restructuring charge. This expense is the present value of all additional benefits that HP will distribute from the
pension plan assets.All employees participating in the EER program were offered the opportunity to continue health care coverage at the active employee contribution rates for up to 36 months
following retirement, but not beyond age 65 when Medicare is available. In addition, HP provided up to $12,000 in employer credits under the Retirement Medical Savings Account program. HP
recognized an additional STB expense of $34 million as restructuring and other charges for the year ended October 31, 2023 for the health care incentives.73Table of Contents HPA INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)Future Contributions and Funding PolicyOur policy is to fund our pension plans so that we meet at least the minimum
contribution required by local government, funding and taxing authorities. In fiscal year 2025, we expect to contribute approximately $36 million to non-U.S. pension plans, $30 million to cover
benefit payments to U.S. non-qualified plan participants and $4 million to cover benefit claims for our post-retirement benefit plans.Estimated Future Benefits PaymentsAs of OctoberA 31, 2024,
HP estimates that the future benefits payments for the retirement and post-retirement plans are as follows: FiscalA yearU.S. A DefinedBenefitA PlansNon-U.S.DefinedBenefitA PlansPost-
RetirementBenefitA PlansA InA millions2025$352A $53A $34A 2026354A 56A 28A 2027355A 58A 23A 2028355A 60A 21A 2029350A 65A 21A Next five fiscal years to OctoberA 31,

20341,587A 382A 97A NoteA 5: Stock-Based CompensationHP&€™s stock-based compensation plans include incentive compensation plans and an employee stock purchase plan.Stock-Based
Compensation Expense and Related Income Tax Benefits for OperationsStock-based compensation expense and the resulting tax benefits for operations were as

follows:A ForA theA fiscalA years endedA OctoberA 31A 202420232022A InA millionsStock-based compensation expense$452A $438A $343A Income tax benefit(77)(72)(59)Stock-based
compensation expense, net of tax $375A $366A $284A Cash received from option exercises under the HP Inc 2004 Stock Incentive Plan (the 4€0e2004 SIP&€) and the HP Inc. 2021 Employee
Stock Purchase Plan (the 4€0e2021 ESPP&€) was $72 million, $51 million, and $53 million in fiscal year 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively. The benefit realized for the tax deduction from option
exercises in fiscal years 2024, 2023 and 2022 was $1 million, $2 million and $4 million, respectively.Stock-Based Incentive Compensation PlansA HP4€™s stock-based incentive compensation
plan includes equity plan adopted in 2004, as amended and restated (d€ceprincipal equity plana€). Stock-based awards granted under the equity plan includes restricted stock awards, stock
options and performance-based awards. Employees meeting certain employment qualifications are eligible to receive stock-based awards. The aggregate number of shares of HPa€™s stock
authorized for issuance under the principal equity plan is 668.8A million.74Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)Restricted
stock awards are non-vested stock awards that may include grants of restricted stock or restricted stock units. Restricted stock awards and cash-settled awards are generally subject to
forfeiture if employment terminates prior to the lapse of the restrictions. Such awards generally vest one to three years from the date of grant. During the vesting period, ownership of the
restricted stock cannot be transferred. Restricted stock has the same dividend and voting rights as common stock and is considered to be issued and outstanding upon grant. The dividends paid
on restricted stock are non-forfeitable. Restricted stock units do not have the voting rights of common stock, and the shares underlying restricted stock units are not considered issued and
outstanding upon grant. However, shares underlying restricted stock units are included in the calculation of diluted net EPS. Restricted stock units have forfeitable dividend equivalent rights
equal to the dividend paid on common stock. HP expenses the fair value of restricted stock awards ratably over the period during which the restrictions lapse. The majority of restricted stock
units issued by HP contain only service vesting conditions. HP also grants performance-adjusted restricted stock units which vest only on the satisfaction of both service and the achievement of
certain performance goals including market conditions prior to the expiration of the awards.Stock options granted under the principal equity plan are generally non-qualified stock options, but
the principal equity plan permits some options granted to qualify as incentive stock options under the U.S. Internal Revenue Code. Stock options generally vest over three to four years from the
date of grant. The exercise price of a stock option is equal to the closing price of HP&€™s stock on the option grant date. The majority of stock options issued by HP contain only service vesting
conditions. HP grants performance-contingent stock options that vest only on the satisfaction of both service and market conditions prior to the expiration of the awards. No stock option awards
were granted during the fiscal year 2024. The expenses associated with stock options were not material for any of the periods presented. As of October 31, 2024, the total unrecognized pre-tax
stock-based compensation expense related to stock options was $2A million, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average vesting period of 0.9 years.RSU and stock option grants
provide for accelerated vesting in certain circumstances as defined in the plans and related grant agreements, including termination in connection with a change in control. Restricted Stock
UnitsHP uses the closing stock price on the grant date to estimate the fair value of service-based restricted stock units. HP estimates the fair value of restricted stock units subject to
performance-adjusted vesting conditions using a combination of the closing stock price on the grant date and a Monte Carlo simulation model. The assumptions used to measure the fair value of
restricted stock units subject to performance-adjusted vesting conditions in the Monte Carlo simulation model were as follows:A For the fiscal years ended October 31A 202420232022Expected
volatility(1)33.9A %44.4A %41.6A %Risk-free interest rate(2)4.1A %4.0A %1.0A %Expected performance period in years(3)2.92.92.9(1)The expected volatility was estimated using the historical
volatility derived from HP&4€™s common stock.(2)The risk-free interest rate was estimated based on the yield on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues.(3)The expected performance period was
estimated based on the length of the remaining performance period from the grant date.A summary of restricted stock units activity is as

follows:A AsA ofA OctoberA 31A 202420232022A SharesWeighted- AverageGrantA DateFairA ValuePerA ShareSharesWeighted-AverageGrantA DateFairA ValuePerA ShareSharesWeighted-
AverageGrantA DateFairA ValuePerA ShareA InA thousandsA InA thousandsA InA thousandsA Outstanding at beginning of

year30,209A $31A 28,688A $30A 30,197A $23A Granted18,262A $32A 18,500A $31A 15,337A $36A Vested(14,483)$33A (15,291)$29A (14,168)$22A Forfeited(2,120)$31A (1,688)$31A (2,678)$2
at end of year31,868A $30A 30,209A $31A 28,688A $30A The total grant date fair value of restricted stock units vested in fiscal years 2024, 2023 and 2022 was $471 million, $442 million and
$314 million, respectively. As of OctoberA 31,2024, total unrecognized pre-tax stock-based compensation expense related to non-75Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)vested restricted stock units was $414 million, which is expected to be recognized over the remaining weighted-average vesting period of 1.4
years.Employee Stock Purchase PlanHP sponsors the 2021 ESPP, pursuant to which eligible employees may contribute up to 10% of base compensation, subject to certain income limits, to
purchase shares of HP&€™s common stock.A Pursuant to the terms of the 2021 ESPP, employees purchase stock under the 2021 ESPP at a price equal to 95% of HP&€™ s closing stock price on
the purchase date. No stock-based compensation expense was recorded in connection with those purchases because the criteria of a non-compensatory plan were met.A The aggregate number
of shares of HPa€™s stock authorized for issuance under the 2021 ESPP was 50 million.Shares ReservedShares available for future grant and shares reserved for future issuance under the
stock-based incentive compensation plans and the 2021 ESPP were as follows:A AsA ofA OctoberA 31A 202420232022A InA thousandsShares available for future

grant144,553A 133,033A 174,264A Shares reserved for future issuance181,463A 169,503A 208,351A 76Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial
Statements (Contlnued)NoteA 6: Taxes on EarningsProvision for TaxesThe domestic and foreign components of earnings before taxes were as follows: A ForA theA fiscalA yearsA ended
OctoberA 31h202420232022A InA millionsU.S.$537A $650A $1,406A Non-U.S.2,742A 2,287A 2,918A A $3,279A $2,937A $4,324A The provision for (benefit from) taxes on earnings was as
follows:ForA theA fiscalA yearsA ended OctoberA 31A 202420232022A InA millionsU.S. federal taxes:A A A Current$245A $226A $272A Deferred34A (549)27A Non-U.S.

taxes:Current357A 337A 338A Deferred(193)(305)503A State taxes:Current33A 42A 9A Deferred28A (77)43A A $504A $(326)$1,192A A The differences between the U.S. federal statutory
income tax rate and HP&€™s effective tax rate were as follows:A ForA theA fiscalA yearsA ended OctoberA 31A 202420232022U.S. federal statutory income tax rate from continuing
operations21.0A %21.0A %21.0A %State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit2.2A %1.7A %1.3A %Impact of foreign earnings including GILTI and FDII, net(0.7)%(1.4)%(7.9)%Valuation
allowances(7.1)%(7.3)%0.3A %Uncertain tax positions and audit settlements1.0A %3.2A %2.8A %Impact of internal reorganizationa€”A %(27.4)%9.4A %Other, net(1.0)%(0.9)%0.7A %A 15.4A %
(11.1)%27.6A %A The effective tax rate differs from the U.S. federal statutory rate of 21% for fiscal year 2024 primarily due to impacts of changes in valuation allowances and favorable tax
rates associated with certain earnings from HP's operations in lower-tax jurisdictions throughout the world.In fiscal year 2024, HP recorded $214A million of net income tax benefits related to
non-recurring items in the provision for taxes. This amount included $198A million related to changes in valuation allowances, $60A million related to restructuring charges, $14A million
related to the filing of tax returns in various jurisdictions, and $11A million related to acquisition charges. These benefits were partially offset by $39A million of uncertain tax position charges
and $25A million related to changes in tax rates.77Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)In fiscal year 2023, HP recorded
$1.1A billion of net income tax benefits related to non-recurring items in the provision for taxes. This amount included $726A million of tax effects related to internal reorganization,

$255A million related to changes in valuation allowances, $101A million related to restructuring charges, $58A million related to the filing of tax returns in various jurisdictions, and

$42A million related to acquisition charges. These benefits were partially offset by income tax charges of $60A million related to audit settlements in various jurisdictions, $27A million of
uncertain tax position charges, and $25A million related to extinguishment of debt.In fiscal year 2022, HP recorded $456A million of net income tax charges related to non-recurring items in the
provision for taxes. This amount included $649A million of tax effects related to internal reorganization, $107A million of uncertain tax position charges, $55A million related to withholding
taxes on undistributed foreign earnings, $51A million related to audit settlements in various Jjurisdictions and $26A million of other net tax charges. These charges were partially offset by
income tax benefits of $189A million related to the filing of tax returns in various jurisdictions, $156A million related to changes in valuation allowances, $44A million related to restructuring
charges, and $43A million related to Poly acquisition charges. In fiscal year 2022, HP recorded excess tax benefits of $33A million associated with stock options, restricted stock units and
performance-adjusted restricted stock.As a result of certain employment actions and capital investments HP has undertaken, income from manufacturing and services in certain countries is
subject to reduced tax rates, and in some cases is wholly exempt from taxes, through 2029. The gross income tax benefits attributable to these actions and investments were estimated to be
$217 million ($0.22 diluted net EPS) in fiscal year 2024, $190 million ($0.19 diluted net EPS) in fiscal year 2023 and $313 million ($0.30 diluted net EPS) in fiscal year 2022. Uncertain Tax
PositionsA reconciliation of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows: A For the fiscal years ended October 31A 202420232022A InA millionsBalance at beginning of

year$1,137A $1,045A $829A Increases:A A For current yeara€™s tax positions82A 61A 26A For prior yearsa€™ tax posmonsSZA 186A 299A Decreases:For prior yearsa€™ tax positions(9)(35)
(60)Statute of limitations expirations(33)(8)(5)Settlements with taxing authorities(12)(112)(44)Balance at end of year$1,217A $1,137A $1,045A A As of October 31, 2024, the amount of gross
unrecognized tax benefits was $1.2 billion, of which up to $853 million would affect HPa€™s effective tax rate if realized. Total gross unrecognized tax benefits increased by $80 million for the
twelve months ended October 31, 2024. HP recognizes interest income from favorable settlements and interest expense and penalties accrued on unrecognized tax benefits in the provision for
taxes in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings. As of October 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, HP had accrued $135 million, $102 million and $64 million, respectively, for interest and penalties.HP
engages in continuous discussions and negotiations with taxing authorities regarding tax matters in various jurisdictions. HP expects complete resolution of certain tax years with various tax
authorities within the next 12 months. HP believes it is reasonably possible that its existing gross unrecognized tax benefits may be reduced by up to $190 million within the next 12A months,
affecting HPa€™ s effective tax rate if realized.HP is subject to income tax in the United States and approximately 61 other countries and is subject to routine corporate income tax audits in
many of these jurisdictions. In addition, HP is subject to numerous ongoing audits by federal, state and foreign tax authorities. The IRS is conducting an audit of HP4€™s 2018 and 2019 income
tax returns.With respect to major state and foreign tax jurisdictions, HP is no longer subject to tax authority examinations for years prior to 2007. No material tax deficiencies have been
assessed in major state or foreign tax jurisdictions related to ongoing audits as of October 31, 2024.HP believes it has provided adequate reserves for all tax deficiencies or reductions in tax
benefits that could result from federal, state and foreign tax audits. HP regularly assesses the likely outcomes of these audits in order to determine the appropriateness of HPa€™s 78Table of
Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)tax provision. HP adjusts its uncertain tax positions to reflect the impact of negotiations,
settlements, rulings, advice of legal counsel, and other information and events pertaining to a particular audit. However, income tax audits are inherently unpredictable and there can be no
assurance that HP will accurately predict the outcome of these audits. The amounts ultimately paid on resolution of an audit could be materially different from the amounts previously included
in the Provision for taxes and therefore the resolution of one or more of these uncertainties in any particular period could have a material impact on net income or cash flows.HP has not
provided for U.S. federal income and foreign withholding taxes on $5.1 billion of undistributed earnings from non-U.S. operations as of OctoberA 31, 2024 because HP intends to reinvest such
earnings indefinitely outside of the United States. Determination of the amount of unrecognized deferred tax liability related to these earnings is not practicable.Deferred Income TaxesA The
significant components of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities were as follows:A AsA ofA OctoberA 31A 20242023A InA millionsDeferred tax assets:Loss and credit
carryforwards$7,050A $7,194A Intercompany transactionsa€”excluding inventory357A 540A Fixed assets113A 110A Warranty100A 124A Employee and retiree benefits242A 232A Deferred
revenue240A 250A Capitalized research and development1,014A 821A Operating lease liabilities272A 242A Investment in partnership710A 703A Other395A 469A Gross deferred tax
assets10,493A 10,685A Valuation allowances(6,688)(6,994)Total deferred tax assets3,805A 3,691A Deferred tax liabilities: Unremitted earnings of foreign sub31d1anes(107)(88)R1ght -of-use
assets from operating leases(235)(223)Intangible assets(159)(205)Cash flow hedges(24)(64)Total deferred tax liabilities(525)(580)Net deferred tax assets$3, 280A $3,111A Deferred tax assets
and liabilities included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as follows:A AsA ofA OctoberA 31A 20242023A InA millionsDeferred tax assets$3, 311A $3,155A Deferred tax liabilities(31)
(44)Total$3,280A $3,111A 79Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)A As of OctoberA 31, 2024, HP had recorded deferred tax
assets for net operating loss (4€ceNOL&€) carryforwards as follows:A Gross NOLsDeferred Taxes on NOLsValuation allowancelnitial Year of



ExpirationA InA millionsFederal$69A $15A $(3)2025State1,955A 107A (32)2025Foreign24,61 5A 6,803A (6,246)2028Balance at end of year$26,639A $6,925A $(6,281)As of OctoberA 31, 2024,
HP had recorded deferred tax assets for various tax credit carryforwards as follows: A CarryforwardValuat1onAllowanceImtlalYearA ofExpirationA InA millionsTax credits in state and foreign
jurisdictions$305A $(36)2025Balance at end of year$305A $(36)A A Deferred Tax Asset Valuation AllowanceA The deferred tax asset valuation allowance and changes were as

follows:A ForA theA fiscalA yearsA endedA OctoberA 31A 202420232022A InA millionsBalance at beginning of year$6,994A $7,592A $7,749A Income tax (benefit) expense (300)(650)
(274)Goodwill, other comprehensive loss (income), currency translation and charges to other accounts(6)52A 117A Balance at end of year$6,688A $6,994A $7,592A A Gross deferred tax assets
as of October 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 were reduced by valuation allowances of $6.7 billion, $7.0 billion and $7.6 billion, respectively. In fiscal year 2024, the deferred tax asset valuation
allowance decreased by $306 million primarily due to an increase in the expected utilization of foreign net operating losses. In fiscal year 2023, the deferred tax asset valuation allowance
decreased by $598 million primarily due to internal reorganization impacting foreign net operating losses and U.S. deferred tax assets that are anticipated to be realized at a lower effective rate
than the federal statutory rate. In fiscal year 2022, the deferred tax asset valuation allowance decreased by $157 million primarily due to a reduction in the expected utilization of foreign net
operating losses, U.S. deferred tax assets that are anticipated to be realized at a lower effective tax rate than the federal statutory tax rate, and the impact of the acquisition of Poly on the
companya€™s deferred tax assets.80Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)Note 7: Supplementary Financial InformationCash,
cash equivalents and restricted cashA AsA ofA OctoberA 31A 20242023A In millionsCash and cash equivalents$3,238A $3,107A Restricted cash(1)15A 125A $3,253A $3,232A (1) Restricted
Cash is related to amounts collected and held on behalf of a third-party for trade receivables previously sold.Accounts ReceivableThe allowance for credit losses related to accounts receivable
and changes were as follows:A ForA theA fiscalA yearsA endedA OctoberA 31A 202420232022A In millionsBalance at beginning of period$93A $107A $111A Current-period allowance for credit
losses3A (2)7A Deductions, net of recoveries(13)(12)(11)Balance at end of period$83A $93A $107A HP utilizes certain third-party arrangements in the normal course of business as part of HPs
cash and liquidity management and also to provide liquidity to certain partners to facilitate their working capital requirements. These financing arrangements, which in certain circumstances
may contain partial recourse, result in a transfer of HP4€™ s receivables and risk to the third-party. As these transfers qualify as true sales under the applicable accounting guidance, the
receivables are de-recognized from the Consolidated Balance Sheets upon transfer, and HP receives a payment for the receivables from the third-party within a mutually agreed upon time
period. For arrangements involving an element of recourse, the recourse obligation is measured using market data from the similar transactions and reported as a current liability in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. The recourse obligations as of October 31, 2024 and 2023 were not material.The following is a summary of the activity under these

arrangements: A ForA theA fiscalA yearsA endedA OctoberA 31A 202420232022A InA millionsBalance at beginning of year (1)$141A $185A $131A Trade receivables

sold12,200A 13,391A 12,028A Cash receipts(12,063)(13,449)(11,942)Foreign currency and other6A 14A (32)Balance at end of year (1)$284A $141A $185A (1) Amounts outstanding from third
parties reported in Accounts Receivable in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.81Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
InventoryA AsA ofA OctoberA 31A 20242023A In millionsFinished goods$4,338A $3,930A Purchased parts and fabricated assemblies3,382A 2,932A $7,720A $6,862A Other Current

AssetsAsA ofA OctoberA 31A 20242023A In millionsSupplier and other receivables$2,180A $1,349A Prepaid and other current assets1,462A 1,445A Value-added taxes

receivable1,028A 852A $4,670A $3,646A Property, Plant and Equipment, NetA AsA ofA OctoberA 31A 20242023A In millionsLand, buildings and leasehold

improvements$2,527A $2,332A Machinery and equipment, including equipment held for lease5,465A 5,384A 7,992A 7,716A Accumulated depreciation(5,078)

(4,889)$2,914A $2,827A Depreciation expense was $501 million, $491 million and $542 million in fiscal years 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Other Non-Current

AssetsA AsA ofA OctoberA 31A 20242023A InA millionsDeferred tax assets$3,311A $3,155A Intangible assets1,319A 1,593A Right-of-use assets1,165A 1,188A Prepaid pension and post-
retirement benefit assets362A 393A Deposits and prepa1d322A 427A Other1,129A 853A A $7,608A $7,609A 82Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial
Statements (Contmued) Other Current LiabilitiesA AsA ofA OctoberA 31A 20242023A InA millionsSales and marketing programs$3 060A $3,053A Deferred revenuel,446A 1,424A Other
accrued taxes1,233A 994A Employee compensation and benefit970A 1,046A Warranty486A 569A Operating lease liabilities443A 430A Tax

11ab111ty291A 217A Other2,449A 2,479A A $10,378A $10 212A Other Non-Current LiabilitiesA AsA ofA OctoberA 31A 20242023A InA millionsDeferred revenue$1,487A $1,324A Tax
hab1hty839A 904A Operating lease liabilities787A 825A Pension, post-retirement, and post-employment liabilities607A 546A Deferred tax

liability31A 44A Other531A 688A A $4,282A $4,331A Interest and Other, NetA ForA theA fiscalA yearsA endedA OctoberA 31A 202420232022A In millionsInterest expense on
borrowings$(452)$(548)$(359)Factoring costs(1)(155)(136)a€ ”A Net (loss) gain on debt extinguishment(3)107A 4€”A Non-operating retirement-related credits14A 51A 144A Tax
indemnificationsa€”A 4€”A (1)Other net57A 7A (19)A $(539) $(519)$(235)(1)Factoring costs for fiscal year 2022 were included in Selling, general and administrative and were not
material.83Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) Net Revenue by

ReglonA ForA theA fiscalA yearsA endedA OctoberA 31A 202420232022A In mllllonsAmerlcaS$23 251A $23,095A $26,544A Europe, Middle East and Africal8, 044A 17,819A 21,300A Asia-
Pacific and Japan12,264A 12,804A 15,066A Total net revenue$53,559A $53,718A $62,910A Value of Remaining Performance ObligationsAs of October 31, 2024, the estimated value of
transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations was $3.9 billion. HP expects to recognize approximately $1.7 billion of the unearned amount in next 12 months and $2.2 billion
thereafter.HP has elected the practical expedients and accordingly does not disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations if: &€¢the
contract has an original expected duration of one year or less; ora€¢the revenue from the performance obligation is recognized over time on an as-invoiced basis when the amount corresponds
directly with the value to the customer; ora€¢the portion of the transaction price that is variable in nature is allocated entirely to a wholly unsatisfied performance obligation.The remaining
performance obligations are subject to change and may be affected by various factors, such as termination of contracts, contract modifications and adjustment for currency.Costs of Obtaining
Contracts and Fulfillment CostAs of October 31, 2024, deferred contract fulfillment and acquisition costs balances were $36 million and $50 million, respectively, included in Other current
assets and Other non-current assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. During the fiscal year ended October 31, 2024, the Company amortized $86 million of these costs.As of October 31,
2023, deferred contract fulfillment and acquisition costs balances were $35 million and $44 million, respectively, included in Other current assets and Other non-current assets in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. During the fiscal year ended October 31, 2023, the Company amortized $88 million of these costs.Contract Liabilities As of October 31, 2024 and 2023, HPa€™s
contract liabilities balances were $2.9 billion and $2.7 billion, respectively, included in Other current liabilities and Other non-current liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The increase
in the contract liabilities balance for the fiscal year 2024 was primarily driven by sales of fixed-price support and maintenance services, partially offset by $1.4 billion of revenue recognized that
were included in the contract liabilities balance as of October 31, 2023.As of October 31, 2023 and 2022, HPa€™s contract liabilities balances were $2.7 billion and $2.5 billion, respectively,
included in Other current liabilities and Other non-current liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.The increase in the contract liabilities balance for the fiscal year 2023 was primarily
driven by sales of fixed-price support and maintenance services, partially offset by $1.3 billion of revenue recognized that were included in the contract liabilities balance as of October 31,
2022.84Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) Supplier Finance ProgramsHP facilitates voluntary supplier finance programs
to provide certain suppliers the opportunity to sell their right to HP4€™s payment obligations to participating financial institutions. Under this program, HP agrees to pay the participating
financial institutions the stated amount of confirmed invoices from its designated suppliers on the original maturity dates of the invoices. Participation by suppliers in these programs have no
impact on the payment terms and amounts due from HP. HP does not have an economic interest in a supplier's participation in the program and is not a party to the agreement between the
supplier and the financial institutions. In connection with these programs, HP does not pledge assets or other forms of guarantees as security for the committed payment to the participating
financial institutions. For certain programs, HP pays a monthly service fee to a third-party administrator that provides the supplier finance platform and related support. HP and the
participating financial institutions may terminate the agreement upon at least 30 days notice. As of OctoberA 31, 2024 and OctoberA 31, 2023, HP had $7.8 billion and $6.6 billion, respectively,
in obligations outstanding (i.e., unpaid invoices) that were confirmed as valid under the supplier finance programs. Of the amounts confirmed as valid under the program and outstanding, the
amounts owed to participating financial institutions were $0.9 billion as of both OctoberA 31, 2024 and OctoberA 31, 2023, respectively. These obligations are included within the Accounts
payable line item of HP4€™s Consolidated Balance Sheet.85Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)Note 8: Goodwill and
Intangible AssetsGoodwill allocated to HPA€™ s reportable segments and changes in the carrying amount of goodwill were as follows:A A A Personal SystemsPrintingCorporate
InvestmentsTotallnA millionsBalance as of October 31, 2022(1)$4,695A $3,728A $118A $8,541A Acquisitions27A 4A 4€”A 31A Foreign currency translation and

othera€”A 19A a€”A 19A Balance as of October 31, 2023(1)4,722A 3,751A 118A 8,591A Acquisitions26A 2A 4€”A 28A Foreign currency translation and othera€”A 8A 4€”A 8A Balance as of
October 31, 2024(1)$4,748A $3,761A $118A $8,627A (1)Goodwill is net of accumulated impairment losses of $0.8A billion related to Corporate Investments recorded in fiscal year
2011.Goodwill is tested for impairment at the reporting unit level. As of OctoberA 31, 2024, our reporting units are consistent with the reportable segments identified in NoteA 2, 4€ceSegment
Informationa€. Personal Systems had a negative carrying amount of net assets as of October 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 primarily as a result of a favorable cash conversion cycle. Intangible
AssetsHPa€™s acquired intangible assets were composed of: As of October 31, 2024As of October 31, 2023GrossAccumulated AmortizationNetGrossAccumulated AmortizationNetIn
millionsCustomer contracts, customer lists and distribution agreements$868A $458A $410A $827A $369A $458A Technology and patents 1,772A 989A 783A 1,763A 785A 978A Trade name and
trademarks218A 92A 126A 215A 58A 157A Total intangible assets$2,858A $1,539A $1,319A $2,805A $1,212A $1,593A As of October 31, 2024, estimated future amortization expense related to
intangible assets was as follows:Fiscal yearIn millions2025$253A 2026243A 2027238A 2028193A 2029125A Thereafter267A Total$1,319A 86Table of Contents HPA INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)NoteA 9: Fair Value Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
(an exit price) in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.A Fair Value HierarchyHP uses valuation techniques that are based upon observable and
unobservable inputs. Observable inputs are developed using market data such as publicly available information and reflect the assumptions market participants would use, while unobservable
inputs are developed using the best information available about the assumptions market participants would use. Assets and liabilities are classified in the fair value hierarchy based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement:LevelA 14€”Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.LevelA 2&4€”Quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or
liability and market-corroborated inputs.LevelA 34€”Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to observable inputs and lowest priority to
unobservable inputs.The following table presents HPA€™s assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis:A As of October 31, 2024As of October 31,

2023A FairA Value MeasuredA UsingA FairA Value MeasuredA UsingA A LevelA 1LevelA 2LevelA 3TotalLevelA 1LevelA 2LevelA 3TotalA InA millionsAssets:Cash EquivalentsCorporate
debt$a€”A $1,012A $a€”A $1,012A $a4€"A $589A $a€”A $589A Government debt(1)1,332A a€”A 4€”A 1,332A 1,900A a€”A 4€”A 1,900A Available-for-Sale InvestmentsFinancial institution
instrumentsa€”A 3A a€”A 3A a€”A 3A 4€”A 3A Marketable securities and mutual funds(2)54A 130A 4€”A 184A 33A 45A 4€”A 78A Derivative InstrumentsInterest rate

contractsa€”A 4A a€”A 4A a€”A a€”A a€”A 4€”A Foreign currency contractsa€”A 225A a€”A 225A 4€”A 489A a€”A 489A Total

assets$1,386A $1,374A $a€”A $2,760A $1,933A $1,126A $a€”A $3,059A Liabilities:Derivative InstrumentsInterest rate contracts$a€”A $22A $a€”A $22A $a€”A $58A $a€”A $58A Foreign
currency contractsa€”A 158A a€”A 158A a€”A 212A a4€”A 212A Other derivativesa€”A 2A 4€”A 2A 4€”A 2A a€”A 2A Total

liabilities$a€”A $182A $4€”A $182A $a€”A $272A $4€”A $272A (1)A A A A Government debt includes instruments such as U.S. treasury notes, U.S. agency securities and non-U.S. government
bonds. Money market funds invested in government debt and traded in active markets are included in Level 1. (2)A A A A As of OctoberA 31, 2024, $78 million of debt securities were restricted
to fund benefits received by qualifying employees under a sponsored defined benefit plan.87Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)Valuation TechniquesA Cash Equivalents and Investments:A HP holds time deposits, money market funds, mutual funds, other debt securities primarily consisting of corporate and
foreign government notes and bonds, and common stock and equivalents. HP values cash equivalents and equity investments using quoted market prices, alternative pricing sources, including
net asset value, or models utilizing market observable inputs. The fair value of debt investments is based on quoted market prices or model-driven valuations using inputs primarily derived from
or corroborated by observable market data, and, in certain instances, valuation models that utilize assumptions which cannot be corroborated with observable market data.A Derivative
Instruments:A HP uses industry standard valuation models to measure fair value. Where applicable, these models project future cash flows and discount the future amounts to present value
using market-based observable inputs, including interest rate curves, HP and counterparty credit risk, foreign exchange rates, and forward and spot prices for currencies and interest rates. See
NoteA 10, a€ceFinancial Instrumentsa€ for a further discussion of HPA€™s use of derivative instruments.A Other Fair Value DisclosuresShort- and Long-Term Debt:A HP estimates the fair value
of its debt primarily using an expected present value technique, which is based on observable market inputs using interest rates currently available to companies of similar credit standing for
similar terms and remaining maturities and considering its own credit risk. The portion of HPa€™s debt that is hedged is reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as an amount equal to the
debta€™ s carrying amount and a fair value adjustment representing changes in the fair value of the hedged debt obligations arising from movements in benchmark interest rates. The fair value
of HPa€™s short- and long-term debt was $9.4 billion as compared to its carrying amount of $9.7 billion as of October 31, 2024. The fair value of HPa€™s short- and long-term debt was $8.5
billion as compared to its carrying value of $9.5 billion at October 31, 2023. If measured at fair value in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, short- and long-term debt would be classified in
LevelA 2 of the fair value hierarchy.Other Financial Instruments:A For the balance of HP4€™s financial instruments, primarily accounts receivable, accounts payable and financial liabilities
included in Other current liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to their short-term maturities. If measured at fair value in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets, these other financial instruments would be classified as LevelA 2 or LevelA 3 of the fair value hierarchy.Non-Marketable Equity Investments and Non-Financial
Assets:A HPa€™ s non-marketable equity investments are measured at cost less impairment, adjusted for observable price changes. HP4€™ s non-financial assets, such as intangible assets,
goodwill and property, plant and equipment, are recorded at fair value in the period an impairment charge is recognized. If measured at fair value in the Consolidated Balance Sheets these
would generally be classified within LevelA 3 of the fair value hierarchy.88Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)NoteA 10:
Financial InstrumentsCash Equivalents and Available-for-Sale InvestmentsA As of October 31, 2024As of October 31,

2023A CostGrossUnrealizedGainGrossUnrealizedLossFairValueCostGrossUnrealizedGainGrossUnrealized LossFairValueA InA millionsCash Equivalents:A A A A A A A A Corporate

debt$1,012A $a€”A $4€”A $1,012A $589A $a€”A $a€”A $589A Government debt1,332A a€”A 4€”A 1,332A 1,900A a€”A 4€”A $1,900A Total cash

equivalents2,344A a€”A a€”A 2,344A 2,489A a€”A a€”A 2,489A Available-for-Sale Investments:Financial institution instruments3A 4€”A a€”A 3A 3A 4€”A a€”A 3A Marketable securities and
mutual funds(1)115A 69A a€”A 184A 40A 38A 4€”A 78A Total available-for-sale investments118A 69A 4€”A 187A 43A 38A 4€”A 81A Total cash equivalents and available-for-sale
investments$2,462A $69A $a€”A $2,531A $2,532A $38A $a€”A $2,570A (1)A A A A As of OctoberA 31, 2024, $78 million of debt securities were restricted to fund benefits received by qualifying
employees under a sponsored defined benefit plan.All highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less at the date of acquisition are considered cash equivalents. As of
October 31, 2024 and 2023, the carrying amount of cash equivalents approximated fair value due to the short period of time to maturity. Interest income related to cash, cash equivalents and
debt securities was approximately $78 million in fiscal year 2024, $67 million in fiscal year 2023, and $46 million in fiscal year 2022. The estimated fair value of the available-for-sale
investments may not be representative of values that will be realized in the future.Contractual maturities of investments in available-for-sale debt securities were as follows: A As of October 31,
2024A AmortizedCostFairA ValueA InA millionsDue in less than one year$19A $19A Due in one to five years62A 62A A $81A $81A Non-marketable equity securities in privately held companies



are included in Other current and non-current assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. These amounted to $107 million and $111 million as of October 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. HP
determines credit losses on cash equivalents and available-for-sale debt securities at the individual security level. All instruments are considered investment grade. No credit-related or
noncredit-related impairment losses were recorded in fiscal year 2024.89Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)Derivative
InstrumentsHP uses derivative instruments, primarily forward contracts, interest rate swaps, total return swaps, treasury rate locks, forward starting swaps and option contracts to offset
business exposure to foreign currency and interest rate risk on expected future cash flows and on certain existing assets and liabilities. HP may designate its derivative contracts as fair value
hedges or cash flow hedges and classifies the cash flows with the activities that correspond to the underlying hedged items. Additionally, for derivatives not designated as hedging instruments,
HP categorizes those economic hedges as other derivatives. HP recognizes all derivative instruments at fair value in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. As a result of its use of derivative
instruments, HP is exposed to the risk that its counterparties will fail to meet their contractual obligations. Master netting agreements mitigate credit exposure to counterparties by permitting
HP to net amounts due from HP to counterparty against amounts due to HP from the same counterparty under certain conditions. To further limit credit risk, HP has collateral security
agreements that allow HPa€™s custodian to hold collateral from, or require HP to post collateral to, counterparties when the net fair value of financial instruments fluctuates. The Company
includes gross collateral posted and received in other current assets and other current liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, respectively. The fair value of derivatives with credit
contingent features in a net liability position was $59 million and $91 million as of October 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, all of which were fully collateralized within two business

days.A Under HPA€™s derivative contracts, the counterparty can terminate all outstanding trades following a covered change of control event affecting HP that results in the surviving entity
being rated below a specified credit rating. This credit contingent provision did not affect HP&€™ s financial position or cash flows as of October 31, 2024 and 2023.Fair Value HedgesHP enters
into fair value hedges, such as interest rate swaps, to reduce the exposure of its debt portfolio to changes in fair value resulting from changes in benchmark interest rates on HPa€™s future
interest payments.For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges, HP recognizes the change in fair value of the derivative instrument, as well as the offsetting
change in the fair value of the hedged item, in Interest and other, net in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings in the period of change.Cash Flow HedgesHP uses forward contracts, option
contracts, treasury rate locks and forward starting swaps designated as cash flow hedges to protect against the foreign currency exchange and interest rate risks inherent in its forecasted
products net revenue, cost of products net revenue, operating expenses and debt issuance. HPa€™ s foreign currency cash flow hedges mature predominantly within twelve months; however,
hedges related to long-term procurement arrangements, contractual pricing and/or business unit specific exposures may extend several years.For derivative instruments that are designated and
qualify as cash flow hedges, HP initially records changes in fair value of the derivative instrument in Accumulated other comprehensive loss as a separate component of Stockholdersa€™ deficit
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and subsequently reclassifies these amounts into earnings in the period during which the hedged transaction is recognized in earnings. HP reports the
changes in the fair value of the derivative instrument in the same financial statement line item as changes in the fair value of the hedged item.During fiscal 2024, HP entered into a series of
forward starting swap agreements with notional amounts totaling $500 million to hedge the exposure to variability in future cash flows resulting from changes in interest rates related to the
anticipated issuance of long-term debt. These agreements were designated as cash flow hedges.Other DerivativesOther derivatives not designated as hedging instruments consist primarily of
forward contracts used to hedge foreign currency-denominated balance sheet exposures. HP also uses total return swaps to hedge its executive deferred compensation plan liability.For
derivative instruments not designated as hedging instruments, HP recognizes changes in fair value of the derivative instrument, as well as the offsetting change in the fair value of the hedged
item, in Interest and other, net in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings in the period of change.Hedge EffectivenessFor interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges, HP measures
hedge effectiveness by offsetting the change in fair value of the hedged item with the change in fair value of the derivative. For foreign currency options, forward contracts and forward starting
swaps designated as cash flow hedges, HP measures hedge effectiveness by comparing the cumulative change in fair value of the hedge contract with the cumulative change in fair value of the
hedged item, both of which are based on forward rates.90Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) During fiscal year 2024 and
2023, no portion of the hedging instrumentsa€™ gain or loss was excluded from the assessment of effectiveness for fair value and cash flow hedges.A Fair Value of Derivative Instruments in the
Consolidated Balance SheetsThe gross notional and fair value of derivative instruments in the Consolidated Balance Sheets were as follows:A As of October 31, 2024As of October 31,

2023A OutstandingGrossNotionalOtherCurrentAssetsOtherNon-CurrentAssetsOtherCurrentLiabilitiesOtherNon- -CurrentLiabilitiesOutstandingGrossNotionalOtherCurrentAssetsOtherNon-

CurrentAssetsOtherCurrentLiabilitiesOtherNon-CurrentLiabilitiesA InA millionsDerivatives designated as hedging instrumentsA A A A A A A A A A Fair value

hedges:AA AA AAAAA AlInterest rate contracts$750A $4€”A $a€”A $11A $10A $750A $a€”A $4€”A $a€”A $58A Cash flow hedges:A A A A A A A A A Foreign currency

contracts14,563A 169A 36A 117A 34A 15,278A 410A 70A 147A 52A Interest rate contracts500A 4€”A 4A a4€”A 1A a€”A a€”A 4€”A a€”A 4€”A Total derivatives designated as hedging
instruments15,813A 169A 40A 128A 45A 16,028A 410A 70A 147A 110A Derivatives not designated as hedging instrumentsA A A A A A A A A A Foreign currency

contracts4,284A 20A 4€”A 7A a€”A 4,446A 9A 4€”A 13A a4€”A Other derivatives156A 4€”A a€”A 2A a€”A 125A 4€”A a€”A 2A 4€”A Total derivatives not designated asA hedging
instruments4,440A 20A a€”A 9A a€”A 4,571A 9A a€”A 15A a€”A Total derivatives$20,253A $189A $40A $137A $45A $20,599A $419A $70A $162A $110A Offsetting of Derivative InstrumentsHP
recognizes all derivative instruments on a gross basis in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. HP does not offset the fair value of its derivative instruments against the fair value of cash collateral
posted under its collateral security agreements. As of October 31, 2024 and 2023, information related to the potential effect of HP4€™s master netting agreements and collateral security

agreements was as follows A InA theA ConsohdatedA BalanceA SheetsA AA (1)(11)(111)A A (1)a€“(11)(1v)(v)A (v1)A =A (iii)a€“(iv)a€“(v)A Gross AmountRecogmzedGross AmountOffsetNet

assets$229A $a€"A $229A $113A $88A (1)$28A Derivative liabilities$182A $a€”A $182A $113A $61A (2 $8A As of October 31, 2023A A A A A A Derivative

assets$489A $a€”A $489A $178A $291A (1)$20A Derivative liabilities$272A $4€”A $272A $178A $89A (2)$5A (1)Represents the cash collateral posted by counterparties as of the respective
reporting date for HPA€™ s asset position, net of derivative amounts that could be offset, as of, generally, two business days prior to the respective reporting date.(2)Represents the collateral
posted by HP including any re-use of counterparty cash collateral as of the respective reporting date for HPa€™s liability position, net of derivative amounts that could be offset, as of, generally,
two business days prior to the respective reporting date.91Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)Effect of Derivative
Instruments in the Consolidated Statements of EarningsThe pre-tax effect of derivative instruments and related hedged items in a fair value hedging relationship were as

follows:DerivativeA InstrumentHedgedA ItemLocationFor the fiscal years ended October 31Gain/(loss) recognized in earnings on derivative instrumentsGain/(loss) recognized in earnings on
hedgedA itemA A A A In millionsInterest rate contractsFixed-rate debtInterest and other, net2024$36A $(36)2023$20A $(20)2022$(62)$62A The pre-tax effect of derivative instruments in cash
flow hedging relationships included in Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) was as follows:For the fiscal years ended October 31A 202420232022A InA millionsGain/(loss) recognized
in AccumulatedA other comprehensive income (loss) on derivatives:Foreign currency contracts$47A $(427)$1 456A Interest rate contracts$4A $4€”A $85A The pre-tax effect of derivative
instruments in cash flow hedging relationships included in earnings were as follows:Gain/ (loss) reclassifiedA fromA AccumulatedA other comprehensive loss intoA earningsFor the fiscal years
ended October 31202420232022In millionsProducts net revenue$408A $243A $877A Cost of products net revenue(142)(167)(101)Operating expenses(4)(4)(1)Interest and other,

net12A 12A 4A A A A Total$274A $84A $779A As of October 31, 2024, HP expects to reclassify an estimated accumulated other comprehensive gain of approximately $21 million, net of taxes, to
earnings within the next twelve months associated with cash flow hedges along with the earnings effects of the related forecasted transactions. The amounts ultimately reclassified into earnings
could be different from the amounts previously included in Accumulated other comprehensive loss based on the change of market rate, and therefore could have different impact on
earnings.92Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)The pre-tax effect of derivative instruments not designated as hedging
instruments recognized in Interest and other, net in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings was as follows:A Gain/(loss) recognized in earnings on derivative

instrumentA Location202420232022A A InA mllhonsForelgn currency contractsInterest and other, net$44A $(65)$41A Other derivativesInterest and other, neta€”A (3)

(4)TotalA $44A $(68)$37A 93Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)Note 11: Borrowings A Notes Payable and Short-Term
BorrowingsA AsA of October 31A 20242023A AmountOutstandingWeighted-AveragelnterestA RateAmountOutstandingWeighted-AveragelnterestA RateA InA millionsCurrent portion of long-
term debt$1,358A 5.0A %$179A 6.0A %Notes payable to banks, lines of creditA and other48A a4€”A %51A &4€”A %Total notes payable and short-term borrowings$1,406A A $230A A Long-Term
DebtA AsA of October 31A 20242023A InA millionsU.S. Dollar Global Notes(1)A A $1,200 issued at discount to par at a price of 99.863% at 6.0%, due September 2041$1,199A $1,199A $1,150
issued at discount to par at a price of 99.769% at 2.2%, due June 20251,150A 1,149A $1,000 issued at discount to par at a price of 99.718% at 3.00%, due June 2027999A 999A $850 issued at
discount to par at a price of 99.790% at 3.4%, due June 2030503A 503A $1,000 issued at discount to par at a price of 99.808% at 1.45%, due June 202652 1A 521A $1,000 issued at discount to
par at a price of 99.573% at 2.65%, due June 2031(2)997A 997A $1,000 issued at discount to par at a price of 99.767% at 4.00%, due April 2029999A 999A $1,000 issued at discount to par at a
price of 99.966% at 4.20%, due April 2032676A 676A $900 issued at discount to par at a price of 99.841% at 4.75%, due January 2028899A 899A $1,100 issued at discount to par at a price of
99.725% at 5.50%, due January 20331,098A 1,097A $500 issued at par at a price of 100% at 4.75%, due March 20293A 3A A 9,044A 9,042A Other borrowings at 1.47%-8.30%, due in fiscal
years 2025-2030645A 506A Fair value adjustment related to hedged debt(21)(58)Unamortized debt issuance cost(47)(57)Current portion of long-term debt(1,358)(179)Total long-term
debt$8,263A $9,254A (1)HP may redeem some or all of the fixed-rate U.S. Dollar Global Notes at any time in accordance with the terms thereof. The U.S. Dollar Global Notes are senior
unsecured debt.(2)HP allocated an amount equal to the net proceeds to finance or refinance, in whole or in part, environmentally and socially responsible eligible projects in the following eight
areas: renewable energy; green buildings; energy efficiency; clean transportation; pollution prevention and control; eco-efficient and/or circular economy products, production technologies and
processes; environmentally sustainable management of living natural resources and land use; and socioeconomic advancement and empowerment.As disclosed in NoteA 10, 4€ceFinancial
Instrumentsa€, HP uses interest rate swaps to mitigate some of the exposure of its debt portfolio to changes in fair value resulting from changes in benchmark interest rates. Interest rates
shown in the table of long-term debt have not been adjusted to reflect the impact of any interest rate swaps.94Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)As of October 31, 2024, aggregate future maturities of debt at face value (excluding unamortized debt issuance cost of $47 million, discounts on debt issuance of $11
million and fair value adjustment related to hedged debt of $21 million), including other borrowings were as

follows:A FiscalA yearInA millions2025$1,419A 2026720A 20271,133A 2028972A 20291,023A Thereafter4,481A Total$9,748A Commercial PaperAs of October 31, 2024, HP maintained a U.S.
commercial paper program for the issuance of U.S. dollar-denominated commercial paper up to a maximum aggregate principal amount of $6.0A billion. The principal amount outstanding under
this program and certain short-term borrowings at any time cannot exceed a $6.0A billion authorization by HP4€™s Board of Directors.Credit FacilitiesAs of October 31, 2024, HP maintained a
$5.0A billion 5-year sustainability-linked senior unsecured committed revolving credit facility (the &€ceNew Revolving Facilitya€), which HP entered into on August 1, 2024. Commitments under
the New Revolving Facility will be available until August 1, 2029. Commitment fees, interest rates and other terms of borrowing under the New Revolving Facility vary based on HPa€™s
external credit ratings and certain sustainability metrics. Funds borrowed under the New Revolving Facility may be used for general corporate purposes. As of October 31, 2023, HP had
maintained a $5.0A billion sustainability-linked senior unsecured committed revolving credit facility for general corporate purposes. In March 2024, the $1.0A billion senior unsecured
committed 364-day revolving credit facility matured in accordance with its terms. Additionally, commitments under the previous $5.0A billion sustainability-linked senior unsecured committed
revolving credit facility were terminated concurrently with the execution of the New Revolving Facility.As of October 31, 2024, HP was in compliance with the covenants in the credit agreement
governing the revolving credit facility.Available Borrowing ResourcesAs of October 31, 2024, HP had available borrowing resources of $0.9 billion from uncommitted lines of credit in addition to
funds available under the revolving credit facility.95Table of ContentsHPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)Note 12: Stockholdersa€™
DeficitShare Repurchase ProgramHP&a€™s share repurchase program authorizes both open market and private repurchase transactions. In fiscal year 2024, HP executed share repurchases of
62.7 million shares and settled total shares for $2.1 billion. In fiscal year 2023, HP executed share repurchases of 3.6 million shares and settled total shares for $0.1 billion. In fiscal year 2022,
HP executed share repurchases of 124.0 million shares and settled total shares for $4.3 billion. Share repurchases executed during fiscal year 2024 included 0.1 million shares settled in
November 2024.The shares repurchased in fiscal years 2024, 2023 and 2022 were all open market repurchase transactions. As of October 31, 2024, HP had approximately $9.3 billion
remaining under the share repurchase authorizations approved by HPa€™s Board of Directors. Taxes related to Other Comprehensive (Loss) IncomeA ForA theA fiscalA yearsA ended

OctoberA 31A 202420232022A In millionsTax effect on change in unrealized components of available-for-sale debt securities:A A A Tax (provision) benefit on unrealized gains (losses) arising
during the period$( (1)$(1)$2A A Tax effect on change in unrealized components of cash flow ‘hedges: A A Tax (provision) benefit on unrealized gains (losses) arising during the

period(1 3)75A (328)Tax provision on (gains) losses reclassified into earnmgsS3A 18A 195A A 40A 93A (133)Tax effect on change in unrealized components of defined benefit plans:A A Tax
benefit on unrealized gains (losses) arising during the period8A 26A 26A Tax benefit (provision) on amortization of actuarial loss and prior service benefita€”A 1A (6)Tax provision on
curtailments, settlements and other(1)a€”A (1)A 7A 27A 19A Tax effect on change in cumulative translation adjustmenta€”A 4€”A 3A Tax benefit (provision) on other comprehensive income
(loss)$46A $119A $(109)A 96Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)Changes and reclassifications related to Other

Comprehensive (Loss) Income, net of taxesA For the years ended October 31A 202420232022A In millionsOther comprehenswe (loss) income, net of taxes:A A A Change in unrealized
components of available-for-sale debt securities:A A A Unrealized gains (losses) arising during the per10d$7A $1A $(9)A Change in unrealized components of cash flow hedges:A A A Unrealized
gains (losses) arising during the per10d38A (352)1,213A Gains reclassified into earmngs(221)(66)(584)A (183)(418)629A Change in unrealized components of defined benefit

plans: A A A Unrealized losses arising during the penod(68)(l15)(28)Amortlzat10n of actuarial loss and prior service benefit(1)8A 1A 14A Curtailments, settlements and other1A 4€”A (1)A (59)
(114)(15)Change in cumulative translation adjustment24A 23A (75)Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of taxes$(211)$(508)$530A (1)These components are included in the computation of
net pension and post-retirement benefit (credit) charges in Note 4, 4€ceRetirement and Post-Retirement Benefit Plansa€.The components of Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income, net
of taxes as of October 31, 2024 and changes during fiscal year 2024 were as follows:A Net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securitiesNet unrealized gains (losses) on cash flow
hedgesUnrealized components of defined benefit plansChange in cumulative translation adjustmentAccumulated other comprehensive lossA In millionsBalance at beginning of

period$7A $230A $(437)$(23)$(223)Other comprehensive gains (losses) before reclassifications7A 38A (68)24A 1A Reclassifications of (losses) gains into

earningsa€”A (221)8A a€”A (213)Reclassifications ofA curtailments, settlements and other into earningsa€”A 4€”A 1A 4€”A 1A Balance at end of period$14A $47A $(496)$1A $(434)97Table of
Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)NoteA 13: Earnings Per ShareHP calculates basic net EPS using net earnings and the weighted-
average number of shares outstanding during the reporting period. Diluted net EPS includes any dilutive effect of restricted stock units, stock options, performance-based awards and shares
purchased under the 2021 employee stock purchase plan.A reconciliation of the number of shares used for basic and diluted net EPS calculations is as follows: A ForA theA fiscalA yearsA ended
OctoberA 31A 202420232022A InA millions, A exceptA perA share amountsNumerator: A A A Net earnmgs$2 775A $3,263A $3,132A Denommator AAA Welghted average shares used to

of dlluted net EPS stock optlons and restricted stock units where the assumed proceeds exceed the average market price, because their effect would be anti-dilutive. The assumed proceeds of a
stock option include the sum of its exercise price, and average unrecognized compensation cost. The assumed proceeds of a restricted stock unit represent unrecognized compensation



cost.98Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)Note 14: Litigation and Contingencies A HP is involved in lawsuits, claims,
investigations and proceedings, including those identified below, consisting of IP, commercial, securities, employment, employee benefits and environmental matters that arise in the ordinary
course of business. HP accrues a liability when management believes that it is both probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. HP believes it
has recorded adequate provisions for any such matters and, as of OctoberA 31, 2024, it was not reasonably possible that a material loss had been incurred in excess of the amounts recognized
in HP4€™s financial statements. HP reviews these matters at least quarterly and adjusts its accruals to reflect the impact of negotiations, settlements, rulings, advice of legal counsel, and other
information and events pertaining to a particular case. Pursuant to the separation and distribution agreement entered into with Hewlett Packard Enterprise Company (a&€ceHewlett Packard
Enterprisea€), HP shares responsibility with Hewlett Packard Enterprise for certain matters, as indicated below, and Hewlett Packard Enterprise has agreed to indemnify HP in whole or in part
with respect to certain matters. Based on its experience, HP believes that any damage amounts claimed in the specific matters discussed below are not a meaningful indicator of HPa€™s
potential liability. Litigation is inherently unpredictable. However, HP believes it has valid defenses with respect to legal matters pending against it. Nevertheless, cash flows or results of
operations could be materially affected in any particular period by the resolution of one or more of these contingencies.Litigation, Proceedings and InvestigationsCopyright Levies. Proceedings
are ongoing or have been concluded involving HP in certain European countries, challenging the imposition or the modification of levies regimes upon IT equipment (such as PCs or printers) or
the restrictions to exonerate the application of private copying levies on devices purchased by business users. The levies are generally based upon the number of products sold and the per-
product amounts of the levies, which vary. Some European countries are expected to implement legislation to introduce or extend existing levy schemes to digital devices. HP, other companies
and various industry associations have opposed the extension of levies to the digital product and certain requirements for business sales exemptions and have advocated alternative models of
compensation to rights holders.Based on the exemption of levies on business sales and industry opposition to increasing levies to digital products, HPa€™s assessments of the merits of various
proceedings and HPA€™s estimates of the number of units impacted and the amounts of the levies, HP has accrued amounts that it believes are adequate to address the ongoing disputes.India
Directorate of Revenue Intelligence Proceedings. On April 30 and May 10, 2010, the India Directorate of Revenue Intelligence (the &4€eDRIA€) issued show cause notices to Hewlett-Packard
India Sales Private Limited (a€0eHP Indiaa€), a subsidiary of HP, seven HP India employees and one former HP India employee alleging that HP India underpaid customs duties while importing
products and spare parts into India and seeking to recover an aggregate of approximately $370 million, plus penalties and interest. Prior to the issuance of the notices, HP India deposited
approximately $16 million with the DRI and agreed to post a provisional bond in exchange for the DRI&€™s agreement to not seize HP India products and spare parts or interrupt business by
HP India.On April 11, 2012, the Bangalore Commissioner of Customs issued an order on the products-related notice affirming certain duties and penalties against HP India and the named
individuals of approximately $386 million, of which HP India had already deposited $9 million. On December 11, 2012, HP India voluntarily deposited an additional $10 million in connection
with the products-related notice. The differential duty demand is subject to interest. On April 20, 2012, the Commissioner issued an order on the parts-related notice affirming certain duties and
penalties against HP India and certain of the named individuals of approximately $17 million, of which HP India had already deposited $7 million. After the order, HP India deposited an
additional $3 million in connection with the parts-related notice so as to avoid certain penalties.HP India filed appeals of the Commissionera€™s orders before the Customs, Excise and Service
Tax Appellate Tribunal (the &€ceCustoms Tribunald€) along with applications for waiver of the pre-deposit of remaining demand amounts as a condition for hearing the appeals. The Customs
Department has also filed cross-appeals before the Customs Tribunal. On JanuaryA 24, 2013, the Customs Tribunal ordered HP India to deposit an additional $24 million against the products
order, which HP India deposited in MarchA 2013. On FebruaryA 7, 2014, the Customs Tribunal granted HP Indiad€™s application for extension of the stay of deposit until disposal of the
appeals. On OctoberA 27, 2014, the Customs Tribunal commenced hearings on the cross-appeals of the Commissionera€™s orders and rejected HP India&€™s request to remand the matter to
the Commissioner on procedural grounds. The Customs Tribunal cancelled hearings to reconvene in 2015, 2016 and January 2019. On January 20, 2021, the Customs Tribunal held a virtual
hearing during which the judge allowed HPa€™ s application for a physical hearing on the merits as soon as practicable, which will be scheduled when physical hearings resume at court.
Pursuant to the separation and distribution agreement, Hewlett Packard Enterprise has agreed to indemnify HP in part, based on the extent to which any liability arises from the products and
spare parts of Hewlett Packard Enterprisea€™s businesses.99Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) Philips Patent Litigation.
In September 2020, Koninklijke Philips N.V. and Philips North America LLC (collectively, a€oePhilipsa€) filed a complaint against HP for patent infringement in federal court for the District of
Delaware and filed a companion complaint with the U.S. International Trade Commission (4€ceITC4&€) pursuant to Section 337 of the Tariff Act against HP and 8 other sets of respondents. Both
complaints allege that certain digital video-capable devices and components thereof infringe four of Philipsa€™ patents. In October 2020, the ITC instituted an investigation, and Philips later
withdrew two of the four patents. On March 23, 2022, the ITC rendered a final determination that no violation of Section 337 has occurred. Philips did not appeal and elected to resume
litigation with its case in federal court. Philips seeks unspecified damages and an injunction against HP, and the prior stay has been lifted. On August 10, 2023, HP filed a motion for summary
judgment of indefiniteness for all asserted claims. On July 1, 2024, the district court denied the motion without prejudice to renew.York County on behalf of the County of York Retirement Fund
v. HP Inc., et al., and related proceedings. On November 5, 2020, York County, on behalf of the County of York Retirement Fund, filed a putative class action complaint against HP, Dion Weisler,
and Catherine Lesjak in federal court in the Northern District of California. The court appointed Maryland Electrical Industry Pension Fund as Lead Plaintiff. Lead Plaintiff filed a consolidated
complaint, which additionally names as defendants Enrique Lores and Richard Bailey. The complaint alleges, among other things, that from November 5, 2015 to June 21, 2016, HP and the
named current and former officers violated Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Exchange Act by concealing material information and making false statements about HP4€™ s printing supplies
business (a€ceSecurities Class Actiona€). Plaintiffs seek compensatory damages and other relief. HP and the named officers filed a motion to dismiss the complaint for failure to state a claim
upon which relief can be granted. On March 3, 2022, the court granted the motion to dismiss with prejudice. Plaintiffs appealed the decision. On April 11, 2023, the appellate court reversed the
district courta€™s decision and remanded the case to the district court for further proceedings consistent with the appellate opinion, including consideration of HP4€™s other arguments for
dismissal. On July 21, 2023, HP and the named officers filed a renewed motion to dismiss. On March 27, 2024, the district court issued an order granting in part and denying in part the motion
to dismiss. On August 8, 2024, the Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit granted HP4€™ s petition for permission to appeal. On October 28, 2024, HP filed its appeal. On May 17, 2021,
stockholder Scott Franklin filed a derivative complaint against certain current and former officers and directors in federal court in the District of Delaware. Plaintiff purports to bring the action
on behalf of HP, which he has named as a nominal defendant, and he makes substantially the same factual allegations as in the York County securities complaint, bringing claims for breach of
fiduciary duty and violations of securities laws. The derivative plaintiff seeks compensatory damages, governance reforms, and other relief. By court order following stipulations by the parties,
the case was transferred to the Northern District of California, and the case was stayed pending a ruling on the motion to dismiss in York County and exhaustion of all related appeals. On
January 13, 2022, stockholder Gerald Lovoi filed a derivative complaint in federal court in the Northern District of California against the same current and former officers and directors named
in the Franklin action. The complaint alleges the same basic claims based on the same alleged conduct as the Franklin action and seeks similar relief. By stipulation of the parties, the Lovoi
action was stayed pending a ruling on the motion to dismiss in York County and exhaustion of all related appeals. On May 31, 2024, the court adopted a stipulation in which the derivative
plaintiffs and defendants agreed to consolidate the derivative proceedings, close the Lovoi action, and extend the current stay through summary judgment in the Securities Class Action.Legal
Proceedings re Authentication of Supplies. Since 2016, HP has from time to time been named in civil litigation, or been the subject of government investigations, involving supplies
authentication protocols used in certain HP printers in multiple geographies, including but not limited to the United States, Italy, Israel, the Netherlands, Australia and New Zealand. The
supplies authentication protocols are often referred to as Dynamic Security. The core allegations in these proceedings claim misleading or inadequate consumer notifications and permissions
pertaining to the use of Dynamic Security, the installation of firmware updates, or the potential inability of cartridges with clone chips or circuitry to work in HP printers with Dynamic Security.
Plaintiffs base or have based their claims on various legal theories, including but not limited to unfair competition, computer trespass, and similar statutory claims. Among other relief, Plaintiffs
have sought or seek money damages and in certain cases have or may seek injunctive relief against the use or operation of Dynamic Security or relief requiring interoperability. If HP is not
successful in its defense of these cases or investigations, it could be subject to damages, penalties, significant settlement demands, or injunctive relief that may be costly or may disrupt
operations. Certain of these proceedings in the United States, Italy, the Netherlands, Israel, Australia and New Zealand have been resolved, have concluded, or have concluded subject only to
HPa€™s pending appeal. Civil litigation filed by Digital Revolution B.V. (trading as 123Inkt) against HP Nederlands B.V., et al. (Netherlands) in March 2020, including its competition claim,
remains pending. Both parties appealed, and the court of appeal issued a judgment on November 19, 2024, rejecting competition claims against HP and providing that use of Dynamic Security
by HP is not unlawful. In addition, two putative class actions have been filed against HP in federal court in California, in December 2020, April 2022, and one in federal court in Illinois, in
January 2024, arising out of the use of Dynamic Security firmware updates in HP Laserjet printers, in HP Inkjet printers, and in both, respectively. Plaintiffs in these cases seek compensatory
damages, restitution, injunctive relief against alleged unfair and anticompetitive business practices, and other relief. In the April 2022 case, plaintiffs have filed a stipulation on October 30,
2024 to have the case dismissed with prejudice for their individual claims and without prejudice for the class claims. In the December 2020 case, the parties have finalized a settlement
agreement, which plaintiffs submitted to the court on October 31, 2024 along with a motion seeking preliminary approval. The January 2024 case is in its early stages. 100Table of Contents
HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) Autonomy-Related Legal Proceedings. In 2015, four former Hewlett Packard Company subsidiaries that
became subsidiaries of Hewlett Packard Enterprise at the time of the Separation (Autonomy Corporation Limited, Hewlett Packard Vision BV, Autonomy Systems Limited, and Autonomy, Inc.,
hereinafter the 4€ceClaimantsa€) initiated civil proceedings in the U.K. High Court of Justice against two members of Autonomya€™s former management, Michael Lynch and Sushovan
Hussain, for breach of their fiduciary duties in causing Autonomy group companies to engage in improper transactions and accounting practices before and in connection with the 2011
acquisition of Autonomy. Trial concluded in January 2020. In May 2022, the court issued its liability judgment, finding that the Claimants had succeeded on substantially all claims and that
Messrs. Lynch and Hussein engaged in fraud, and dismissing a counterclaim filed by Mr. Lynch. The court deferred the issue of damages to further proceedings, but indicated that damages
awarded may be substantially less than was claimed. In February 2024, the court held a two-week trial on damages, the Claimants sought recovery for $4A billion in losses, and the court took
the issue under advisement. Litigation is unpredictable, and there can be no assurance of a recovery of damages or as to how any award of damages will compare with the amount claimed. The
amount ultimately awarded, if any, would be recorded in the period received. No adjustment has been recorded in the financial statements in relation to this potential award. Pursuant to the
terms of the separation and distribution agreement, HP and Hewlett Packard Enterprise will share equally in any recovery. Nokia Patent Litigation. On October 31, 2023, Nokia filed a complaint
for patent infringement against HP in federal court for the District of Delaware asserting ten patents and filed two companion complaints with the U.S. International Trade Commission
(&€eITCa€) pursuant to Section 337 of the Tariff Act against HP, asserting seven of the ten patents asserted in the federal court case. The complaints allege that HP products that are compliant
with certain video coding technology standards, including Advanced Video Coding (H.264) or High Efficiency Video Coding (H.265) standards, infringe Nokia&€™s patents. In November 2023,
the ITC instituted investigations on Nokiad€™s complaints. On December 11, 2023, HP filed counterclaims against Nokia in the Delaware action, including claims that Nokia violated its
commitments to license standard-essential patents on fair, reasonable, and non-discriminatory (4€ceFRANDA&€) terms, and seeking a court determination of the proper FRAND rate. Nokiad€™s
patent litigation against HP also includes a lawsuit filed in November 2023 against HP and six of its subsidiaries in the European Unified Patent Court (4€ceUPC&€) in Germany, 2 lawsuits filed
in November 2023 but served in January 2024 against HP and its German subsidiary in state court in Munich, Germany, and a lawsuit filed on December 1, 2023, against a subsidiary, HP Brasil
IndAstria e ComA©rcio de Equipamentos EletrA nicos Ltda. (A4€ceHP Brazila€), in the state court in Rio de Janeiro in Brazil. In Brazil, Nokia alleged that HPA€™ s products contain a€ceskip
modea€ technology compatible with H.264 video standards that infringes one of Nokiad€™s Brazilian patents. On December 4, 2023, before HP had received service of the lawsuit, the court
granted Nokia an ex parte preliminary injunction against HP Brazila€™s commercialization of such products in Brazil. HP appealed the injunction and asked the appellate court to suspend its
enforcement. On August 14, 2024, the Brazilian appellate court denied HPa€™ s interlocutory appeal of the preliminary injunction, leaving it unchanged because HP allegedly faces no
immediate harm. On January 31, 2024, HP Brazil filed its defense and separately filed a nullity action to invalidate the patent. From July 24-31, 2024, the ITC held the hearing in the first
investigation. In the second ITC investigation, the hearing was held September 9-13, 2024. In October, Nokia and HP reached agreement to resolve all patent litigation between the parties, and
all pending proceedings are in the process of being dismissed. R2 Semiconductor Patent Litigation. In November 2022, R2 Semiconductor, Inc. (a€0eR2&€) filed a lawsuit in the Dusseldorf
Regional Court in Germany against Intel Deutschland GmbH, HP Deutschland GmbH and certain other Intel customers. R2 asserts one European patent is infringed by HP&€™ s products that
contain certain Intel processors. R2 seeks an injunction prohibiting the sale of the alleged infringing products. Intel has agreed to defend and indemnify HP and its affiliates against certain
losses incurred by HP in connection with the alleged infringement. The Dusseldorf Regional Court conducted a trial on December 7, 2023 and issued an adverse judgment on February 7, 2024.
The Courta€™s judgment imposes an injunction prohibiting sales of the accused products in Germany, an order to stop all other infringing actions, and an order to issue a communication to
commercial customers recalling the relevant products sold since March 5, 2020, which could take effect upon notice of R2a€™ s payment of the required sureties and remain in place unless
stayed or overturned on appeal or the parties reach an agreement. On February 8, 2024, HP filed an appeal and request for a stay of the judgment pending appeal. On April 3, 2024, R2 filed a
lawsuit in France in the first instance court in Paris (Tribunal judiciare de Paris) against Intel Corporation, Intel Corporation SAS, Intel Deutschland GmbH, HP France SAS and certain other
Intel customers. R2 asserts the same European patent is infringed. In August 2024, Intel finalized agreements with R2 and related parties resolving all litigation. All pending litigation against
HP has been dismissed. 101Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) Litigation with Access Advance Patent Pool regarding
video codecs. Access Advance LLC (a€ceAccess Advanceéa€) is an independent licensing administrator formed to license allegedly essential patents for standards-based video codecs, which it
licenses through various licensing pools. In late 2023, three members of Access Advancea€™s HEVC Advance patent pool, Dolby, Mitsubishi Electric (4€ceMitsubishia€) and Konikijke Philips
N.V. (&€cePhilipsa€), each filed patent infringement lawsuits against HP and various affiliates in Germany and Europe. The complaints alleged that HP products that are compliant with the High
Efficiency Video Coding (H.265) standard infringe the pool members' respective patents, sought an injunction, and alleged that HP has failed to act as a willing licensee of HEVC essential
patents based on HP's negotiations with Access Advance. In July 2024, HP filed a countersuit against Access Advance, Mitsubishi, Philips, and Dolby in Massachusetts state court alleging that
they breached their obligations to license their patents on reasonable and nondiscriminatory terms and asked the court to order the defendants to offer a license to their patents on such terms.
In October 2024, Access Advance and HP reached agreement to resolve all pending litigation, which is in the process of being dismissed. An immaterial issue with Access Advance will be
decided by a third party. EnvironmentalHP is, and may become a party to, proceedings brought by U.S., state, or other governmental entities or private third parties under federal, state, local,
or foreign environmental laws, including the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (4€ceCERCLA&€), known as a€ceSuperfund,a€ or state laws similar to
CERCLA. HP is also conducting environmental investigations or remediation at several current or former operating sites and former disposal sites pursuant to administrative orders or consent
agreements with environmental agencies.NoteA 15: Guarantees,A Indemnifications and WarrantiesGuaranteesA In the ordinary course of business, HP may issue performance guarantees to
certain of its clients, customers and other parties pursuant to which HP has guaranteed the performance obligations of third parties. Some of those guarantees may be backed by standby letters
of credit or surety bonds. In general, HP would be obligated to perform over the term of the guarantee in the event a specified triggering event occurs as defined by the guarantee. HP believes
the likelihood of having to perform under a material guarantee is remote.Cross-Indemnifications with Hewlett Packard EnterpriseOn November 1, 2015, Hewlett-Packard Company completed
the separation of Hewlett Packard Enterprise, Hewlett-Packard Companya€™s former enterprise technology infrastructure, software, services and financing businesses. The separation and
distribution agreement provides for cross-indemnities between HP and Hewlett Packard Enterprise for liabilities allocated to the respective party pursuant to the terms of such agreement. For



information on cross-indemnifications with Hewlett Packard Enterprise for litigation matters, see NoteA 14, 4€ceLitigation and Contingenciesa€.IndemnificationsA In the ordinary course of
business, HP enters into contractual arrangements under which HP may agree to indemnify a third-party to such arrangement from any losses incurred relating to the services they perform on
behalf of HP or for losses arising from certain events as defined within the particular contract, which may include, for example, litigation or claims relating to past performance. HP also
provides indemnifications to certain vendors and customers against claims of intellectual property infringement made by third parties arising from the vendorsa€™ and customersa€™ use of
HPa€™s software products and services and certain other matters. Some indemnifications may not be subject to maximum loss clauses. Historically, payments made related to these
indemnifications have been immaterial. HP records tax indemnification receivables from various third parties for certain tax liabilities that HP is jointly and severally liable for, but for which it is
indemnified by those same third parties under existing legal agreements. HP records a tax indemnification payable to various third parties under these agreements when management believes
that it is both probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated. The actual amount that the third parties pay or may be obligated to pay HP could vary
depending on the outcome of certain unresolved tax matters, which may not be resolved for several years.WarrantiesHP accrues the estimated cost of product warranties at the time it
recognizes revenue. HP engages in extensive product quality programs and processes, including actively monitoring and evaluating the quality of its component suppliers; however, contractual
warranty terms, repair costs, product call rates, average cost per call, current period product shipments and ongoing product failure rates, as well as specific product class failures outside of
HP&€™s baseline experience, affect the estimated warranty obligation.102Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)HP&€™s
aggregate product warranty liabilities and changes were as follows: A For the fiscal years ended OctoberA 31A 20242023A InA millionsBalance at beginning of year$706A $876A Accruals for
warranties issued721A 689A Adjustments related to pre-existing warranties (including changes in estimates)30A 17A Settlements made (in cash or in kind)(907)(876)Balance at end of
year$550A $706A NoteA 16: CommitmentsUnconditional Purchase ObligationsAs of October 31, 2024, HP had unconditional purchase obligations of $1.4 billion. These unconditional purchase
obligations include agreements to purchase goods or services that are enforceable and legally binding on HP and that specify all significant terms, including fixed or minimum quantities to be
purchased, fixed, minimum or variable price and volume provisions and the approximate timing of the transaction. These unconditional purchase obligations are primarily related to inventory
and service support. Unconditional purchase obligations exclude agreements that are cancellable without penalty. A As of October 31, 2024, unconditional purchase obligations were as
follows:FiscalA yearInA millions2025$896A 2026188A 2027147A 202895A 202938A Thereafter2A Total$1,366A Note 17: Leases As a lessee, HP determines, at lease inception, whether or not
an arrangement contains a lease. A significant portion of the operating lease portfolio includes real estate leases. Additionally, HP has identified embedded operating leases within certain
outsourced supply chain contracts. Leasing arrangements have a remaining lease term ranging from 2 to approximately 11 years with varying renewal and termination options. Substantially all
of HPa€™ s leases are considered operating leases. Finance leases, short-term leases and sub-lease income were not material as ofA October 31, 2024 and 2023A or for the fiscal years

endedA October 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.Lease terms include options to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain that HP will exercise such options. HP generally
considers the economic life of the ROU assets to be comparable to the useful life of similar owned assets. HPa€™s leases generally do not provide a residual guarantee. Operating leases are
included in Other non-current assets, Other current liabilities and Other non-current liabilities. Finance leases are included in Property, plant and equipment, net, Notes payable and short-term
borrowings and Long-term debt in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.As most of the leases do not provide an implicit interest rate, HP uses the incremental borrowing rate based on the
information available at the commencement date of a lease in determining the present value of lease payments. The incremental borrowing rate is determined based on the rate of interest that
HP would have to pay to borrow an amount equal to the lease payments on a collateralized basis over a similar term. HP uses the unsecured borrowing rate and risk-adjusts that rate to
approximate a collateralized rate.103Table of ContentsHPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)HP has elected the practical expedient to combine
lease and non-lease components as a single lease element for its real estate leases and certain outsourced warehousing contracts in calculating the ROU assets and lease liabilities. Where HP
chooses not to combine the lease and non-lease components, HP allocates contract consideration to the lease and non-lease components based on relative standalone prices. HP reviews the
impairment of the ROU assets consistent with the approach applied for other long-lived assets.The components of lease expense are as follows:For the fiscal years ended October

31A 20242023A In millionsOperating lease cost$230A $234A Variable cost106A 102A Total lease expense$336A $336A All lease expenses, including variable lease costs, are primarily included
in Cost of net revenue and Selling, general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings based on the use of the facilities.Variable lease expense relates primarily to
leased real estate utilized for office space and outsourced warehousing. These costs primarily include adjustments for inflation, payments dependent on a rate or index or usage of asset and
common area maintenance charges. These costs are not included in the lease liability and are recognized in the period in which they are incurred.The following table presents supplemental
information relating to the cash flows arising from lease transactions. Cash payments made from variable lease costs and short-term leases are not included in the measurement of operating
lease liabilities, and, as such, are excluded from the amounts below: For the fiscal years ended October 31A 20242023A In millionsCash paid for amount included in the measurement of lease
liabilities$233A $231A Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange of lease liabilities(1)$41 1A $312A (1) Includes the impact of new leases as well as remeasurements and modifications to existing
leases.Weighted-average information associated with the measurement of our remaining operating lease liabilities is as follows:As of October 3120242023Weighted-average remaining lease
term in years4.14.5Weighted-average discount rate6.5A %6.1A %The following maturity analysis presents expected undiscounted cash outflows for operating leases on an annual basis for the
next five years:104Table of ContentsHPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)A Fiscal yearIn

millions2025$513A 2026324A 2027208A 2028110A 202964A Thereafter142A Total lease payments1,361A Less: Imputed interest131A A A A A A Total lease liabilities$1,230A There were no
material operating leases that HP had entered into and that were yet to commence as of October 31, 2024.As a lessor, HP records revenue under sales-type leases at the commencement of the
lease. Revenue recognized from sales-type leases constituted less than one percent of product net revenue for fiscal years 2024, 2023 and 2022 respectively. As of October 31, 2024 and 2023,
the net investment in leases balance were $705A million and $527A million, respectively.105Table of ContentsITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and
Financial Disclosure.None.ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedures.Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and ProceduresUnder the supervision and with the participation of our management, including
our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act as of the end of the period covered by this report (the a&€ceEvaluation Datea€). Based on this evaluation, our principal executive officer
and principal financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of the Evaluation Date due to the unremediated material weakness in our internal
control over financial reporting described below.See Managementa€™s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and the Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
on our internal control over financial reporting in Item 8, which are incorporated herein by reference.Material WeaknessAs previously reported in the Companya€™s Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2023, we identified a material weakness in internal control over financial reporting. The material weakness resulted from undue reliance on information
generated from certain software solutions affecting net revenue without effectively designed information technology (4€eIT4€) general controls specifically around user access and change
management. As of October 31, 2024, the Company has concluded that the previously identified material weakness was not remediated and that IT general control deficiencies exist in the areas
of user access, change management and job schedule monitoring IT operations for certain applications affecting various financial statement line items as well as net revenue. As a result of the
material weakness, the application controls and IT dependent manual controls that rely upon information from affected IT applications were also deemed ineffective.This material weakness did
not result in any material misstatement of our financial statements. While this material weakness did not result in a material misstatement of our financial statements, there is a reasonable
possibility that it could have resulted in a material misstatement in the Company's annual or interim consolidated financial statements that would not be detected. Accordingly, we determined
that it constituted a material weakness.With respect to the material weakness above, management, under the oversight of the Audit Committee, is in the process of designing appropriate IT
general controls specific to the impacted software solutions. While we have taken steps to implement our remediation plan, the material weakness will not be considered remediated until the
enhanced controls operate for a sufficient period of time and management has concluded, through testing, that the related controls are effective. The Company will monitor the effectiveness of
its remediation plan and refine its remediation plan as appropriate.Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting Other than the material weakness described above, there have been no
change in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or
is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.ITEM 9B. Other Information.Our directors and officers (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 16a-1(f)) may from
time to time enter into plans or other arrangements for the purchase or sale of our shares that are intended to satisfy the affirmative defense conditions of Rule 10b5&€“1(c) or may represent a
non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement under the Exchange Act. During the three months ended October 31, 2024, no such plans or other arrangements were adopted or terminated.ITEM 9C.
Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections.Not Applicable.106Table of ContentsPART IIIITEM 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.The names
of the executive officers of HP and their ages, titles and biographies as of the date hereof are incorporated by reference from PartA I, ItemA 1, above.The following information is included in
HPA€™s Proxy Statement related to its 2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed within 120A days after HPA€™s fiscal year end of OctoberA 31, 2024 (the 4€ceProxy Statementa€) and is
incorporated herein by reference:a€¢Information regarding directors of HP who are standing for reelection and any persons nominated to become directors of HP is set forth under
a€ceCorporate Governance and Board of Directorsa€”Board Proposal No.A 1 Election of Directors.a€a€¢Information regarding HPA€™ s Audit Committee and designated a€ceaudit committee
financial expertsa€ is set forth under &€ceCorporate Governance and Board of Directorsa€”Board Proposal No.A 1 Election of Directorsa€”How We Are Organizeda€”Audit Committee.4€4€
¢Information on HP&€™ s code of business conduct and ethics for directors, officers and employees, also known as a€celntegrity at HPa€, is set forth in the section entitled &€ceCode of
Conducta€ under &€ceCorporate Governance and Board of Directorsa€”Board Proposal No. 1 Election of Directorsa€ and information on HPa€™s Corporate Governance Guidelines is set forth in
the sections entitled &€ceHow We Are Selecteda€ and &€ceDirector Independencea€ under a€ceCorporate Governance and Board of Directorsa€”Board Proposal No. 1 Election of
Directors.a€Insider Trading Policies and ProceduresThe Company has insider trading policies and procedures that govern the purchase, sale and other dispositions of its securities by directors,
officers, employees and contractors, as well as by the Company itself. We believe these policies and procedures are reasonably designed to promote compliance with insider trading laws, rules
and regulations and applicable listing standards. A copy of our Insider Trading Policy is filed with this Annual Report on Form 10-K as Exhibit 19.ITEM 11. Executive Compensation.The
following information is included in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference:a€¢Information regarding HPa€™s compensation of its named executive officers is set forth
under 4€eExecutive Compensation.a€a€¢Information regarding HP4€™s compensation of its directors is set forth under &€ceCorporate Governance and Board of Directorsa€”Board Proposal
No. 1 Election of Directorsa€”How We Are Compensated.a€a€¢The report of HPa€™s HR and Compensation Committee is set forth under &€ceExecutive Compensationa€”Board Proposal No. 3
Advisory Vote to Approve Executive Compensationd€”HR and Compensation Committee Report on Executive Compensation.4&€ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management and Related Stockholder Matters.The following information is included in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference:a€¢Information regarding security
ownership of certain beneficial owners, directors and executive officers is set forth under 4€eOwnership of Our Stockd€”Common Stock Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management.a€a€¢Information regarding HPa€™ s equity compensation plans, including both stockholder approved plans and non-stockholder approved plans, is set forth in the section entitled
4€ceEquity Compensation Plan Information.&€ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.The following information is included in the Proxy Statement
and is incorporated herein by reference:a€¢Information regarding transactions with related persons is set forth under a&€ceCorporate Governance and Board of Directorsa€”Board Proposal No.
1 Election of Directorsa€”Related-Person Transactions Policies and Procedures.a4€4€¢Information regarding director independence is set forth in the section entitled &€ceDirector
Independencea€ under &€ceCorporate Governance and Board of Directorsa€”Board Proposal No. 1 Election of Directors.4€107Table of ContentsITEM 14. Principal Accountant Fees and
Services.Information regarding principal accounting fees and services is set forth under &€ceAudit Mattersa€”Board Proposal No. 2 Ratification of Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firma€”Principal Accountant Fees and Servicesa€ in the Proxy Statement, which information is incorporated herein by reference.108Table of ContentsPART IVITEM 15. Exhibits and Financial
Statement Schedules.(a)The following documents are filed as part of this report:1.All Financial Statements:The following financial statements are filed as part of this report under

ItemA 84€”a€ceFinancial Statements and Supplementary Data.A€Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm50Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting52Consolidated Statements of Earnings53Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income54Consolidated Balance Sheets55Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows56Consolidated
Statements of Stockholders' Deficit57Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements582.Financial Statement Schedules:All schedules are omitted as the required information is not applicable or
the information is presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements and notes thereto in ItemA 8 above.3.Exhibits:109Table of Contents HPA INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESEXHIBIT
INDEXExhibitNumberA Incorporated by ReferenceExhibit DescriptionFormFile No.Exhibit(s)Filing Date2(a)Separation and Distribution Agreement, dated as of OctoberA 31, 2015, by and
among Hewlett-Packard Company, Hewlett Packard Enterprise Company and the Other Parties Thereto.**8-K001-044232.1November 5, 20153(a)Registranta€™s Restated Certificate of
Incorporation.8-K001-044233.2April 25, 20243 (b)Registranta€ ™s Amended and Restated Bylaws.8-K001-044233.1June 17, 20243(c)Certificate of Designations of Series A Junior Participating
Redeemable Preferred Stock of HP Inc. (included in Exhibit 3(a)).3(d)Certificate of Designations of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock of HP Inc. (included in Exhibit
3(a)).4(a)Indenture, dated June 1, 2000, between the Registrant and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, National Association, as successor in interest to J.P. Morgan Trust Company,
National Association (formerly known as Chase Manhattan Bank and Trust Company, National Association), as Trustee.S-3333-1343274.9June 7, 20064(b)Form of Registranta€™s 6.000%
Global Note due SeptemberA 15, 2041 and form of related Officersa€™ Certificate.8-K001-044234.5 and 4.6September 19, 20114(c)Specimen certificate for the Registranta€™s common
stock.8-A/A001-044234.1June 23, 20064(d)Description of HP Inc.a€™s securities.10-K001-044234(h)December 18, 20234 (e)Indenture, dated June 17, 2020, between HP Inc. and The Bank of
New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee.8-K001-044234.1June 17, 20204(f)Form of 2.200% notes due 2025 and related Officersa€™ Certificate.8-K001-044234.2 and 4.5June 17,
20204 (g)Form of 3.000% notes due 2027 and related Officersa€™ Certificate.8-K001-044234.3 and 4.5June 17, 20204(h)Form of 3.400% notes due 2030 and related Officersa€™ Certificate.8-
K001-044234.4 and 4.5June 17, 20204(i)First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 16, 2021, between the Registrant and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee.8-
K001-044234.2June 21, 20214(j)Form of 1.450% notes due 2026 and 2.650% notes due 2031 (included in Exhibit 4(j)).4(k)Form of 4.000% notes due 2029 and related Officersa€™ Certificate.8-
K001-044234.2 and 4.4March 31, 20224(1)Form of 4.200% notes due 2032 and related Officersa€™ Certificate.8-K001-044234.3 and 4.4March 31, 20224(m)Form of 4.750% notes due 2028 and
related Officersa€™ Certificate.8-K001-044234.2 and 4.4June 21, 20224(n)Form of 5.500% notes due 2033 and related Officersa€™ Certificate.8-K001-044234.3 and 4.4June 21,
20224(o)Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 1, 2022, between HP Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee.8-K001-044234.2September 7,
20224(p)Form of 4.750% notes due 2029 (included in Exhibit 4(0)).10(a)Registranta€™s Excess Benefit Retirement Plan, amended and restated as of JanuaryA 1, 2006.¥8-K001-
0442310.2September 21, 2006110Table of ContentsExhibitNumberA Incorporated by ReferenceExhibit DescriptionFormFile No.Exhibit(s)Filing Date10(b)Hewlett-Packard Company Cash
Account Restoration Plan, amended and restated as of JanuaryA 1, 2005.*¥8-K001-0442399.3November 23, 200510(c)First Amendment to the Hewlett-Packard Company Excess Benefit
Retirement Plan.*10-Q001-0442310(b)(b)(b)March 10, 200910(d)Second Amended and Restated Hewlett-Packard Company 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended effective FebruaryA 28,
2013.%8-K001-0442310.2March 21, 201310(e)Form of Grant Agreement for grants of non-qualified stock options.*A 10-KA 001-04423A 10(g)(g)(g)A December 16, 201510(f)Form of Stock
Notification and Award Agreement for awards of restricted stock units.*10-Q001-0442310(r)(r)March 3, 201610(g)Registranta€™s 2005 Executive Deferred Compensation Plan, amended and
restated effective NovemberA 1, 2017.*¥A 10-K/A001-04423A 10(n)(n)A December 15, 201710(h)Registranta€™s Severance and Long-Term Incentive Change in Control Plan for Executive
Officers, amended and restated effective February 28, 2020.%A 10-QA 001-04423A 10(p)(p)A March 5, 202010(i)2017 Amendment to the Hewlett-Packard Company Cash Account Restoration



Plan.*10-Q001-0442310(w)(w)March 2, 201710(j)Second Amendment to the Hewlett-Packard Company Excess Benefit Retirement Plan.*10-Q001-0442310(x)(x)March 2, 201710(k)Second
Amended and Restated HP Inc. 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and restated effective January 23, 2017.¥10-Q001-0442310(y)(y)March 2, 201710(1)Form of Grant Agreement for grants
of restricted stock units (for use from November 1, 2016).*10-Q001-0442310(a)(a)(a)March 2, 201710(m)Second Amended and Restated HP Inc. 2004 Stock Incentive Plan (as amended effective
January 29, 2018).*10-Q001-0442310(b)(b)(b)March 1, 201810(n)Form of Grant Agreement for grants of restricted stock units (for use from November 1, 2017).¥10-Q001-0442310(c)(c)(c)March
1, 201810(o)Form of Grant Agreement for grants of restricted stock units for directors (for use from November 1, 2017).*¥10-Q001-0442310(e)(e)(e)March 1, 201810(p)Form of Grant Agreement
for grants of stock options for directors (for use from November 1, 2017).*¥10-Q001-0442310(f)(f)(f)March 1, 201810(q)Form of Grant Agreement for grants of restricted stock units (for use from
November 1, 2018).*¥10-K001-0442310(g)(g)(g)December 13, 201810(r)A Form of Grant Agreement for grants of restricted stock units for directors (for use from November 1, 2018).*¥10-Q001-
0442310(k)(k)(k)March 5, 201910(s)A Form of Grant Agreement for grants of non-qualified stock options.*10-K001-0442310(m)(m)(m)December 12, 201910(t)A Form of Retention Grant
Agreement for grants of non-qualified stock options.*10-K001-0442310(n)(n)(n)December 12, 201910(u)A Form of Grant Agreement for grants of restricted stock units for directors (for use from
January 15, 2020).%10-QA 001-04423A 10(n)(n)(n)A March 5, 202010(v)A Amendment Number One to Second Amended and Restated HP Inc. 2004 Stock Incentive Plan (as amended effective
February 28, 2020).¥10-Q001-0442310(r)(r)(r)June 5, 202010(w)A Amendment Number One to Registranta€™s 2005 Executive Deferred Compensation Plan (as amended effective February 28,
2020).%10-Q001-0442310(s)(s)(s)June 5, 2020111Table of ContentsExhibitNumberA Incorporated by ReferenceExhibit DescriptionFormFile No.Exhibit(s)Filing Date10(x)HP Inc. 2021 Employee
Stock Purchase Plan.*10-Q001-0442310(t)(t)(t)June 5, 202010(y)Amendment Number Two to Second Amended and Restated HP Inc. 2004 Stock Incentive Plan (as amended effective September
21, 2020.%10-K001-0442310(x)(x)(x)December 10, 202010(z)Amendment Number Two to Registrant's 2005 Executive Deferred Compensation Plan (as amended effective September 21,
2020).%10-K001-0442310(y)(y)(y)December 10, 202010(a)(a)Form of Grant Agreement for grants of restricted stock units (for use from November 17, 2020).*10-Q001-0442310(x)(x)(x)March 5,
202110(b)(b)Form of Retention Grant Agreement for grants of restricted stock units (for use from November 17, 2020).*10-Q001-0442310(y)(y)(y)March 5, 202110(c)(c)Form of Grant
Agreement for grants of performance-contingent non-qualified stock options.*10-Q001-0442310(c)(c)(c)(c)March 5, 202110(d)(d)Form of Grant Agreement for grants of restricted stock units for
directors.*10-Q001-0442310(d)(d)(d)(d)March 5, 202110(e)(e)First Amendment to the Registranta€™s Severance and Long-Term Incentive Change in Control Plan for Executive Officers, as
amended and restated effective February 28, 2020 (as amended effective December 7, 2020)*10-Q001-0442310(e)(e)(e)(e)March 5, 202110(f)(f)Amendment Number Three to Registranta€™s
2005 Executive Deferred Compensation Plan (as amended effective November 17, 2020).*10-Q001-0442310(f)(f)(f)(f)March 5, 202110(g)(g)Amendment Number Four to Registranta€™s 2005
Executive Deferred Compensation Plan (as amended effective as of April 1, 2021 and December 31, 2021).*10-Q001-0442310()(j)(j)September 3, 202110(h)(h)Form of Grant Agreement for
grants of restricted stock units (for use from November 16, 2021).%10-Q001-0442310()(j)(j)March 7, 202210(i)(i)Form of Retention Grant Agreement for grants of restricted stock units (for use
from November 16, 2021).*10-Q001-0442310(k)(k)(k)March 7, 202210(j)(j)Form of Grant Agreement for grants of non-qualified stock options.*10-Q001-0442310(1)(1)(1)March 7, 202210(k)
(k)Form of Grant Agreement for grants of performance-contingent non-qualified stock options.*10-Q001-0442310(0)(0)(0)March 7, 202210(1)(1)Third Amended and Restated HP Inc. 2004 Stock
Incentive Plan.*8-K001-0442310.1April 22, 202210(m)(m)Plantronics, Inc. 2003 Stock Plan, as amended and restated.*S-8333-2671514.4August 29, 202210(n)(n)Amendment Number One to the
Plantronics, Inc. 2003 Stock Plan, as amended and restated.*S-8333-2671514.5August 29, 202210(0)(0)Amendment Number Five to Registranta€™s 2005 Executive Deferred Compensation
Plan.*10-K001-0442310(t)(t)(t)December 6, 202210(p)(p)Form of Grant Agreement for grants of restricted stock units (for use from November 1, 2022).¥10-Q001-0442310(u)(u)(u)March 1,
202310(q)(g)Form of Retention Grant Agreement for grants of restricted stock units (for use from November 1, 2022).*¥10-Q001-0442310(v)(v)(v)March 1, 202310(r)(r)Form of Grant Agreement
for grants of non-qualified stock options (for use from November 1, 2022).*10-Q001-0442310(w)(w)(w)March 1, 202310(s)(s)Form of Grant Agreement for grants of performance-contingent non-
qualified stock options (for use from November 1, 2022).*10-Q001-0442310(z)(z)(z)March 1, 2023112Table of ContentsExhibitNumberA Incorporated by ReferenceExhibit DescriptionFormFile
No.Exhibit(s)Filing Date10(t)(t)Second Amendment to Registranta€™s Severance and Long-Term Incentive Change in Control Plan for Executive Officers, as amended and restated effective
February 28, 2020, for Performance-Contingent Stock Options generally granted on or after December 7, 2022.¥10-Q001-0442310(a)(a)(a)(a)March 1, 202310(u)(u)Form of Grant Agreement for
grants of restricted stock units (for Plantronics, Inc. plan).*10-Q001-0442310(b)(b)(b)(b)March 1, 202310(v)(v)Form of Retention Grant Agreement for grants of restricted stock units (for
Plantronics, Inc. plan).*10-Q001-0442310(c)(c)(c)(c)March 1, 202310(w)(w)2023 Amendment to the HP Inc. Cash Account Restoration Plan.*10-Q001-0442310(d)(d)(d)(d)May 31, 202310(x)
(x)Third Amendment to the HP Inc. Excess Benefit Plan.*10-Q001-0442310(e)(e)(e)(e)May 31, 202310(y)(y)Form of Grant Agreement for grants of restricted stock units (for use from November
1, 2023).¥10-Q001-0442310(f)(f)(f)(f)February 28, 202410(z)(z)Form of Retention Grant Agreement for grants of restricted stock units (for use from November 1, 2023).* 10-Q001-0442310(g)(g)
(g)(g)February 28, 202410(a)(a)(a)Form of Grant Agreement for grants of performance-adjusted restricted stock units (for use from November 1, 2023).*10-Q001-0442310(j)(j)(j)(j)February 28,
202410(b)(b)(b)Form of Grant Agreement for grants of restricted stock units (for Plantronics, Inc. plan for use from December 1, 2023).*10-Q001-0442310(k)(k)(k)(k)February 28, 202410(c)(c)
(c)Form of Retention Grant Agreement for grants of restricted stock units (for Plantronics, Inc. plan for use from December 1, 2023).*10-Q001-0442310(1)(1)(1)(1)February 28, 202410(d)(d)
(d)Registranta€™s Fourth Amended and Restated 2004 Stock Incentive Plan.*8-K001-0442310.1April 25, 202410(e)(e)(e)Five-Year Credit Agreement dated August 1, 2024, by and among the
Registrant, the lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent.8-K001-0442310.1August 6, 202410(f)(f)(f)Amended Form of Grant Agreement for grants of
performance-adjusted restricted stock units (for use from November 16, 2021).%10-Q001-0442310(a)August 29, 202410(g)(g)(g)Amended Form of Grant Agreement for grants of performance-
adjusted restricted stock units (for use from November 1, 2022).*10-Q001-442310(b)August 29, 202410(h)(h)(h)Form of HP Agreement Regarding Confidential Information and Proprietary
Developments*a€ 19Insider Trading Policy.a€ 21Subsidiaries of the Registrant as of October 31, 2024.4€ 23Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.a€ 24Power of Attorney
(included on the signature page)31.1Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to RuleA 13a-14(a) and RuleA 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as

amended.a€ 31.2A Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to RuleA 13a-14(a) and RuleA 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.4€ A A A A 32A Certification of
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to SectionA 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.4€ 4€ A A A A 113Table of
ContentsExhibitNumberA Incorporated by ReferenceExhibit DescriptionFormFile No.Exhibit(s)Filing Date97HP Inc. Mandatory Covered Compensation Recovery Policy.10-K001-
0442397December 18, 2023101.INSA XBRL Instance Document - the 1nstance document does not appear in the Interactive Data Flle because its XBRL tags are embedded w1th1n the Inline

Document a€EAAAAAAAA10L. PREA Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document a€EAAAAAAAA 104The cover page from the Companya€™s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2024, formatted in Inline XBRL (included within the Exhibit 101 attachments).&€ *A A A A Indicates management contract or compensatory plan,

contract or arrangement.**A A A A Certain schedules and exhibits to this agreement have been omitted pursuant to ItemA 601(a)(5) of Registration S-K. A copy of any omitted schedule and/or
exhibit will be furnished supplementally to the SEC upon request.4€ A A A A Filed herewith.4€ € A A A A Furnished herewith.The registrant agrees to furnish to the Commission supplementally
upon request a copy of (1)A any instrument with respect to long-term debt not filed herewith as to which the total amount of securities authorized thereunder does not exceed 10% of the total
assets of the registrant and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis and (2)A any omitted schedules to any material agreements set forth above. 114Table of ContentsITEM 16. Form 10-K
SummaryNone.115Table of ContentsSIGNATURESPursuant to the requirements of SectionA 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.Date: December 12, 2024HPA INC.By:/s/ KAREN L. PARKHILLA Karen L. ParkhillChief Financial Officer116Table of
ContentsPOWER OF ATTORNEYKNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Karen L. Parkhill, Julie Jacobs and Rick
Hansen, or any of them, his or her attorneys-in-fact, for such person in any and all capacities, to sign any amendments to this report and to file the same, with exhibits thereto, and other
documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming all that either of said attorneys-in-fact, or substitute or substitutes, may do or
cause to be done by virtue hereof.Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant
and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.117Table of ContentsSignatureTitle(s)A Date/s/ ENRIQUE LORESPresident and Chief Executive Officer and Director(Principal Executive
Officer)A December 12, 2024Enrique Lores/s/ KAREN L. PARKHILLChief Financial Officer(Principal Financial Officer)A December 12, 2024Karen L. Parkhill/s/ STEPHANIE LIEBMANGIlobal
Controller(Principal Accounting Officer)A December 12, 2024Stephanie Liebman/s/ AIDA ALVAREZDirectorDecember 12, 2024Aida Alvarez/s/ ROBERT R. BENNETTDirectorA December 12,
2024Robert R. Bennett/s/ CHARLES V. BERGHDirectorA December 12, 2024Charles V. Bergh/s/ BRUCE BROUSSARDDirectorDecember 12, 2024Bruce Broussard/s/ STACY BROWN-
PHILPOTDirectorDecember 12, 2024Stacy Brown-Philpot/s/ STEPHANIE BURNSDirectorDecember 12, 2024Stephanie Burns/s/ MARY ANNE CITRINODirectorDecember 12, 2024Mary Anne
Citrino/s/ RICHARD L. CLEMMERDirectorDecember 12, 2024Richard L. Clemmer/s/ MA. FATIMA DE VERA FRANCISCODirectorDecember 12, 2024Ma. Fatima de Vera Francisco/s/ DAVID
MELINEDirectorDecember 12, 2024David Meline/s/ JUDITH MISCIKDirectorDecember 12, 2024]Judith Miscik/s/ KIM K.W. RUCKERDirectorDecember 12, 2024Kim K.W.
Ruckerl118DocumentExhibit 10(h)(h)(h)HP Agreement Regarding Confidential Information and Proprietary Developments11. Consideration and Relationship to Employment.A In return for the
agreement by HP Inc. or one of its subsidiaries, successors, assigns, or affiliates (including each of their successors and assigns) (referred to collectively as, "HP" or the é€0eCompanyé€)A that I
will be provided certain confidential and proprietary information, training, and/or customer contacts to assist me in my employment duties, and in consideration for my eligibility for a grant of
performance-based equity, stock options, restricted stock units and/or other equity (4€ceAwardsa€) under the Second Amended and Restated HP Inc. 2004 Stock Incentive Plan (the
a€cePlana€), I knowingly agree to restrictions provided for below that will apply during and after my employment by HP.A T understand, however, that nothing relating to this Agreement will be
interpreted as a contract or commitment whereby HP is deemed to promise continuing employment for a specified duration.A My acceptance of this Agreement may be indicated either by a
manual signature or by my completion of a computer-based process that duly confirms my agreement to such terms. 2. Confidential Information.A This Agreement concerns confidential
business and technical information, and know-how not generally known to the public which is acquired or produced by me in connection with my employment by HP (hereinafter "Confidential
Information") as well as trade secrets acquired or produced by me in connection with my employment by HP.A Confidential Information may include, without limitation, information on HP
organizations, staffing, finance, structure, information of employee performance, compensation of others that is entrusted to me in confidence in the course and scope of my employment duties,
research and development, manufacturing and marketing, files, keys, certificates, passwords and other computer information, as well as information that HP receives from others under an
obligation of confidentiality. A I agree to abide by the HP Confidential Information Policy and specifically agree that with regard to HP Confidential Information and trade secrets:(a) to use such
information only in the performance of HP duties;(b) to hold such information in confidence and trust; and(c) to use all reasonable precautions to assure that such information is not disclosed to
unauthorized persons or used in an unauthorized manner, both during and after my employment with HP.I further agree that any organizational information or staffing information learned by
me in connection with my employment by HP is the Confidential Information of HP, and I 1 This Form of HP Agreement Regarding Confidential Information and Proprietary Developments is
revised to comply with local law, as applicable. agree that I will not share such information with any recruiters or any other employers, either during or subsequent to my employment with HP;
further, I agree that I will not use or permit use of such as a means to recruit or solicit other HP employees away from HP (either for myself or for others).The nondisclosure provisions of this
Agreement are intended to maintain the confidentiality of the Companya€™s trade secrets and to prevent the use of Company Confidential Information and property to assist a competitor.A
Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to prohibit any use or disclosure of information that is protected by law, to prohibit a disclosure compelled by law, to prohibit lawful testimony, to
interfere with law enforcement by a duly authorized law enforcement agency, or to prohibit the reporting of an illegal act to any duly authorized law enforcement agency or to require the prior
approval of HP before making such a report.A A I acknowledge notice that under the 2016 Defend Trade Secrets Act (DTSA) no individual will be held criminally or civilly liable under Federal
or State trade secret law for the disclosure of a trade secret that is (i) made in confidence to a Federal, State, or local government official, either directly or indirectly, or to an attorney; and
made solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected violation of law, or (ii) made in a complaint or other document filed in a lawsuit or other proceeding, if such filing is made
under seal so that it is not made public. And, an individual who pursues a lawsuit for retaliation by an employer for reporting a suspected violation of the law may disclose the trade secret to the
attorney of the individual and use the trade secret information in the court proceeding, if the individual files any document containing the trade secret under seal, and does not disclose the
trade secret, except as permitted by court order. A A A A 3. Proprietary Developments.A This Agreement also concerns inventions and discoveries (whether or not patentable), designs, works of
authorship, mask works, improvements, data, processes, computer programs and software that are conceived or made by me alone or with others while I am employed by HP and that relate to
the research and development or the business of HP, or that result from work performed by me for HP, or that are developed, in whole or in part, using HP's equipment, supplies, facilities or
trade secrets information (hereinafter called "Proprietary Developments"). A Such Proprietary Developments are the sole property of HP, and I hereby assign and transfer all rights in such
Proprietary Developments to HP.A I also agree that any works of authorship that are Proprietary Developments created by me shall be deemed to be "works made for hire."A I further agree for
all such Proprietary Developments:(a) to disclose them promptly to HP;A (b) to sign any assignment document to formally perfect and confirm my assignment of title to HP;(c) to assign any right
of recovery for past damages to HP; and(d) to execute any other documents deemed necessary by HP to obtain, record and perfect patent, copyright, mask works and/or trade secret protection
in all countries, in HP's name and at HP's expense.I understand that HP may assign and/or delegate these rights.A I agree that, if requested, my disclosure, assignment, execution and
cooperation duties will be provided to the entity designated by HP.In compliance with prevailing provisions of relevant state statutes,* this Agreement does not apply to an invention for which
no equipment, supplies, facility or trade secret information of the employer was used and which was developed entirely on the employee's own time, unless (a) the invention relates (i) to the
business of the employerA or (ii) to the employer's actual or demonstrably anticipated research or development, or (b) the invention results from any work performed by the employee for the
employer.4. Respect for Rights of Former Employers.A I agree to honor any valid disclosure or use restrictions on information or intellectual property known to me and received from any
former employers or any other parties prior to my employment by HP.A T agree that without prior written consent of such former employers or other parties, I will not knowingly use any such
information in connection with my HP work or work product, and I will not bring onto the premises of HP any such information in whatever tangible or readable form.5. Work Product.A The
product of all work performed by me during and within the scope of my HP employment including, without limitation, any files, presentations, reports, documents, drawings, computer
programs, devices and models, will be the sole property of HP.A I understand that HP has the sole right to use, sell, license, publish or otherwise disseminate or transfer rights in such work
product.6. HP Property.A I will not remove any HP » property from HP premises without HP's permission. A Upon the end of my employment with HP, I will return all HP property to HP unless
HP&€™s written permission to keep it is obtained.A I understand that accessing HP computer systems to compete or prepare to compete with HP is unauthorized access and may expose me to
civil or criminal penalties.7. Protective Covenants.A I acknowledge that a simple agreement not to disclose or use HP4€™s Confidential Information, trade secrets, or Proprietary Developments
after my employment by HP ends would be inadequate, standing alone, to protect HPa€™ s legitimate business interests because the kind of activities I have agreed to avoid below would, by
their nature, compromise such Confidential Information, trade secrets, and Proprietary Developments as well as the goodwill and customer relationships that HP will pay me to develop for the
company during my employment by HP.A I recognize that activities that violate HPA€™ s rights in this regard, whether or not intentional, are often undetectable by HP until it is too late to
obtain any effective remedy, and that such activities will cause irreparable injury to HP.A To prevent this kind of irreparable harm and to protect HP4€™s trade secrets, I agree that for a period
of twelve months following the end of my employment with HP, I will abide by the following Protective Covenants:(a) No Conflicting Business Activities.A I will not provide services to a
Competitor in any role or position (as an employee, consultant, or otherwise) that would involve Conflicting Business Activities; however, in the event my employment with HP is involuntary



terminated by HP as a direct result of a workforce restructuring program or similar reduction in force, the restriction in this clause (paragraph 7, subpart (a)) will not apply;(b) No Solicitation of
Customers.A I will not (in person or through assistance to others) knowingly participate in soliciting or communicating with any customer of HP in pursuit of a Competing Line of Business if I
either had business-related contact with that customer or received Confidential Information about that customer in the last two years of my employment at HP;A (c) No Solicitation of HP
Employees.A I will not (in person or through assistance to others) knowingly participate in soliciting or communicating with an HP Employee for the purpose of persuading or helping the HP
Employee to end or reduce his or her employment relationship with HP if I either worked with that HP Employee or received Confidential Information about that HP Employee in the last two
years of my employment with HP; and(d) No Solicitation of HP Suppliers.A I will not (in person or through assistance to others) knowingly participate in soliciting or communicating with an HP
Supplier for the purpose of persuading or helping the HP Supplier to end or modify to HPa€™s detriment an existing business relationship with HP if I either worked with that HP Supplier or
received Confidential Information about that HP Supplier in the last two years of my employment with HP.A As used here, &€ceCompetitora€A means an individual, corporation, other business
entity or separately operated business unit of an entity that engages in a Competing Line of Business. 4€ceCompeting Line of Businessa€A means a business that involves a product or service
offered by anyone other than HP that would replace or compete with any product or service offered or to be offered by HP with which I had material involvement while employed by HP (unless
HP and its subsidiaries are no longer engaged in or planning to engage in that line of business). &€ceConflicting Business Activities&€A means job duties or other business-related activities in
the United States or in any other country where the HP business units in which I work do business, or management or supervision of such job duties or business-related activities,A if such job
duties or business-related activities are the same as or similar to the job duties or business-related activities in which I participate or as to which I receive Confidential Information orA trade
secrets in the last two years of my employment with HP.A I acknowledge that given the nature of my role as an executive level employee, my duties involve my having access to Confidential
Information relevant to a national or larger geographic area such that Conflicting Business Activities is appropriately a nationwide or larger restriction. A 4ceHP Employee4€A means an
individual employed by or retained as a consultant to HP or its subsidiaries. &ceHP Suppliera€A means an individual, corporation, other business entity or separately operated business unit of
an entity that regularly provides goods or services to HP or its subsidiaries, including without limitation any OEM, ODM or subcontractor.A A A A 8. Enforcement.A I make these agreements to
avoid any future dispute between myself and HP regarding specific restrictions on my post-employment conduct that will be reasonable, necessary and enforceable to protect HPa€™s
Confidential Information, trade secrets, and Proprietary Developments and other legitimate business interests. A The Protective Covenants and my entitlement to retain the benefits of any Plan
Awards received or vested after execution of this Agreement shall be construed as non-severable and mutually dependent terms and as a result HP may recover such Award benefits (or their
current value) from me if the Protective Covenants are found to be legally void or unenforceable in any material part.A This Agreement benefits both me and HP because, among other things, it
provides finality and predictability for both me and the Company regarding enforceable boundaries on my future conduct.A For these reasons, I agree that I will not pursue any legal action to
set aside or avoid application of the Protective Covenants.A This Agreement will survive the end of my employment with HP and shall, likewise, continue to apply and be valid notwithstanding
any change in my duties, responsibilities, position, or title.9. Notice of Post-Employment Activities.A If I accept a position with a Competitor at any time within twelve months followingA the
end of my employment with HP, I will promptly give written notice to the senior Human Resources manager for the HP business sector in which I worked, with a copy to HP4€™ s General
Counsel, and will provide HP with the information it needs about my new position to determine whether such position would likely lead to a violation of this Agreement (except that I need not
provide any information that would include the Competitora€™s trade secrets).A I consent to HP notifying my new employer of my rights and obligations under this Agreement.10. Relief;
Extension.A I understand that if I violate this Agreement (particularly the Protective Covenants), HP will suffer irreparable harm and will be entitled to (i) injunctive relief by temporary
restraining order, temporary injunction, and/or permanent injunction, (ii) where permitted by law, recovery of attorneys' fees and costs incurred by HP in obtaining such relief and (iii) any other
legal and equitable relief to which HP may be entitled. Injunctive relief will not exclude other remedies that might apply. For purposes of any award of fees or costs, HP shall be considered the
prevailing party if it is awarded any part of the relief requested by it, either through partial enforcement, reformation of this Agreement, or otherwise. A If I am found to have violated any
restrictions in the Protective Covenants, then the time period for such restrictions will be extended by one day for each day that I am found to have violated them, up to a maximum extension
equal to the time period originally prescribed for the restrictions. A I acknowledge that if the Company determines that (i) I have engaged in misconduct prohibited by applicable law or any
applicable policy of the Company, as in effect from time to time, or (ii) the Company is required to make recovery from me under applicable law or a Company policy adopted to comply with
applicable legal requirements, then the Company may, in its sole discretion, to the extent it determines appropriate and to the extent permitted under applicable law, (a) recover from me any
incentive payments (whether cash or equity) paid to me up to three years prior to the end of myA employment or any time thereafter; (b) cancel my outstanding incentive awards (cash and
equity) whether or not vested, and cancel any otherwise applicable future payments to me, and (c) take any other action required or permitted by applicable law; provided, however, that the
Company will not, unless required or permitted by applicable law, recover amounts from a plan of non-qualified deferred compensation to the extent the recovery would result in tax penalties to
Executive under Internal Revenue Code Section 409A.11. Severability; Authority for Revision; Assignment.A Except where otherwise expressly provided, the provisions of this Agreement are
severable and will be separately construed. If any provision contained in this Agreement is determined to be void, illegal or unenforceable, in whole or in part, then the other provisions
contained herein will remain in full force and effect as if the provision so determined had not been contained herein. If the restrictions provided in this Agreement are deemed unenforceable as
written, the parties expressly authorize the court to revise, delete, or add to such restrictions to the extent necessary to enforce the intent of the parties and to provide HPa€™ s goodwill,
Confidential Information, trade secrets, Proprietary Developments and other business interests with effective protection. If this Agreement or material restrictions provided for in this
Agreement are deemed unenforceable and cannot be reformed to be enforced, then any previously existing Agreement Regarding Confidential Information and Proprietary Developments
(ARCIPD) or comparable agreement containing the same or substantially similar restrictions applicable to me shall apply and shall not be deemed to have been superseded or replaced by this
Agreement notwithstanding any provisions in this Agreement to the contrary. The title and paragraph headings in this Agreement are provided for convenience of reference only, and shall not
be considered in determining its meaning, intent or applicability. This Agreement will automatically inure to the benefit of, and will be enforceable by, any parent, subsidiary, affiliate, successor
or assign of HP that I become employed with or have material involvement with, to protect such entitya€™ s legitimate business interests. I agree that this Agreement, including but not limited
to the Protective Covenants contained in Paragraph 7 (and its subparts), may be assigned by HP to a subsequent employer, successor, or assign without the need for further authorization or
agreement from me.12. Governing Law.A A The laws of the state of Delaware shall govern this Agreement, the construction of its terms, and the interpretation of the rights and duties of the
parties hereto without regard to any conflicts of laws principles to the contrary. The parties stipulate that this Agreement involves contractual rights with a value in excess of $100,000; that
Delaware Code Title 6. Commerce and Trade A§ 2708 applies to this Agreement; and, that this Agreement is intimately related to and a part of the governance of the Companya€™s internal
affairs and my participation in same (through, among other things, the Awards I am made eligible to receive and/or maintain vesting rights in as a consequence of this Agreement).13. Forum
and Venue.A Subject to the limitations of any mandatory arbitration obligation I may be subject to, the exclusive venue for any legal action arising from this Agreement will be a federal or state
court of competent jurisdiction located in the state of Delaware.A A I hereby stipulate and consent to the personal jurisdiction of such courts, and expressly waive any right to object to any such
court's exercise of jurisdiction over me on grounds of convenience or otherwise.A I agree that Delaware has the most material interest of any state in the enforcement of this Agreement
because it is designed to help preserve shareholder value and rights in a Delaware corporation and it is ancillary to, and a condition of eligibility for an Award governed by Delaware law.14.
Acceptance by HP.A A counterpart of this Agreement has been manually executed on behalf of HP by a duly authorized officer of HP Inc. to indicate HP4€™s acceptance of the terms hereof and
HPa€™s covenant to perform its obligations hereunder (including, without limitation, HPa€™s agreement that I will be provided certain confidential and proprietary information, training,
and/or customer contacts to assist me in my duties). Such acceptance on behalf of HP is conditioned upon my reciprocal agreement to such terms.A I acknowledge the sufficiency of HPa€™s
acceptance of the terms hereof to establish the mutual rights and responsibilities defined herein.A I have been notified that I have the right to consult legal counsel prior to signing this
Agreement.I agree that I have been given ample time to consider this Agreement (no less than 3 business days or such other period as may be required by law).DocumentExhibit 19Insider
Trading PolicyOrganization:A LegalPolicy ID : HP010-06Last revision: 01-June-2023Sponsor: Rick HansenContact:A Insidertrading.compliance@hp.comLast Revalidation on : 18-June-
2024PurposeCompliance with the U.S. securities laws is an area of critical importance to HP Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, 4€ceHP&€). In furtherance of that goal, HP has developed this
policy to facilitate compliance with federal and state securities laws and rules of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the 4€0ceSECA€) relating to insider trading. In the course of
conducting HP&€™ s business, you may come into possession of material information about HP or other entities that is not available to the investing public (referenced herein as d€cematerial
non-public information,a€ as explained in greater detail below). You have a legal and ethical obligation to maintain the confidentiality of material non-public information. Compliance with this
policy is critical, as there are severe penalties for failures to comply with the federal and state laws and SEC rules relating to insider trading. Penalties can include heavy fines, prison time, and
other civil and criminal penalties. In addition, any failure to comply with this policy may subject you to Company-imposed sanctions, up to and including termination of your employment or other
relationship with HP, whether or not the failure to comply results in a violation of law.You are responsible for ensuring that you do not violate federal or state securities laws or this
policy.ScopeThis policy must be followed by (1) all full- and part-time HP employees and contractors, wherever located, (2) all members of HP Inc.a€™s Board of Directors (a&€ceBoD
Membersa€), and (3) all family members who either share the same household with any of the foregoing persons or do not share the same household, but whose transactions the foregoing
persons direct, influence or control, as well as any entities they control (all of which are collectively referred to in this policy as 4€cecovered personsa€). HP may also determine that other
persons should be subject to this policy, such as contractors, consultants and external advisors who have access to material non-public information about HP; such determination shall be made
by the Chief Legal Officer or Deputy General Counsel, Corporate (or their respective designees). Any other person who becomes subject to this policy is also considered a &€cecovered person.a€
It is your responsibility to make sure that you comply with this policy and that any of your family members sharing your household and any entities that you control also comply with this
policy.Policyl.Prohibited ActivityNo Trading While Aware of Material Non-Public InformationThe U.S. securities laws include insider trading laws that prohibit any person from trading in
securities of a company while the person is aware of material non-public information about that company (see Sections 2 and 3 below for guidance on whether information is &€cemateriala€
and/or &€cenon-publica€).U.S. insider trading laws apply to people outside the United States who trade within the United States. Similar laws in other countries may apply to trading by covered
persons who are located in those countries or to trades on exchanges that are located there. In addition, Member States of the European Union have implemented legislation restricting insider
trading, and many other European countries apply similar laws.It is illegal for a covered person who is aware of material non-public information about HP or another company to trade in
securities of HP or such other company until that information ceases to be either (a) material or (b) non-public (you should generally consider information to be non-public until one full trading
day after HP discloses the information to the public).In addition, covered persons who are aware of material non-public information when their employment or other service relationship with HP
terminates may not trade in HP securities until that information is no longer material or has been publicly disclosed.No TippingU.S. insider trading laws and this policy also prohibit
4€cetipping, &€ or the passing of material non-public information to others or making recommendations or expressing opinions to others about the purchase or sale of HP securities while a
person is aware of material non-public information. As such, you are prohibited from a€cetipping.a€ This policy against a€cetippinga€ applies to information about HP and its securities, as well
as to information about other companies. This policy applies regardless of whether the person or entity who receives the information, the &€cetippee,a€ is related to you and regardless of
whether you receive any monetary benefit from the tippee. Persons with whom you have a history, pattern or practice of sharing confidences, such as family members, close friends and financial
and personal counselors, may be presumed to act on the basis of information known to you. You should take special care to not disclose material non-public information to such persons.This
policy does not restrict legitimate business communications among HP personnel who require material non-public information to perform their business duties. Confidential or material non-
public HP information may be disclosed internally within HP only to those personnel with a business need to know such information. Otherwise, you may not disclose material non-public
information to HP personnel or to persons outside HP, unless you are specifically authorized to do so.If you are authorized to disclose the material non-public information to persons outside of
HP, then prior to disclosure, the recipient of the information must agree, in writing, to keep the information confidential. As a reminder, HPa€™s Confidential Information Policy (available here)
applies and provides that HP confidential information may be disclosed outside the company only by persons who are authorized to disclose such information and only in compliance with HP
policies.2.Material InformationInformation is &€cemateriala€ if there is a substantial likelihood that a reasonable investor would consider it important in determining whether to trade in a
security, or the information, if made public, likely would affect the market price of a companya€™s securities. Both negative and positive information can be material. Examples of potentially
material information include, but are not limited to, information about any of the following:a€¢consolidated reported worldwide, segment or business (i.e., Personal Systems, Printing, 3D Print
and Corporate Investments) or regional (i.e., Americas, AP] and EMEA) revenue, margins, earnings or other significant financial information, including guidance and other preliminary financial
information;a€¢significant writedowns and additions to reserves for bad debts;a€¢expansion or curtailment of operations and business disruptions;a€¢pending or proposed mergers,
acquisitions, tender offers, joint ventures, restructurings, changes in assets and financings or re-financings;a€¢major new products or discoveries;a€¢significant customer or supplier news;a€
¢changes in control or changes in BoD Members or executive management;a€¢liquidity problems or impending bankruptcy;a€¢changes in auditors, auditor resignation or auditor notification
that HP may no longer rely on an audit report;a€¢events affecting HPa€™ s securities (e.g., defaults on senior debt, changes in dividends, stock splits, stock buy-backs, rights of securityholders,
additional debt offerings or downgrades of HP debt securities, etc.) and changes in, or developments related to, HPa€™ s credit ratings;a€¢information relating to cybersecurity risks and
incidents;a€¢HPa€™ s internal assessment of, the actual or threatened initiation of, or a settlement or judgment in a significant litigation, investigation or regulatory inquiry; ora€¢other
significant information.The above list is not exhaustive. Other kinds of information also may be material, depending on their quantitative and qualitative significance. Federal, state and
securities exchange investigators will scrutinize a questionable securities transaction after-the-fact with the benefit of hindsight, so you should always err on the side of caution.Questions.A If
you have questions regarding a specific proposed transaction, please contact the Deputy General Counsel, Corporate.3.Non-public InformationInformation is considered non-public unless it has
been disseminated in a manner that makes it generally available to the public and gives the market sufficient time to react to the information. It is important to note that information is not
necessarily public merely because it has been discussed in the press or on social media, which will sometimes report rumors. You should assume that information is non-public, unless you can
point to its official release by HP in at least one of the following ways:&€¢publicly available filings with the SEC;a€¢widely disseminated in a HP press release; ora€¢a properly-noticed, publicly
available webcast.Additionally, at least one full trading day must lapse following such disclosure, in order to permit time for the market to absorb and evaluate the information.Information is
non-public if it is disseminated solely through other methods, such as a posting on HP4€™s internal or external website or in a meeting, conference or presentation not open to the general
public or major media.4.Trading ActivitiesCovered Restricted Trading Activities.A Trading activities in HP securities that are restricted while a covered person is aware of material non-public
information (and during any applicable closed trading window, as discussed below) include, but are not limited to:4€¢transactions in or offers to buy or sell HP4€™s common stock, bonds and
other debt securities, convertible debentures and warrants, or other HP securities in the open market (including short selling of HP securities);a€¢selling HP shares that were purchased upon
exercise of a HP stock option;a€¢elections to begin or terminate investing in HP securities held in HPA€™s 401 (k) plan;a€¢elections to increase or decrease the portion of a HP employeed€™s
periodic contributions to HPa€™s 401 (k) plan for the U.S. that will be allocated to a HP stock fund account;a€¢elections to borrow money against HPa€™s 401 (k) plan account or prepay a
401(k) plan loan where the borrowing or loan prepayment will result in the increase or decrease of the funds in a HP stock fund account in HP4€™ s 401(k) plan;a€¢elections to transfer funds to
or from a HP stock fund account in HPa€™s 401 (k) plan;a€¢elections to liquidate some or all of an investment in a HP stock fund account in HPa€™s 401(k) plan;a€¢enrolling in or elections to
increase or decrease the amount of periodic contributions to HPa€™ s dividend reinvestment plan;a€¢selling HP shares purchased under HPa€™s dividend reinvestment or employee stock



purchase plan;a€¢voluntary purchases resulting from any additional contributions made to HPa€™s dividend reinvestment plan; anda€¢gifts of HP shares or other HP securities, including to
family members or family trusts or other charitable donations.Unrestricted Trading Activities. Trading activities in HP securities that are not prohibited while a covered person is aware of
material non-public information and that are not prohibited during a closed trading window include:a€¢purchases of HP shares under HPa€™s 401(k) plan for the U.S. through periodic
contributions to the 401(k) plan pursuant to automatic payroll deductions;a€¢automatic purchases of HP shares under HP4€™s dividend reinvestment plan resulting from the reinvestment of
dividends paid on HP shares;a€¢regular/scheduled, continuing purchases of HP shares through HPa€™s employee stock purchase plan;a€¢enrolling in or elections to increase or decrease the
amount of periodic contributions to HP4€™s employee stock purchase plan so long as such plan is funded by newly issued shares or shares held in treasury;a€¢trades pursuant to Rule 10b5-1
trading plan that was entered into during an open trading window (as discussed below);a€¢vesting of HP stock options, restricted stock or restricted stock units;a€¢exercise of stock awards
where no HP shares are sold in the market to fund the option exercise or related taxes (i.e., net exercise or a cash exercise);a€¢making a cash payment to avoid the sale or withholding of HP
shares, or electing for HP to withhold shares, in order to cover amounts that must be withheld for the payment of taxes upon the vesting of a stock award, provided that (i) the election is made
during an open trading window and when the covered person is not aware of any material non-public information about HP, and (ii) the election is irrevocable, such that it will result in the
automatic payment of such tax in cash (or withholding of HP shares) at the time of vesting without any further action by the covered person; ora€¢transfers of securities from one brokerage
account to another brokerage account with identical ownership;A provided, that if you are a BoD Member, executive officer or other Section 16 filer subject to preclearance (see Section 8), then
prior to making such a transfer, you should notify the Deputy General Counsel, Corporate (or their designee).Standing and Limit OrdersCovered persons are responsible for closely monitoring
and managing any standing and limit orders to ensure that they do not result in trading that is prohibited by this policy.A Standing and limit orders create heightened risks for insider trading
violations because there is no control over the timing of purchases or sales that result from standing instructions to a broker, and as a result, the broker could execute a transaction when a
covered person is in possession of material non-public information.A Any pending standing and limit orders placed by a designated insider during an open trading window should be cancelled
when the trading window closes.5.Trading Windows and Blackout PeriodsQuarterly Trading WindowsHP&€™s quarterly trading window generally opens one full trading day after earnings are
released, and closes at the end of trading (i.e., 4:30 PM Eastern / 1:30 PM Pacific) on the last day of the second month of the fiscal quarter (unless such day is not a trading day, in which case
the window closes at midnight on such day).HP imposes a trading window on the following persons and (i) their family members with whom they share the same household, (ii) their family
members with whom they do not share the same household but whose transactions they direct, influence or control and (iii) entities they control:a€¢Members of HP Inc.a€™s Board of
Directors;a€¢HPa€™ s Executive Leadership Team and all executive officers;a€¢All HP executive-level employees (including all employees with executive vice president, senior vice president,
vice president or equivalent level roles);a€¢All HP Director-level employees;a€¢Employees in HP Legal at the a€cestrategista€ or equivalent job level; anda€¢All other designated employees and
persons with access to interim financial data about HPa€™s fiscal quarter-to-date results or other material non-public information.Those persons are commonly referred to as &€cedesignated
insidersa€ and may trade in HP securities only when the trading window is &€ceopen,a€A andA only if they are not then aware of any material non-public information about HP.Trading in HP
securities during a trading window should not be considered a a€cesafe harbor,a€ and all HP BoD Members, executive officers, employees and other covered persons under this policy,
regardless of whether or not they are classified as 4€cedesignated insidersa€ due to their role or level, must use good judgment at all times when trading in HP securities and may not, under
any circumstances, trade, directly or indirectly in HP securities, while aware of material non-public information about HP, regardless of whether a trading window is open.Trading window
opening and closure notices are sent quarterly via email to all persons who have been identified as being subject to a trading window. The email notifies recipients of the date the trading
window is scheduled to open and the date the trading window will close. Each person subject to a trading window is required to comply with HP4€™s prohibitions on trading during a closed
trading window pursuant to this policy, even if he or she did not receive a trading window notice. Designated insiders also receive annual trading window calendars with the expected dates for
open and closed trading windows. However, the trading windows specified in these notices and calendars may change and, if an individual or the company comes into possession of material
non-public information, the planned open trading window may close earlier. In that case, designated insiders will be notified of changes to the timing for open and closed trading windows via
email. See below for additional information regarding &€ceSpecial Blackout Periods.a€A designated insider will continue to be subject to the quarterly trading window until he or she is no
longer classified as a a€cedesignated insider.a€ However, if the person is deemed to no longer be a designated insider outside of an open trading window (whether as a result of change in
position or access to financial information or termination of employment with HP), the person may not trade HP securities until the opening of the next trading window.It is important to note
that you may not trade in HP securities during any period that you are aware of material non-public information, even if the trading window is otherwise open and regardless of whether you are
a designated insider.A For example, a person that is aware that HP is about to sign and announce a large acquisition should not trade in HP securities until the transaction is signed and publicly
announced or negotiations are terminated, regardless of whether the trading window is open or closed during such time.Special Blackout PeriodsFrom time to time, HP may impose a special
blackout period (which may apply to persons who are not otherwise subject to the quarterly trading window) and/or close a trading window due to material non-public information
developments. In such events, HP will notify particular individuals that they should not engage in any transactions involving HP securities and should not disclose to others the fact that a
special blackout period has been imposed. If you are subject to a special blackout period, this blackout also applies to (i) your family members with whom you share the same household, (ii) your
family members with whom you dona€™t share the same household but whose transactions you direct, influence or control and (iii) entities you control. Special blackout periods will end upon
public announcement (through at least one of the ways listed in Section 3 of this policy) of the material information that prompted the blackout period.6.Trading GuidelinesHP has included in
Integrity at HP (availableA here) trading guidelines for all covered persons who are not subject to the trading window. See the section &€ceDo not trade on material non-public informationa€ in
Integrity at HP. For covered persons subject to those guidelines, it is usually safe to trade during the period that begins one full trading day after HP announces quarterly or annual results and
ends at the end of trading/end of day on the last day of the second month of the fiscal quarter.A However, no covered person may trade at any time, including during this period, in HP
securities when he or she is aware of material non-public information about HP.The foregoing are only guidelines established to encourage trading during periods in which covered persons are
less likely to be aware of material non-public information about HP. Covered persons that are not classified as designated insiders subject to Section 5 may trade outside of this period, provided
that they are not then aware of material non-public information about HP.7.Trading in Securities of Other CompaniesU.S. insider trading laws and HP policy prohibits trading in the securities of
any company, including HP customers, channel partners, suppliers, potential acquisition targets, other business partners or competitors, by persons who are aware of material non-public
information about those companies.A To facilitate compliance with these laws, HP may impose temporary trading blackout periods on covered persons who are working on transactions
involving HP and one or more other companies. If that occurs, those covered persons will be notified that they may not trade in the securities of the other company until all material non-public
information about the transaction and that company is either no longer material or no longer non-public. Any person made aware of the existence of such temporary blackout period should not
disclose the existence of the blackout to any other person. In addition, if the transaction is potentially material to HP, the temporary trading blackout period also may extend to trading in HP
securities.A Regardless of whether a temporary trading blackout has been imposed, you should never trade in the securities of another company while in possession of material nonpublic
information about that company that you obtained in the course of performing your duties at HP.8.PreclearanceHP requires BoD Members, HP4€™s Executive Leadership Team, all executive
officers (generally those officers listed in HPa€™s Annual Report on Form 10-K), any individual required to file reports under Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended and
certain other employees who are so designated (and notified) from time to time to contact the Chief Legal Officer or the A Deputy General Counsel, Corporate (or their respective designees) in
advance of trading in HP securities (including a stock plan transaction such as an option exercise, a gift, a loan, a contribution to a trust or any other transfer) and obtain prior approval of the
transaction from the Chief Legal Officer or the Deputy General Counsel, Corporate (or their respective designees). All requests should be submitted to the Chief Legal Officer or to the Deputy
General Counsel, Corporate (or their respective designees) at least two business days in advance of the proposed transaction. The Chief Legal Officer or Deputy General Counsel, Corporate (or
their respective designees), as the case may be, will then determine whether the transaction may proceed. This preclearance policy applies even if you are initiating a transaction while a trading
window is open.If preclearance is provided, the trade should be executed within two business days after the approval is obtained, but regardless may not be executed if you acquire material
non-public information concerning HP during that time.If a proposed trade is not approved under the preclearance policy, you should refrain from initiating any transaction in HP securities, and
you should not inform anyone within or outside of HP of the restriction.9.Prohibited TransactionsCovered persons may not engage in any of the following transactions at any time:Short
SalesShort sales of HPa€™s securities by covered persons are prohibited. Short sales of HPa€™s securities evidence an expectation on the part of the seller that the securities will decline in
value. Short sales of HP4€™ s securities may also be a signal to the market that the seller does not have confidence in HP or its prospects. In addition, short sales of HP securities may reduce
the sellera€™ s incentive to improve HPa€™s performance since the seller can benefit from a decline in the value of HP4€™ s securities.Publicly Traded OptionsTransactions by covered persons
in warrants, puts, calls or other derivatives of HP&€™s securities on an exchange or in any other organized market are prohibited. A A transaction in options (other than options granted under a
HP stock option plan) is, in effect, a bet on the short-term movement of HPa€™s stock and, therefore, could create the appearance that the trader is trading based on material non-public
information. Transactions in options also may focus a covered persond€™s attention on HPa€™s short-term performance at the expense of HP4€™ s long-term objectives.Hedging
TransactionsCovered persons are prohibited from engaging in any hedging transactions that involve HP securities. A hedging transaction generally includes the purchase of a financial
instrument designed to hedge or offset any decrease in the market value of HP securities. Hedging transactions include, but are not limited to, prepaid variable forwards, equity swaps, collars
and other transactions with exchange funds. These transactions may allow the person to continue to own the covered securities, but without the full risks and rewards of ownership. When that
occurs, a covered person may no longer have the same objectives as HPa€™s other investors. Any questions about what constitutes a 4€cehedging transactiona€ should be directed to the
Deputy General Counsel, Corporate.Margin Accounts and PledgesCovered persons are prohibited from holding HP securities subject to margin calls in a margin account or pledging HP
securities as collateral for a loan unless appropriate safeguards are established and prior approval of the transaction is obtained from the Deputy General Counsel, Corporate.A Securities held
in a 4&€cemargin account,a€ which for the purposes of this policy, means a margin account in which HP securities are subject to margin calls, may be sold by the broker without the
customera€™s consent if the customer fails to meet a margin call. Similarly, securities pledged as collateral for a loan may be sold in foreclosure if the borrower defaults on the loan or, in many
instances, if the value of the collateral falls. A margin sale or foreclosure sale may occur at a time when the pledgor is aware of material non-public information about HP.10.Rule 10b5-1 Trading
PlansCovered persons are permitted to adopt 10b5-1 plans, subject to the rules and limitations set forth herein and in Appendix B of this policy.A Because the rules pertaining to 10b5-1 plans
are complex, HP recommends that you work with a broker and be certain you fully understand the limitations and conditions of 10b5-1 plans before you establish a trading plan.A Rule 10b5-1(c)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, permits the use of pre-arranged, written trading plans (commonly referred to as &4€0e10b5-1 plansa€) as an affirmative defense to a
charge of insider trading, provided that the plan satisfies the conditions of Rule 10b5-1. A person subject to this policy can rely on this defense and trade in HP securities, regardless of their
awareness of material non-public information, as long as the transaction occurs pursuant to a 10b5-1 plan that was entered into when the person was not in possession of material non-public
information and it complies with the conditions of Rule 10b5-1. Once the 10b5-1 plan is adopted, you must not exercise any subsequent influence over the amount of securities to be traded, the
price at which they are to be traded or the date of the trade. Rule 10b5-1 conditions include that the person act in good faith, not modify their trading instructions while aware of material non-
public information and not enter into or alter a corresponding or hedging transaction or position. A All 10b5-1 plans will be reviewed prior to implementing any such plan, contract or instruction
for compliance with Rule 10b5-1 and HP4€™s policies.A In addition,10b5-1 plans adopted by HP Inc. BoD Members, executive officers and members of the executive leadership team must be
reviewed and approved by the Chief Legal Officer or the Deputy General Counsel, Corporate (or their respective designees). As such, if you are a BoD Member, executive officer or member of
the executive leadership team and wish to implement a 10b5-1 plan, you must first pre-clear the plan with the Chief Legal Officer or Deputy General Counsel, Corporate (or their respective
designees) prior to the entry into the plan. A 10b5-1 plan can only be entered into during an open trading window and in good faith at a time when you are not aware of material non-public
information.A Additionally, Rule 10b5-1 imposes certain cooling-off periods that restrict the timing of the first trade under the 10b5-1 plan.Changes to an existing 10b5-1 plan are not permitted
except in highly exceptional situations, with prior written approval by HPa€™s Chief Legal Officer or Deputy General Counsel, Corporate (or their respective designees). Modification of a plan
can affect the extent to which trades that have taken place under the plan prior to amendment are eligible for the affirmative defense provided by Rule 10b5-1. Any amendments must be pre-
approved during an open trading window by the Chief Legal Officer or Deputy General Counsel, Corporate (or their respective designees) in writing. Amendments to the amount, price, or
timing of the purchase or sale of the securities underlying the 10b5-1 plan will be treated as a termination of the current 10b5-1 plan and the creation of a new plan, and will be subject to all the
requirements of establishing a new 10b5-1 plan, including applicable cooling-off periods.Terminations of 10b5-1 trading plans are not permitted except in highly exceptional situations, with
prior written approval by HPa€™s Chief Legal Officer or Deputy General Counsel, Corporate (or their respective designees). If you terminate a 10b5-1 plan, you may not enter into another such
plan until at least sixty (60) calendar days after the termination date of the prior plan, except as approved by the Chief Legal Officer or Deputy General Counsel, Corporate (or their respective
designees). The creation of a new plan will be subject to all requirements of establishing a new plan, including applicable cooling-off periods. The Chief Legal Officer or Deputy General Counsel,
Corporate (or their respective designees) may deny approval of a new 10b5-1 plan after the early termination of an existing plan if you have exhibited a pattern of early termination or have
adopted a series of short-term plans. Frequent modifications or terminations of a 10b5-1 plan may call into question your good faith in entering into the plan (and therefore may jeopardize the
availability of the affirmative defense against insider trading allegations).For information about establishing a 10b5-1 plan, please contact global.equity@hp.com. See the 10b5-1 Plan FAQs for
further information on 10b5-1 plans, which is attached hereto as Appendix B.11.Company TransactionsFrom time to time, HP may engage in transactions in its securities. It is HP4€™s policy to
comply with all applicable securities and state laws (including appropriate approvals by the Board of Directors or appropriate committee, if required) when engaging in transactions in HP
securities.12.ComplianceA with this Policy and Integrity at HPCompliance with this policy is essential as there can be severe penalties for any failure to comply with the federal securities laws
and SEC rules relating to insider trading.A For example, if a covered person violates insider trading laws, both the covered person and HP may be subject to severe civil and criminal
penalties.A Specifically, if you violate the federal insider trading laws, you may have to pay civil fines of up to three times the profit gained or loss avoided by such trading, as well as criminal
fines of up to $5 million. You also may have to serve a prison sentence of up to 20 years. In addition, HP could be subject to a civil fine of up to the greater of $2.479 million, subject to
adjustment for inflation, and three times the profit gained or loss avoided as a result of your insider trading violations, as well as a criminal fine of up to $25 million. In addition, if you violate the
insider trading laws or this policy, you could be subject to termination from employment or service with HP. The SEC, U.S. Department of Justice, the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority
and the securities exchanges each investigate and pursue insider trading violations vigorously. There are no limits on the size of a transaction that will trigger insider trading liability. Even
relatively small trades have resulted in SEC investigations and lawsuits.Integrity at HP also prohibits insider trading. Each HP employee and BoD Member is required to annually review and
certify that he or she has reviewed and will comply with Integrity at HP. Accordingly, a violation of this policy or insider trading laws also constitutes a violation of Integrity at HP, which could
lead to termination from employment or service with HP. Please contact Insidertradingcompliance@hp.com to discuss any concerns or potential violations of insider trading laws, or consult
Integrity at HP for instructions on how to discuss a potential concern or violation of Integrity at HP.Additional Information and ResourcesA set of frequently asked questions is attached as
Appendix A to this policy.The staff of HP Corporate Legal will provide training with respect to these policies and procedures and HP4€™ s compliance with them and with the federal securities
laws and SEC rules relating to insider trading periodically, as appropriate.We also encourage you to visit the Insider Trading Compliance website (link) for further information on insider
trading, trading windows and 10b5-1 plans.Implementation;A AmendmentsThis policy was last updated on June 1, 2023 and is effective immediately.A This policy may be amended from time to



time with the approval of HPa€™s Chief Legal Officer or Deputy General Counsel, Corporate.ReferencesConfidential Information PolicyIntegrity at HPInsider Trading FAQs (see Appendix
A)Rule 10b5-1 and 10b5-1 Trading Plans FAQs and information (see Appendix B)HP Legal websiteA Appendix Alnsider Trading FAQsQ1: How do U.S. insider trading laws and Integrity at HP
affect my transactions in HPa€™ s securities?A1: If you have material non-public information about HP, it is illegal to trade in HP securities or make recommendations to others about trading in
HP securities until such information ceases to be material or non-public (you should generally consider information to be non-public until one full trading day after HP publicly discloses the
information through at least one of the ways listed in Section 3 of the HP Insider Trading Policy). If you violate insider trading laws, both you and HP may be subject to severe civil and criminal
penalties. A violation of the insider trading laws also constitutes a violation of Integrity at HP.Q2: What constitutes &€cematerial non-public informationa€ about HP?A2: Information is
d€cemateriala€ if a reasonable investor would consider it important in determining whether to trade in a security, or the information, if made public, likely would affect the market price of a
companya€™s securities. Examples of potentially material information may include, but are not limited to:4€¢consolidated reported worldwide, segment or business (i.e., Personal Systems,
Printing, 3D Print and Corporate Investments) or regional (i.e., Americas, AP] and EMEA) revenue, margins, earnings or other significant financial information, including guidance and other
preliminary financial information;a€¢material writedowns and additions to reserves for bad debts;a€¢expansion or curtailment of operations and business disruptions;a€¢pending or proposed
mergers, acquisitions, tender offers, joint ventures, restructurings, changes in assets and financings or re-financings;a€¢major new products or discoveries;a€¢significant customer or supplier
news;a€¢changes in control or changes in members of HPa€™s Board of Directors (d€ceBoD Membersa€) or executive management;a€¢liquidity problems or impending bankruptcy;a€¢changes
in auditors, auditor resignation or auditor notification that HP may no longer rely on an audit report;a€¢events affecting HPa€™s securities (e.g., defaults on senior debt, changes in dividends,
stock splits, stock buy-backs, rights of securityholders, additional debt offerings or downgrades of HP debt securities, etc.) and changes or developments related to HPa€™s credit ratings;a€
¢information relating to cybersecurity risks and incidents;a€¢HPa€™s internal assessment of, the actual or threatened initiation of, or a settlement or judgment in a significant litigation,
investigation or regulatory inquiry; ora€¢other significant information.Information is 4€cenon-publica€ if it has not been disseminated in a manner that makes it generally available to the public
and gives the market sufficient time to digest the information.Q3: What types of transactions in HP securities are prohibited by U.S. insider trading laws while I am aware of material non-public
information or are restricted under HPa€™s insider trading policy?A3: Restricted transactions include (but are not limited to) the following:a€¢transactions in or offers to buy or sell HPa€™s
common stock, bonds and other debt securities, convertible debentures and warrants, or other HP securities in the open market;a€¢selling HP shares that were purchased upon exercise of a HP
stock option;a€¢elections to begin or terminate investing in HP securities held in HPa€™s 401 (k) plan;a€¢elections to increase or decrease the portion of a HP employeea€™ s periodic
contributions to HPa€™s 401 (k) plan for the U.S. that will be allocated to a HP stock fund account;a€¢elections to borrow money against HP4€™s 401 (k) plan account or prepay a 401(k) plan
loan where the borrowing or loan prepayment will result in the increase or decrease of the funds in a HP stock fund account in HPa€™s 401(k) plan;a€¢elections to transfer funds to or from a
HP stock fund account in HPa€™s 401 (k) plan;a€¢elections to liquidate some or all of an investment in a HP stock fund account in HP4€™s 401(k) plan;a€¢enrolling in or elections to increase or
decrease the amount of periodic contributions to HPa€™s dividend reinvestment plan;a€¢selling HP shares purchased under HPa€™ s dividend reinvestment or employee stock purchase plan;a€
¢voluntary purchases resulting from any additional contributions made to HP4€™s dividend reinvestment plan; anda€¢gifts of HP shares or other HP securities, including to family members or
family trusts or other charitable donations.Q4: Do U.S. insider trading laws restrict my ability to exercise my HP employee stock options?A4: You are permitted to exercise your stock options
(without any corresponding sale) at a time when you are aware of material non-public information, provided you pay the exercise price in cash or effect a net exercise (i.e., HP withholds a
portion of the shares you would have otherwise received on exercise to satisfy the exercise price). You may not, however, sell shares on the open market (whether through a broker or
otherwise) to satisfy the exercise price or related taxes at a time when you are aware of material non-public information.Q5: What are &€cetrading windowsa€ and how do they affect my ability
to trade in HP4€™ s securities?A5: HP imposes a€cetrading windowsa€ and a€cetrading guidelinesa€ in order to facilitate compliance with insider trading laws.HPa€™s quarterly trading window
generally opens one full trading day after earnings are released and closes at the end of trading on the last day of the second month of the fiscal quarter (unless such day is not a trading day, in
which case the window closes at midnight on such day).HP has established trading windows for the following persons and (i) their family members with whom they share the same household,
(ii) their family members with whom they do not share the same household but whose transactions they direct, influence or control and (iii) entities they control:4€¢Members of HP Inc.a€™s
Board of Directors;a€¢HPa€™s Executive Leadership Team and all executive officers;a€¢All HP executive-level employees (including all employees with executive vice president, senior vice
president, vice president or equivalent level roles);4€¢All HP Director-level employees;a€¢Employees in Legal at the 4€cestrategista€ or equivalent job level; anda€¢All other designated
employees and persons with access to interim financial data about HPa€™s fiscal quarter-to-date results or other material non-public information.Those persons listed above are considered
a€cedesignated insidersa€ and may trade in HP securities only when the trading window is &€ceopena€ and if they are not then aware of material non-public information.Each person that is
subject to a trading window will receive quarterly emails notifying them of the period that the trading window is expected to be open in that quarter. However, trading windows are self-applied,
and each person is required to comply with the trading window during a particular quarter, even if he or she did not receive a trading window notice.It is important to note that you may not
trade HP securities during any period that you are aware of material non-public information, even if the trading window is otherwise open and regardless of whether you are a designated
insider. For example, a person that is aware that HP is about to sign and announce a large acquisition should not trade in HP securities until the transaction is signed and publicly announced or
negotiations are terminated, regardless of whether the normal trading window is open or closed during such time.HP has included trading guidelines in Integrity at HP for all covered persons
who are not subject to the trading window. Under those guidelines, it is usually safe for those persons to trade during the period that begins one full trading day after HP announces quarterly or
annual results and ends at the end of trading/end of day on the close of the second month of the fiscal quarter (unless such day is not a trading day, in which case the window closes at midnight
on such day), provided that they are not then aware of any material non-public information about HP. These are only guidelines established to encourage trading during periods where covered
persons are less likely to be aware of material non-public information; those persons may trade outside of this period, provided that such persons are not then aware of material non-public
information.Q6: Can a person trade if he or she is no longer a 4€cedesignated insidera€?A6: A designated insider will continue to be subject to the quarterly trading window until he or she is no
longer classified as a 4&€cedesignated insider. However, if the person is deemed to no longer be a designated insider outside of a trading window (whether as a result of change in position or
access to financial information or termination of employment with HP), the person may not trade HP securities until the opening of the next trading window. For example, an employee that
receives interim financial data about HPa€™s fiscal quarter-to-date results would be considered a designated insider and would not be permitted to trade outside of a trading window. If there is
a change so that this person no longer receives such financial information, he or she would no longer be deemed a designated insider. If such change occurred during a closed trading window,
he or she would not be able to trade HP securities until the next trading window opens.A HP also retains the discretion to place holds on, or otherwise restrict, trading in former employee
brokerage accounts if HP determines such individual may be in possession of potential material nonpublic information.Q7: Can an open trading window close or trading be restricted without
prior notice?A7: Yes, scheduled and pre-announced quarterly trading windows may change without prior notice if an individual or the company comes into possession of material non-public
information. In that case, designated insiders will be notified of any changes to the timing for open and closed trading windows via email.Q8: Do I need approval in advance of trading in HP
securities during an open trading window?A8: BoD Members, HP4€™s Executive Leadership Team, all executive officers and certain other employees who are so designated (and notified) from
time to time are required to contact the Chief Legal Officer or the Deputy General Counsel, Corporate (or their respective designees) in advance of trading in HP securities (including a stock
plan transaction such as an option exercise, a gift, a loan, a contribution to a trust or any other transfer) and to obtain prior approval of the transaction from the Chief Legal Officer or the
Deputy General Counsel, Corporate (or their respective designees).Q9: Do U.S. insider trading laws apply to trades of other companiesa€™ securities?A9: Yes. U.S. insider trading laws apply to
the trading in securities of any company, including HP customers, channel partners, suppliers, potential A merger, acquisition, divestiture, or investment counterparties, other business partners
and competitors, if you have material non-public information about those companies.Q10: What if I have additional questions about compliance with U.S. insider trading laws and HPa€™s
Insider Trading Policy?A10: Please contact the Insider Trading Compliance team atinsidertradingcompliance@hp.comAppendixA B10b5-1 Plan FAQs[1]Q1:A What is a 4€ceRule 10b5-1 trading
plana€ and how do I establish such a plan?A1:A Rule 10b5-1 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the a€ceExchange Acta€), permits the use of trading plans (commonly
referred to as a€ce10b5-1 plansa€) as an affirmative defense to a charge of insider trading, provided that the plan satisfies the conditions of Rule 10b5-1(c).U.S. insider trading laws permit a
person to establish a 10b5-1 plan at a time when the person is not aware of any material non-public information about HP and then trade in HP securities at a later time, even if that person is
aware of material non-public information about HP at the time of the transaction, provided that certain specified conditions are met. A 10b5-1 plan must, among other things:a€¢specify

theA amountA of securities you plan to purchase or sell, theA priceA at which you plan to purchase or sell those securities, and theA dateA on which the securities are to be purchased or

sold;A orad€¢include aA written formulaA for determining the amount, price and date of the transaction;A ora€¢otherwise not permit you, as the creator of the plan,A any subsequent

influenceA over how, when and whether to conduct the purchases or sales (you must delegate those decisions to a person--generally a broker--who is not aware of any material non-public
information about HP and you must not provide such person any material non-public information about HP).All 10b5-1 plans will be reviewed prior to implementing any such plan, contract or
instruction for compliance with RuleA 10b5-1 and HPA€™s policies.A In addition, 10b5-1 plans adopted by members of HP Inc.4€™s Board of Directors (A4€ceBoD Membersa€), executive officers
and other members of the executive leadership team are required to be reviewed and approved by the Chief Legal Officer or Deputy General Counsel, Corporate (or their respective
designees).A As such, if you are a BoD Member, executive officer or member of the executive leadership team and wish to implement a 10b5-1 plan, you must first request and obtain pre-
clearance of the plan with the Chief Legal Officer or Deputy General Counsel, Corporate (or their respective designees) prior to the entry into the plan.A 10b5-1 plan can only be entered into
during an open trading window and in any event at a time when you are not aware of material non-public information.A Additionally, you must enter into the 10b5-1 plan in good faith and not
as part of a plan or scheme to evade the prohibitions of Rule 10b5 under the Exchange Act. You must act in good faith with respect to the 10b5-1 plan for the entirety of its duration.For
information about establishing a 10b5-1 plan, please contact HPA€™s Global Equity team at global.equity@hp.com.A The Global Equity team will connect you with the appropriate broker that
administers 10b5-1 plans to discuss the terms of and enter into an agreement for a 10b5-1 plan.Q2:A When can I enter into a 10b5-1 plan?A How soon can I begin trading under a 10b5-1 plan?
A2:A You may only enter into a 10b5-1 plan during an open trading window, when you do not otherwise possess material non-public information.A Sales of shares under the 10b5-1 plan may
not start until the expiration of a &€cecooling-off perioda€ per the below:a4€¢If you are aA BoD MemberA or a Section 16 Officer[2]A (or a family member of such a person or an entity controlled
by such a person): the later of (1) 90 days after adoption of the 10b5-1 plan and (2) two business days following the filing of the Form 10-Q or Form 10-K for the completed fiscal quarter in
which the 10b5-1 plan was adopted; provided, however, that the required cooling-off period shall in no event exceed 120 days. [3]a€¢For any other person: 30 days after adoption of the 10b5-1
plan.Q3:A Can I change or early terminate my 10b5-1 plan?A3:A HP policy is that youA may notA change your 10b5-1 plan once you have entered into a plan.A Exceptions to this policy will
only be granted in highly exceptional situations, with prior approval by HPa€™s Chief Legal Officer or Deputy General Counsel, Corporate (or their respective designees). Changes to your 10b5-
1 plan create the perception that you may be manipulating the plan to benefit from material non-public information, jeopardizing the availability of the affirmative defense to insider trading
provided by Rule 10b5-1.A A Note that a modification to the amount, price or timing of the purchase or sale of the securities underlying the 10b5-1 plan will be treated as a termination of the
current 10b5-1 plan and the creation of a new plan and will be subject to all the requirements regarding establishment of a new 10b5-1 plan, including the &€cecooling-off perioda€ discussed
above (see Question 2).A Similarly, HP policy is that youA may notA early terminate a 10b5-1 plan (i.e., terminate the plan before it terminates upon the occurrence of the termination events set
forth in the agreement governing the 10b5-1 plan).A As with plan changes, termination of a plan may create the appearance that the plan is being manipulated, jeopardizing the availability of
the affirmative defense to insider trading available under Rule 10b5-1. Exceptions to this policy will only be granted in highly exceptional situations, with prior approval by HP&€™s Chief Legal
Officer or Deputy General Counsel, Corporate (or their respective designees).A If you terminate a 10b5-1 plan, you may not enter into another such plan until at least sixty (60) calendar days
after the termination date of the prior plan, except as approved by the Chief Legal Officer or Deputy General Counsel, Corporate (or their respective designees).A The creation of a new plan
will be subject to all requirements of establishing a new plan, including applicable cooling-off periods.We encourage you to carefully consider and review the terms of a 10b5-1 plan with your
advisors before you enter into a plan, since it will be difficult to modify or terminate a plan after you enter into it.A Modifications or early terminations of 10b5-1 plans without the prior
approval of HPa€™s Chief Legal Officer or Deputy General Counsel, Corporate (or their respective designees) will violate HP&€™ s Insider Trading Policy and Integrity at HP (formerly, the
Standards of Business Conduct).Q4:A I have a 10b5-1 plan in place, but it does not cover all of my shares.A May I enter into a second 10b5-1 plan to cover my remaining shares?A4:A
Generally, you may only have one 10b5-1 plan effecting trades at a time.[4]A HP policy permits you to have up to two 10b5-1 plans in place at the same time (but not trading at the same time)
so long as trading under the later-commencing plan is not authorized to begin until after all trades under the earlier-commencing plan are completed or expire without execution and otherwise
meets all the conditions set forth in Rule 10b5-1. However, if the first plan is terminated early, the first trade under the later-commencing plan must not be scheduled to occur until after the
cooling off periods described above (see Question 2) following the termination of the earlier plan.Q5: Are there any other limitations on the number of 10b5-1 plans I can have in place?A5:A A In
any 12-month period, you may not enter into more than one &€cesingle-tradea€ 10b5-1 plan (i.e., a 10b5-1 plan designed to effect the open market purchase or sale of the total amount of HP
securities subject to the plan as a single transaction).[5]Q6:A What types of securities can I sell under a 10b5-1 plan?A6:A You may sell under a 10b5-1 plan shares of HP common stock,
including shares held in the HP employee stock purchase plan (a€ceESPP&€) or shares acquired as a result of the vesting or exercise of restricted share units (4€eRSUsa€), dividend equivalent
units (4€eDEUsa€), options, performance-adjusted restricted stock units (2€cePARSUsa€) and stock appreciation rights (a€oeSARsa€) Q7:A 1live outside the United States.A Can I still enter
into a 10b5-1 plan?A7:A 10b5-1 plans are not available to employees located in certain countries outside the United States.A Please contact HPA€™ s Global Equity team at
global.equity@hp.com to ask if you may enter into a 10b5-1 plan in your country.Q8:A I am a BoD MemberA or Section 16 Officer.A Is there any other specific requirement that applies?A8: For
BoD Members and Section 16 Officers (including family members of such persons or entities controlled by such persons), 10b5-1 plans must include the following certifications: (1) you are not
aware of any material non-public information about HP or HP4€™ s securities; and (2) you are adopting the 10b5-1 plan in good faith and not as part of a plan or scheme to evade the
prohibitions of Rule 10b-5 under the Exchange Act.A This certification is included in the form of plan.A A A All 10b5-1 plans entered into by a BoD Member or Section 16 Officer are required to
be reviewed and approved by the Chief Legal Officer or Deputy General Counsel, Corporate (or their respective designees) for compliance with RuleA 10b5-1 and HP4€™s policies concerning
such plans (which may include additional blackout periods), prior to implementing any such plan, contract or instruction.A As such, if you wish to implement a 10b5-1 plan, you must first pre-
clear the plan with the Chief Legal Officer or Deputy General Counsel, Corporate (or their respective designees) prior to the entry into the plan.In addition, there are also quarterly Exchange
Act disclosure requirements (as part of the 10-Q/10-K) for Rule 10b5-1 plans and certain other trading arrangements entered into by BoD Members or Section 16 Officers, which include
disclosing the material terms (other than price) of such trading plans or arrangements.[1]A All references in these FAQs to 4€ceyoud€ should be read toA includeA family members who either
share the same household with you or do not share the same household, but whose transactions you direct, influence or control, as well as any entities you control. [2]A A Section 16 Officer is a
HP Inc. officer that is required to file reports (e.g., Forms 4) under Section 16 of the Exchange Act disclosing transactions in HP4€™s stock. A Please

contactA Insidertradingcompliance@hp.comaA if you are unsure whether you are a Section 16 Officer.[3]A For example, if a 10b5-1 plan were adopted on September 1 (during HPa€™s fourth
fiscal quarter and shortly after the trading window opens), the cooling off period would continue until the later of November 30 (90 days after adoption of the plan) or two business days after
the filing of HP4€™s Form 10-K. HPA€™s Form 10-K is usually filed in early December.A If the Form 10-K were filed on December 6, then the cooling off period would continue through
December 8 (and trades could not start under the plan until after the period has expired).[4]A An exception to this restriction applies for eligible 4€cesell to covera€ plans authorizing certain tax



withholding sales.A Among other requirements, an eligible a€cesell to covera€ plan is one that authorizes an agent to sell only such securities as are necessary to satisfy tax withholding
obligations arising exclusively from the vesting of a compensatory equity award (excluding options) and for which the plan participant does not exercise control over the timing of such sales.
[5]A This prohibition does not apply to eligible &€cesell to covera€ plans authorizing certain tax withholding sales.A See footnote 5 for additional information.DocumentExhibit 21Subsidiaries of
HP Inc.The registranta€™s subsidiaries and affiliates as of October 31, 2024 are included in the list below. NameJurisdictionHP Inc Argentina S.R.L.ArgentinaPolycom Telecomunicacoes do
Brasil Ltda. - Argentina BranchArgentinaHP PPS Australia Pty LtdAustraliaPolycom Australia Pty LtdAustraliaTower Software Engineering Pty LtdAustraliaHP Austria GmbHAustriaHP Belgium
BVBelgiumHP Onyx Holding L.P.BermudaHP Brasil IndA®stria e ComA®©rcio de Equipamentos EletrA ‘nicos LtdaBrazilHP Brasil IndA®stria e ComA®©rcio de Equipamentos EletrA ‘nicos Ltda. -
Branch 01 (TamborA©)BrazilHP Brasil IndA%stria e ComA®©rcio de Equipamentos EletrA nicos Ltda. - Branch 2 (Sorocaba)BrazilHP Brasil IndA%stria e ComA®©rcio de Equipamentos EletrA
‘nicos Ltda. - Branch 3 (Porto Alegre)BrazilHP Brasil IndA¢stria e ComA©rcio de Equipamentos EletrA ‘nicos Ltda. - Branch 4 (ItapoA;)BrazilPolycom Telecomunicacoes do Brasil
Ltda.BrazilSimpress ComA®©rcio, LocaA§A£o e ServiA§os LtdaBrazilAOME Holdings Ltd.British Virgin IslandsHP Inc Bulgaria EOODBulgariaHP Canada Licensing L.P.CanadaPlantronics B.V.
(Canada Branch)CanadaPlantronics Canada Inc.CanadaCompaq Cayman Holdings CompanyCayman IslandsCompaq Cayman Holdings General Partnership IICayman IslandsHewlett-Packard
West Indies LimitedCayman IslandsPlantronics International Ltd.Cayman IslandsComercializadora Plantronics Chile LimitadaChileHP Inc Chile Comercial LimitadaChileChina HP Co., Ltd
Hangzhou BranchChinaChina HP Co., Ltd.ChinaChina HP Co., Ltd. Chengdu BranchChinaChina HP Co., Ltd. Guangzhou BranchChinaChina HP Co., Ltd. Nanjing BranchChinaChina HP Co., Ltd.
Shanghai BranchChinaChina HP Co., Ltd Suzhou BranchChinaChina HP Co., Ltd., Jiangan BranchChinaChina HP Co., Ltd Jinan BranchChinaChina HP Co., Ltd Shenyang BranchChinaChina HP
Co., Ltd Shenzhen BranchChinaChina HP Co., Ltd Xian BranchChinaHP (Chongqing) Co., LtdChinaHP (Chongqing) Manufacturing, Export, Procurement and Settlement Co.,
LtdChinaNameJurisdictionHP Information Technology R&D (Shanghai) Co., LtdChinaHP Information Technology R&D (Shanghai) Co., Ltd Beijing BranchChinaHP Information Technology R&D
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Suzhou BranchChinaHP Supply Chain Management (Shandong) Co., Ltd.ChinaHP Trading (Shanghai) Co. Ltd.ChinaHP Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Dalian BranchChinaHP
Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Zhangjiang BranchChinaHP Trading Kunshan Co., Ltd.ChinaPlantronics Trading (Suzhou) Co., LtdChinaPolycom Communication Solutions (Beijing) Co.
Ltd.ChinaPolycom Communications Technology (Beijing) Co. Ltd.ChinaShanghai Peridot Printing Co. Ltd.ChinaHP Colombia SASColombiaPlantronics BV Sucursal ColombiaColombiaHP Inc.
Costa Rica LimitadaCosta RicaHP PPS Costa Rica LimitadaCosta RicaHP Computing and Printing d.o.o. za raAunalne i srodne aktivnostiCroatiaHP Inc Czech Republic s.r.o.Czech
RepublicCompaq Information Technologies, LLCDelaware, United StatesHewlett-Packard Company Archives LLC (50% owned)Delaware, United StatesHewlett-Packard Enterprises,
LLCDelaware, United StatesHewlett-Packard World Trade, LLCDelaware, United StatesHP Health Solutions Inc.Delaware, United StatesHP Hewlett Packard Group LLC (50% owned)Delaware,
United StatesHP Jade Holding LLCDelaware, United StatesHP Licensing Holding LLCDelaware, United StatesHP R&D Holding LLCDelaware, United StatesHP Technology Holdings
LLCDelaware, United StatesHP US Digital LLCDelaware, United StatesHP USA Manufacturing LLCDelaware, United StatesHPI Bermuda Holdings LLCDelaware, United StatesHPI Brazil
Holdings LLCDelaware, United StatesHPI Federal LLCDelaware, United StatesHPI J1 Holdings LLCDelaware, United StatesHPQ Holdings, LLCDelaware, United StatesIndigo America,
Inc.Delaware, United StatesPeridot Print LLCDelaware, United StatesPictureTel LLCDelaware, United StatesPlantronics, Inc.Delaware, United StatesPolycom International
CorporationDelaware, United StatesPolycom, LLCDelaware, United StatesVyopta IncorporatedDelaware, United StatesHP Inc Danmark ApSDenmarkPolycom (Copenhagen)
ApsDenmarkName]JurisdictionApogee Corporation LimitedEngland & WalesApogee Europe LimitedEngland & WalesApogee Group LimitedEngland & WalesApogee Managed Services
International LimitedEngland & WalesApogee Rentals LimitedEngland & WalesBalreed Digitec (Group) LimitedEngland & WalesBalreed Digitec (North) LimitedEngland & WalesBalreed Digitec
(SE) LimitedEngland & WalesBalreed Digitec (UK) LimitedEngland & WalesChoose Water LimitedEngland & WalesCity Docs LimitedEngland & WalesCity Docs Solutions LimitedEngland &
WalesDatatron Document Image Archiving LimitedEngland & WalesDirect-Tec Group LimitedEngland & WalesDirect-Tec UK LimitedEngland & WalesF. Smith & Co (Office Equipment)
LimitedEngland & WalesHP Inc UK LimitedEngland & WalesHP UK Development LimitedEngland & WalesManzana Bidco LimitedEngland & WalesOffice Perfection LimitedEngland &
WalesPerigee Holdco UK LimitedEngland & WalesPerigee Midco UK LimitedEngland & WalesPlantronics LimitedEngland & WalesThe Danwood Group LimitedEngland & WalesXact Document
Solutions LimitedEngland & WalesXera-Logic Group LimitedEngland & WalesHP Finland OyFinlandApogee France Holdings SASFranceApogee France SASFranceApogee
InternationalFranceHP France Holding SASFranceHP France SASFrancePlantronics B.V., Succursale FrancaiseFrancePolycom (France), S.A.R.L.FranceApogee Deutschland
GmbHGermanyApogee Germany Holding UGGermanyHP Deutschland GmbHGermanyHP Health Solutions Germany GmbHGermanyPlantronics Services GmbHGermanyHP il I, ieivai+i, i+
1108, TT€1%olfI-1, ToTx1" T T1sifi%oI€T 10121, T¥I€TsI»1e PIMifT, 2% 1151511, T1 I+ (HP Printing and Personal Systems Hellas EPE)GreeceHP Inc AP Hong Kong LimitedHong KongHP Inc Hong
Kong LimitedHong KongPolycom Hong Kong LimitedHong KongHP Inc MagyarorszAjg Kft.HungaryName]JurisdictionHP Computing and Printing Systems India Private LimitedIndiaHP India
Sales Private LimitedIndiaHP PPS India Operations Private LimitedIndiaHP PPS Services India Private LimitedIndiaPolycom Technology (R&D) Center Private LtdIndiaPlantronics BV -
Indonesia Rep OfficeIndonesiaPT Hewlett-Packard IndonesialndonesiaApogee Corporation (Ireland) LimitedIrelandHewlett-Packard Ireland (Holdings) Ltd.IrelandHewlett-Packard Ireland 1,
LimitedIrelandHP Production Company LimitedIrelandHP Technology Ireland LimitedIrelandPoly Communications International Unlimited CompanylrelandArgon Business Systems LimitedIsle
of ManArgon Office Systems LimitedIsle of ManHP Indigo LtdIsraelHP Israel LtdIsraelHP Scitex LtdIsraelHP Technology Israel LtdIsraelPolycom Israel LtdIsraelHP Italy S.r.l.ItalyPolycom
(Italy) S.r.1ltalyHewlett-Packard G.K.JapanHP Japan Holdings Nin-I KumiaiJapanHP Japan Inc.JapanNihon HP Nin-I KumiaiJapanPolycom Japan K.K.JapanAlbacore Holdings Jersey
LtdJerseyApogee Corporation (Jersey) LimitedJerseyManzana Holdings LimitedJerseyHP Global Trading B.V., Kazakhstan BranchKazakhstanHP Korea Inc.Korea (the Republic of)HP Printing
Korea Co., Ltd.Korea (the Republic of)HP Luxembourg S.C.A.LuxembourgHP Malaysia Manufacturing Sdn. Bhd.MalaysiaHP PPS Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.MalaysiaHP PPS Sales Sdn.
Bhd.MalaysiaPolycom Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd - Malaysia BranchMalaysiaPlantronics Europe LimitedMaltaCyberCore Technologies, LLCMaryland, United StatesComputing and Printing Global
Services Mexico, S. de R.L. de C.V.MexicoComputing and Printing Mexico, S. de R.L. de C.V.MexicoPlamex, S.A. de C.V.MexicoPoly-com, S de RL de CVMexicoNameJurisdictionHP PPS
MarocMoroccoAlpha Holding One B.V.NetherlandsAlpha Holding Two B.V.NetherlandsAnatolus Holding B.V.NetherlandsArnon Holding B.V.NetherlandsBamberga Holding
B.V.NetherlandsEunomia Holding B.V.NetherlandsFlame Holding B.V.NetherlandsHewlett-Packard (Japan NK) Holdings C.V.NetherlandsHewlett-Packard Copenhagen B.V.NetherlandsHewlett-
Packard Global Holdings B.V.NetherlandsHewlett-Packard Global Investments B.V.NetherlandsHewlett-Packard Japan Holding B.V.NetherlandsHewlett-Packard Sunnyvale B.V.NetherlandsHP
China Holding B.V.NetherlandsHP Europe B.V.NetherlandsHP Global Trading B.V.NetherlandsHP Health Holding B.V.NetherlandsHP Indigo B.V.NetherlandsHP International Trading
B.V.NetherlandsHP Nederland B.V.NetherlandsKale Holding B.V.NetherlandsLyra Holding B.V.NetherlandsPerseus Holding B.V.NetherlandsPlantronics B.V.NetherlandsRegor Holding
B.V.NetherlandsHP New ZealandNew ZealandHP Computing and Printing Nigeria LtdNigeriaHP Norge ASNorwayHP Canada Co. HP Canada CieNova ScotiaHP Canada Development Co.Nova
ScotiaHP Pakistan (Private) LimitedPakistanHP Panama Sales and Distribution, S. de R.L.PanamaHP Inc Peru S.R.L.PeruHP PPS Philippines Inc.PhilippinesPlantronics BV - Philippines Rep
OfficePhilippinesHP Inc Polska sp. z 0.0.PolandCM Advanced Printing Iberia Portuguese Branch Office (50% owned)PortugalHPCP &€“ Computing and Printing Portugal, Unipessoal,
Lda.PortugalHP International Trading B.V. (Puerto Rico Branch), LLCPuerto RicoHP Puerto Rico LLCPuerto RicoKale Holding B.V. (Puerto Rico Branch) LLCPuerto RicoHewlett-Packard KSA
Ltd., Qatar BranchQatarNameJurisdictionHP Inc Romania SRLRomaniaLimited Liability Company HP IncRussian FederationHP KSA Ltd.Saudi ArabiaHP Middle East and North Africa Regional
Headquarters (Single Shareholder LLC)Saudi ArabiaPolycom Saudi LimitedSaudi ArabiaHP Computing and Printing d.o.o. (Beograd)SerbiaHP International Pte. Ltd.SingaporeHP PPS Asia
Pacific Pte. Ltd.SingaporeHP PPS Singapore (Sales) Pte. Ltd.SingaporeHP R&D Singapore Pte. Ltd.SingaporeHP Singapore (Private) LimitedSingaporeHP Singapore Services Pte.
Ltd.SingaporePeridot Print Singapore Pte. Ltd.SingaporePolycom Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd.SingaporePolycom Global (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.SingaporeHP Inc Slovakia, s.r.o.SlovakiaHP South Africa
Proprietary LimitedSouth AfricaHP South Africa TrustSouth AfricaBurokopy, S.L. (50% owned)SpainCM Advanced Printing Iberia, S.A. (50% owned)SpainHP Printing and Computing Solutions,
S.L.U.SpainHP Solutions Creation and Development Services S.L.U.SpainPeridot Print Spain S.L.U. SpainPolycom Solutions (Spain) SLSpainSoluciones Integrales De ImpresiA®n S.L. (50%
owned)SpainTot Servei Ofitmatica I Manteniment, S.L.U. (50% owned)SpainHP PPS Sverige ABSwedenPlantronics Sweden, filial of Plantronics B.V., the NetherlandsSwedenHP Europe BV,
Amsterdam, Meyrin BranchSwitzerlandHP International SA rlSwitzerlandHP Schweiz GmbHSwitzerlandHP Suisse Services SarlSwitzerlandPeridot Print Switzerland SARLSwitzerlandHP
International Pte. Ltd. Hsinchu BranchTaiwan HP International Pte. Ltd., Taiwan BranchTaiwan HP Taiwan Information Technology Ltd.Taiwan Polycom Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd, Taiwan
BranchTaiwan Hewlett-Packard Development Company, L.P.Texas, United StatesHP Inc (Thailand) Ltd.ThailandPolycom Global LimitedThailandHP Inc Tunisie SARLTunisiaHP Bilgisayar ve
BaskA+ Teknolojileri Limited AzirketiTurkeyPolycom Unified Iletisim Sanayi ve Ticaret Limited SirketiTurkeyHP Computing and Printing Middle East FZ-LLCUnited Arab
EmiratesNameJurisdictionHP Europe B.V. - Abu Dhabi BranchUnited Arab EmiratesHP Europe B.V. Regional Dubai BranchUnited Arab EmiratesHP Inc GulfUnited Arab EmiratesPolycom
(Mena) FZ-LLCUnited Arab EmiratesTall Tree Insurance CompanyVermont, United StatesHP Technology Vietnam Company LtdVietnamHP Technology Vietnam Company Ltd (Hanoi
Branch)VietnamDocumentExhibit 23Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting FirmWe consent to the incorporation by reference in the following Registration Statements:
AAAAA AAAA (1)Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-124281) pertaining to the Executive Deferred Compensation Plan,(2)Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-114253)
pertaining to the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan,(3)Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-124282) pertaining to the 2005 Executive Deferred Compensation Plan,(4)Registration Statement
(Form S-8 No. 002-92331) pertaining to the Hewlett-Packard Company 401(k) Plan,(5)Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 033-31496) pertaining to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan and
Service Anniversary Stock Plan,(6)Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-142175) pertaining to the PolyServe, Inc. 2000 Stock Plan,(7)Registration Statement (FormA S-8 No.A 333-153302)
pertaining to the Amended and Restated 2003 Incentive Plan of Electronic Data Systems Corporation and the 1997 Nonqualified Stock Option Plan of Electronic Data Systems Corporation,
(8)Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-166270) pertaining to the Amended and Restated Hewlett-Packard Company 2004 Stock Incentive Plan,(9)Registration Statement (Form S-8 No.
333-168101) pertaining to the Palm, Inc. 2009 Stock Plan, as amended, and the Amended and Restated Palm, Inc. 1999 Stock Plan,(10)Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-169854)
pertaining to the Amended and Restated 3PAR Inc. 2007 Equity Incentive Plan, the 3PARDATA, Inc. 2000 Management Stock Option Plan, as amended, and the 3PARDATA, Inc. 1999 Stock
Plan, as amended,(11)Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-188108) pertaining to the Second Amended and Restated Hewlett-Packard Company 2004 Stock Incentive Plan,(12)Registration
Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-251265) pertaining to the HP Inc. 2021 Employee Stock Purchase Plan,(13)Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-251266) pertaining to the HP Inc. 401 (k)
Plan,(14)Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-267151) pertaining to the Third Amended and Restated HP Inc. 2004 Stock Incentive Plan and the Plantronics, Inc. 2003 Stock Plan, as
amended, (15)Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-277493) pertaining to debt securities, common stock, preferred stock, depositary shares and warrants, and(16)Registration Statement
(Form S-8 No. 333-279805) pertaining to the Fourth Amended and Restated HP Inc. 2004 Stock Incentive Plan;of HP Inc. of our reports dated December 12, 2024, with respect to the
consolidated financial statements of HP Inc. and subsidiaries and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of HP Inc. and subsidiaries included in this Annual Report (Form
10-K) of HP Inc. for the year ended October 31, 2024./s/ Ernst & Young LLPHouston, TexasDecember 12, 2024DocumentExhibitA 31.1CERTIFICATIONI, Enrique Lores, certify that:1. I have
reviewed this Annual Report on FormA 10-K of HPA Inc.;2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;3. Based on my
knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act RulesA 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act RulesA 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:(a)Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being
prepared;(b)Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
(c)Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and(d)Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):(a)All significant deficiencies
and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and(b)Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.Date: December 12, 2024A A /s/ ENRIQUE LORESEnrique LoresPresident and Chief Executive OfficerDocumentExhibitA 31.2CERTIFICATIONI, Karen L.
Parkhill, certify that:1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on FormA 10-K of HPA Inc.;2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act RulesA 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act RulesA 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:(a)Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this
report is being prepared;(b)Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;(c)Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and(d)Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):(a)All significant deficiencies
and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and(b)Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.Date: December 12, 2024 /s/ KAREN L. PARKHILLA A Karen L. ParkhillChief Financial Officer(Principal Financial
Officer)DocumentExhibitA 32CERTIFICATIONOFCHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICERANDCHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERPURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. 1350,AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TOSECTIONA 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OFA 20021, Enrique Lores, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to SectionA 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the Annual Report



on FormA 10-K of HPA Inc. for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2024 fully complies with the requirements of SectionA 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and
that information contained in such Annual Report on FormA 10-K fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of HPA Inc.December 12, 2024 /s/

ENRIQUE LORESA A By:A Enrique LoresPresident and Chief Executive
Officer I, Karen L. Parkhill, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted

pursuant to SectionA 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the Annual Report on FormA 10-K of HPA Inc. for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2024 fully complies with the requirements
of SectionA 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and that informationAcgntairAled in such Annual Report on FormA 10-K fairly presents, in all material respects, the
financial condition and results of operations of HPA Inc.December 12, 2024/s/ KAREN L. PARKHILLA A By:A Karen L. ParkhillChief Financial

Officer




